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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consclidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Consoclidated Balance Sheet

(in thousand zlotys)

'CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET . Note | 31.12.2006 & 31.12.2005
Assets b restaled
 I\FixedAssetsfongterm) 1| 348567 204696
1. Tangblefxedassets 134 103705, 56 925,

2. Inianglblefxedassets T L . 369 4
3. Goodil of the subsiciaries S T | IO -~
4 Investmentpropeny T RO S S
i 5 Financial assels ...t 518 5837
.6- Financial assets valued atequ;ty method T

. T.longlermreceivables 1840 936418 231567
9. Other fxed asscts . MO 8991 632
1L Current assets (short-term) _ b TTEI0. 848290
____2Tfadefe°e"fab'es 3 q7g62 17859
_ Bhncometaxreceivables A L4 M
4.0ther short-term recelvables _ S 20 27085 17732
Shonedicomeanddeeredcost B tus 11w
- B.0ther shorttem assels o R . N 41225___ 2882
_ 7Shorttermfinancialassets 20 349
 BCmshandaasheguvalents 24 95079 41601,
Total Assets L 4198 3795255

Consolidated Balance Sheet should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the
integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet

{in thousand zlotys)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ~  Note  31.12.2006 = 31.12.2005
Total Equity and Liabilitles 0 restéled
L Shareholders' Equity R T T
1 Sharecapital B 36919 35369
_2.Unpaid share capital I T T (i) I )
~ 3.5urplus of sales ssueabove nommal value (agio) - __23__12{4:4 28321
_ ATreasury shares I
. 5.Reserve capital from OptEOH valuailon et 58 B 25835. R 0322
6Oterreservecapitsl 18210 28267
 7Puofifloss from previousyears L 18493 8669
. BPofiflossforthepeiod 549 9341
- SMinority interest e ; L
Il. Long-term uabmtles' - 78140 238 417,
B0 23285,
RE
2587 25215

. 5Otherkapiites %2 an
1. Short-term fiabilities o mwMe 29481
_ 1Bank loans and borrowmgs 30,31 25888 20490
. 2Tradeliabilites R T Y .
 3Income tax liabilites R T U - B -
AOtherlabittes % oam 2083
5.Provisions - S 2 2627 1602‘
 8.Acoruals and deferred income G 406 138
Total CapitalandLiabilities o 426198 379525

Consolidated Balance Sheet should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the
integral part of the financial statement



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

(in thousand zlotys)

'CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT ~ Noty

Contmued act;v;[y .. e

1. Sales income

‘.” Cost ngoods so!d : s
. Gross profit on sales_ (Hy

V. Selling expense N
V. General and administration costs

mcludmg management cptlon valuahon

VI, Profiton sales (IV-Y)
VIl Other operaling ncome.

36

i
(31801

31.12.2006  31.12.2005 |

i
(35043)
26 054

(14051)
sy
16 863

(13152)
(1032
12 902;

VIl Other operating expense

1X. Operating profit (Vi+VILVIH)
X, Financial income

1 381

204

”,(1 ; 950).

1356

- (1 )

13176

13795

X, Fmanmal expense

f.)(|| Pmﬁtﬂ_oss from Subgrdmate un;ts o e

XIll. Gross profitfloss (IX+X-XH/-XIl)
XIV. Corporate income tax
XV. Net profit/loss from continued actawty

'.Dlscuntmued actlwty

XV! P{Ofitfioss from dtscontmued actmty _ -

-_XViI Net profltfloss -

Distribution of profitfloss:
‘Parent company sharefolders
Minority shareholders

Met profitfioss ' _
Weighted average number of shams _
Basic EPS {inzl}

;_\_f‘{e;gﬁ_gc}_ average duémeé Wﬁ‘bez of shares

Diluted EPS (inzl)

10
106

(661)

519

sl
e
U

(160

1628
L

58

18255 142,

- 0,03
18 ?551423

{12616)
6
12525
384!
a3

9241

S
B

RET

18050 422

652
18 050 4225
0,52,

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account should be analyzed together with the additional notes,
which are the integral part of the financial statement
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Eguity

(in thousand zlotys)

i : i Surplus of sales
Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity ;  Sharecapital  Unpaid share capital issue above nominal
; valug (agio)

Reserve capital from.  Other resetve Profitfioss from Profitfloss for the

option vaiuation capital i previous ygars period Minarity interest TOTAL

festated e
Equity at the beginning of the period - 01.61.2605 o 35BS
. Changes in capitalin the period e 08
Cdnerease 504
.. shares issue j

o wems - . 101124
e

s
(8.138).

- shares issue above nominal value : - E - - - - 8138

e

_from disrbuton o proft (over the minimal vae required by 'aw)

.- rom distribution of rpafits from previous years N T T B S : - -
- ffom management options valuation . - 1032 S T L -2
. - dividend payment - - - - - - - -

sredemplonofstarss ot o S B R
e SOOVEIBOROTKIS e 8 138; O SO N u; SO SO 1.
- movement ko reserve capital B - S - - : - - 18875

.mnc.im..:m.gﬁ.@w&avmaon...w._.‘_.m..wonm mmmm.m R Nmmmﬂ 1 m.u.,.:”: | e

Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the integral part of the financial statement



Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{in thousand zlotys)

‘Consolidated Cash Flows Statement

A.Cash flow from 6bératihg activities - indirect method
“\Grossprofitloss
Ad;ustments for: '
1.Profitf loss from assumates and Jo;ntly controlied antmes which are companies
QDGPTEC‘B“"“ e
~ 3.Foreign exchange galnsliosses
| Adnletestand dividends recoived andpaid
' _ 5.Result on investment acfivity
B.Corpmate income fax
‘TACham;le in pravisions )
8Changeinimventory
9.Change in recaivables e
10.Change in short term liabilities, without loans and credits
11 Change in deferred income and accrlfals S
3 12 Other changes )
| HI Net cash ftow from operating actmnes (1)
B Net cash ﬂuw from investing activities
Linflows duetoinvestingactivities
1. Sale of intangible and tangxblefxed assets o
2, Sale of investments in tangitle fixed assets and mtanglble assets
' 3 Sale of other financial assets, including:
- sale of financial assets
- dvidends anc% shares i profit N
- repayment of granted long term joans
- interest
- other inflows from financial assets
4 Otheranvestment inflows
.~ Il.Outflows due to investing activities
1. Purchase of intangible and tanglble fixed assets
N _2 tnvesiments in property and intangibles
3. Purchase of other financial assets, including
- purchase of financial assets

 -longlermloans granted
4 Dwtdends and other payments paid to minorty shareha!de{s
3 Acquasmun of subsidiary net of fixed assets taken over
6.0ther investing outfiows

il.Net cash flow from investing activitses {E EI)

Note

v
575
; 861, .
% . 3086
(1309
Ly
&7,
{1259,

-
2 2689
B0

5413
-
5 184;

B
@ . W
: {47946)_

31.12.2006 |

31.42.2005

2525
‘@572
(47}
3857
2310

()
(14 256),
17
o 393)
3

3 853

22 418!
.1

g

118

23
. 48358
25 4205

2518
115,
2403

17 418
 [23938)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which

are the integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{in thousand zlotys)

C.Net cash flow from f'nancmg actwmes

1 lssue uf shares and ca;)llal :nsimments _ - 1144 :

3 lssue of bonds . i .

4. Other 7815 §

“ Outﬂows due to Emancmg act;vmes S A . .44 296 2.5...]@}

1. Purchase Gf treasury shares ) ] —‘ -

.2 Dividends and others paymenis toshereblders BRI

3 Shafe issue related expenditure ) ) ) ) ) i - -

| ARepayments ofloansand credits 23856 15557,

.5 Repayments ofbonds. T - :
6.Repayments of other ﬁnanczal iablhhﬂs .& - -
_TFinance lessegayments I

_ Blnterestpaid 16897, 9831

9 Diher E

" liLNet cash flow from imancmg actwmes (I IE) h 21 ?57‘ 27 003,
D.Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A Ht-BA1H-CI) {iBes) 591,
E.Balance sheet change in cash and cash equivalents, including: . {17 847): 5015
" - changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from foreign exchange galnsn‘losses T ' {5?2);
F.Cash and cash equwalents at the beginning of the period 12 949::‘ 36 603
G Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod mcludl'ng — 25 192 42 949;
- res%nctad cash and cash equevaents S 6025;
LR?COHCIIIaiIOH of cash :..md cash equivalents presented in teh consolidated cash flow statement 31422006 | 31.12.2005
with the balance sheet items :
7. hort-term financial assets in balance sheet - 1 319
-8.Cash and cash equivalen? in balance sheet 5079, 41801
Cash of social fund LB
Totel B a2
.G.Cash and cash equivalenls at the end of the period in the cash flow statement /102 42949,
Presentation of sources of external finance (cash flow statement) 31 12 2005 31 12 2905 .
pos. C.1.2 Incomes from loans and credits 67 034 52 669,
‘pos. C.I1.4 Payo#f from loans and credits {23 856} {15557
Change in sources of external finance, including: T
;mvestmerzt debt dzaw net 7682 37080
.drawmgfrepaym@nt of VAT facvhly, net 4 aa :_ 13
8

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which

are the integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
{in thousand zlotys)

1. General information

Polish Energy Partners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a "Parent Company”) has been incorporated by
the Notarial Deed dated July 17, 1997. The Parent Company is registered with the National Court
Register held by the District Court for the city of Warsaw, XX Economic Department of the National
Court Register, Entry no. KRS 0000026545. The Company has been allocated a statistical number,
REGON 012693488. The seat of the Parent Company is at 169 Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw

The Company is the Parent Company of Polish Energy Partners Capital Group.

Pursuant to the National Court Register extract, the scope of the Parent Company’s business activities

includes:

Generation and distribution of electrical energy (PKD 40.10),
Generation and distribution of heat (steam and hot water) (PKD 40.30),
General building and land engineering (PKD 45.21),

Construction of building installations (PKD 45.3),

Other forms of granting loans except those activities to the performance of which the
concession or permission is needed or which are restricted for the scope of activities of
banks (PKD 65.22),

Research and development works in the area of biological and technical sciences
(PKD 73.10),

Management and sale of properties at its own account (PKD 70.11),
Contracted property management (PKD 70.32),

Financial and accounting activities {PKD 74.12),

Constructional, urban and technological design and architecture (PKD 74.20),
Business and management consuiting (PKD 74.14},

Other commerciat activities not classified anywhere else(PKD 74.84) ,

COther educational activities not classified anywhere else (PKD 80.423,
Wholesale of solid, Hquid, gas fusls and related products (PKD 51.51).

The scope of business activities of subsidiaries is related to the activities of the Parent Company.

1.1 Period of operation of the Company and the entities comprising Capital Group

The Company's and all other Group entities period of operation is unlimited,




Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2008
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

1.2  Indication of periods for which the consolidated financial statements are prepared

Consolidated financial statements of the Capital Group were prepared for the 12 months period ended
December 31, 2006. Consoclidated financial statements include the comparative financial data for the
12 months period ended December 31, 2005.

1.3 AManagement Board Member and Superviscry Board Members

The Management Board of the parent company as of December 31, 2006 comprised of:

Stephen Klein President of the Management Board
Anna Kwarcinska Vicepresident of the Management Board
Michal Koztowski Member of the Management Board

On March 21, 2006 Supervisory Board of the parent company appointed Ms Anna Kwarcinska for the
position of Vicepresident of the Management Board for the next three year period.

Members of the Company’s Management Board as at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Zhigniew Prokopowicz Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Michat Rusiecki Vice-president of the Supervisory Board
Aleksander Kacprzyk Supervisory Board Member

Krzysztof Sedziowski Supervisory Beard Member

Artur Olszewski Supervisory Board Member

On November 3, 2006 the parent company received written resignation of Mr Andrew Cowley from the
Supervisory Board Membership in the company.

Mr Michat Rusiecki and Mr Aleksander Kacprzyk resigned from Supervisory Board Membership
effective for Decemnber 31, 2006.

On January 10, 2007 the General Shareholders Meesting appointed to the Supervisory Board Mr
Krzysztof Sobolewski, My Wojciech Sierka and Mr Krzysziof Kaczmarczyk.

2. Going concern assumption

The financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on the basis that these companies will be going concerns for the
period of at least twelve months subsequent to December 31, 2008. As at the date of signing the
financial statements, the Company’s Management Board is not aware of any facts or circumstances
which would indicate a threat to the Capital Group's companies going concern for at ieast twelve
months following the balance sheet date due to an intended or compulsory withdrawal from or
significant limitation in its current activities.

in 2006 one of the subsidiaries Energopep Sp. z 0.0., Warszawa ul. Wiertnicza 169 reporfed loss
which increased the negatlive net assets value. As of December 31, 2008 the total capital of that
company was negative and amounted to PLN 6,257 thousands. Had the profitability of that company
remained negative there would be a significant risk for this company to operate as a going concern.
Parent company which is the limited partner issued written representation supporting the company in
the period of at least the next 12 months. According to the Commercial Code limited partner is
responsible for the liabilities of the company up te the limitation sum which is PLN 50 thousand.

10




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
{(in thousand zlotys)

In 2006 one of the subsidiaries Interpep Sp. z 0.0., EC Wizdw, Spétka komandytowa reported loss
which increased the negative net assets value. As of December 31, 2006 the total capital of that
company was negative and amounted to PLN 2,517 thousands. Had the profitability of that company
remained negative there would be a significant risk for this company to operate as a going concern.
Parent company which is the limited partner issued written representation supporting the company in
the period of at least the next 12 months. According to the Commercial Code limited partner is
responsible for the liabilities of the company up to the Eimitation sum which is PLN 50 thousand.

1




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand Zzlotys)

3. Group’s Structure

0,1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

100% N
SATURN Management Sp. z 0.0.
99,9% R v
SATURN Management Sp. z 0.0. i Wspélnicy, Spoitka
Komandytowa
100% .
ENERGOPEP Sp. z c.0.
99% R ¥
ENERGOPEP Sp. z 0.0. EC Jeziorna, Spotka
. Komandytowa
<L 100% .
(j) INTERPEP Sp. z 0.0.
2] 99% N v
. »
(b INTERPEP Sp. z 0.0. EC Wizow, Spolka Komandytowa
t 100% -
DC-U INTERPEP EC Zakrzéw Sp. 2 0.0.
>, 99% - v
9 INTERPEP EC Zakrzdw Sp. z o.0., Spoika Komandytowa
G) 100% .
- >
i E i Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0
o 94,1% . ¥
gz Mercury Energia-Przedsigbiorstwo Sp. z 0.0. i Wspdlnicy,
'”'""-o Spotka Komandytowa
o 100% .
Dipol 8p. 7z 0.0,
51% N
»
Beta Sp. z 0.0.
51,2% o
Motos Sp. z 0.0.
51,33% -
Ll
EW.G Sp. zc.0.

3.1

Entities comprising the Capital Group

12




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

The consclidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
controlled Subsidiaries. The detailed information regarding these entities has been presented below.

AtE

Name of the entity Seat Type of business | Percentage share
activity of the Group in
capital
Polish Energy Partners S.A. Warszawa, Energy sector services -
ul. Wiertnicza 169
Saturn Management Sp. zo.o.i | Warszawa, Energy sector services 100%
Wsp6lnicy Spétka komandytowa | Ul- Wiertnicza 169
Energopep Sp. z 0.0, EC Warszawa, Energy sector services 100%
Jeziorna, Spétka komandytowa | Ul- Wiertnicza 169
Dipol Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa, Energy sector services 100%
ul. Wiertnicza 169
Interpep Sp. z 0.0. EC Wizdéw Warszawa, Production of heat and 100%
Sp. Komandytowa ul. Wiertnicza 169 | gjaciricity
Interpep EC Zakrzow Sp. z 0.0, | Warszawa, Production of heat and 100%
Sp. Komandytowa ul. Wiertnicza 169 | ejecricity
Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. i Warszawa, Production of heat and 94.2%
Wspélnicy, Sp. Komandytowa*) | Ul- Wiertnicza 168 | oiectricity
Interpep Sp. z c.0. Warszawa, ul. Management, 100%
Wiertnicza 169 supervision and
advisory in conducting
, business activities
Energopep Sp. 2 0.0. Warszawa, ul. Production of heat and 100%
Wiertnicza 169 eiectricity
Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. W?fszawa, ul. Management, 100%
Wierinicza 169 supervision and
advisory in conducting
business activities,
market and public
opinion research
Notos Sp. z 0.0. Szczecin, ul. Production and 51%
Wojska Polskiego distribution of electricity
154
EW.G Sp. z 0.0. Szczecin, ul. Production and 51,33%
Wojska Polskiego distribution of electricity
154
BETA Sp.z 0.0. Szczecin, ul Production and 51,20%
Woijska Polskiego distribution of electricity
154
Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa, ul. Production and 100%
Wiertnicza 169 distribution of eleciricity
and heat
Interpep EC Zakrzow sp. 2 0.0. Warszawa, ul. Production and 100%
Wiertnicza 169 distribution of electricity
and heat

*) On October 1, 2006 the parent company became unlimited partner of Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. i
Wspolnicy Spotka Komandytowa and gained control over that company.

13



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

4. Comparability of the data presented

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31,2006 and December 31, 2005 were
prepared with the provisions of International Financial Reporting Standards and International
Accounting Standards.

5. Acceptance of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statement was accepted by the Management Board for publication on
February 26, 2007.

6. Accounting policies applied

6.1

Changes in the accounting principles applied

In the year beginning January1, 2006 the following new standards and interpretation and amendments
to the existing standards came into force:

Amendment to 1AS 19 employee benefits — this amendment introduces the possibility of
allowed alternative way to recognize actuarial gains and losses in the equity. it also imposes
additionai requirements for some multipiant programs. Additionally this amendment imposes
new disclosure requirements. As the Group is not going to change its accounting principles
relating to recognition of actuarial gains and losses and does not participate in multiplant
program the application of the amended IAS 19 has only changed the disclosure
requirements.

Amendments to IAS 39 option value in fair value — this amendment reduces the application of
option value in fair value fo fair value through profit and loss. Due to the fact that the Group
categorized io the financiai instruments valued in fair vaiue through profit and ioss only
financial instruments held for frading the amendment of IAS 30 does not impact the presented
assets and liabilities and their values.

Amendment to 1AS 38 and IFRS 4 financial guarantee agreement — the amendment
introduces the obligation to recognize liability due from financial guarantees granted in fair
value and then revaluation of this fiability to the higher of (a) unsettled balance of received and
paid cormmissions or (b) the amount of resources to pay the liability. This amendment does not
apply to the Group accounts.

Amendment to the IAS 38 Accounting for cash flow hedge in case of pianned intercompany
transactions — this amendmeni allows io freat the risk of foreigh exchange in planned
intercompany transactions as hedged item in the consolidated financial statement if (a) this
transaction is done in a currency different than the functional currency of either parties of the
transaction and (b) the risk of foreign exchange will impact the consolidated profit or loss. Due
to the fact that the Group companies do not have transactions in foreign currency other than
functional currency of either party the amendment to the 1AS 39 does not apply to the Group.

Amendment to IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates. As a result all foreign
exchange differences on cash items which are part of the net investment of the Group in the
entitiy opertaing in foreign couniry are treated as spearate component of shareholders equity
in the consolidated financial statements, irrespective of the currency in which gaiven monetary
item is expressed. This amendment does not apply to the Group accounts.

IFRS 6. exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources — this standard applies to the
companies operating in exploration industry and does not apply to the Group.

Interpretation IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease - this
interpretation imposes the obligation to verify the agreements which do not have a legal form

14




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

6.2

of lease, but which could result in the right to use an asset. As a result of agreement
verification the Management of the Company stated that this interpretation does not apply to
the Group.

Interpretation IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Funds - interpretation does not apply to the Group and its transactions.

Interpretation IFRIC 6 Liabilites Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment - interpretation does not apply to the Group and its
transactions.

New standards and interpretations which were published but are not in force yet

The following standards and interpretations were issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (,JASB") or International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (,IFRIC") but are not in
force yet:

Amendments to the |AS 1 Presentation of financial statements, disclosure of information about
equity (binding from January 1, 2007)

IFRS 7 Financial instruments, disclosure of information (binding from January 1, 2007)
IFRS 8 operational segments (binding from January 1, 2009)

Interpretation IFRIC 7 Application of approach relying on restatement in accordance with |AS
29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies {binding March 1, 2006)

Interpretation IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 (binding May 1, 2006)

interpretation IFRIC 9 Assessment of embedded derivatives (binding June 1, 2006}
Interpretation IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment (binding November 1, 2006)
Interpretation IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury shares transactions (binding March 1, 2007)
Interpretation IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (binding January 1, 2008)

15




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand ziotys)

6.3 Fundamental Error

The type of adjustments that the Group had to include and its impact on total assets and net result is
presented in the fable below:

Total Assets  Net result as

as of of December
December 31, 2005
31, 2005
Data presented in the published consolidated financial
statements 378739 9341
6.3.1. Additionat liability due from BRE loan 786
Data presented in these financial statements
379525 931

6.4 Format and the basis of preparing the consolidated financial statement

The consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of
international Accounting Standards/ international Financial Reporting Standards. The financial
statements cover the period from January 1, to December 31, 2006 and the comparable period from
January 1, to December 31, 2005. The consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the
historic cost convention which was modified in relation to financial instruments valued at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements together with the comparable data for the period of 12 months
ended December 31, 2006 was subject to audit by certified auditor.

8.5 Compiliance representation

The presented consolidated financial statements were prepared with the provisions of International
Financial Reporiing Standards ("IFRS”) and IFRS voted by the EU. As of the date of these financial
statements, taking into consideration the process of implementation of IFRS in the EU and the scope
of business of the Company there is no difference between 1AS, IFRS and the interpretations related
to them pubtished in form of a decree of European Commission (“IFRS approved for application by the
EC™).

IFRS include standards and interpretations accepted by IFRS Council and the Interpretation
Committee of the IFRS.

6.6 Significant values based on professional judgment and estimates

Some information provided in the consolidated financial statements is based on estimates and on the
professional judgment of the management. These values resulting from estimates and judgment will
often not coincide with real values. Among assumptions and estimates which had the most significant
impact when valuing and recognizing assets and liabilities are the following:

- leases classification — Group as lessor,
- management options,
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- depreciation rates,

- impairmeni write-downs,

- provisions for doubtful debts,
- provisions for court cases.

6.7 Functional currency and the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements

The functional currency of the parent company and its subsidiaries and the reporting currency of the
consolidated financial statements is Polish zloty.

6.8 The principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated within the period from the taking-over of control by a parent
company untit such control ends. The control of the parent company is effected when the parent have
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries more than half of the votes in a given company unless it
can be proved that such a number of votes does not assure control. The control is also in a situation
when the company can influence the operational and financial policy of a given company.

The assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary as at the date of including it to the consolidated financial
statements are valued at fair value. The difference between the fair value of such assets and liabilities
and the take-over price gives rise to the establishment of the goodwill or the negative goodwill which
are disclosed in a separate item of the consolidated balance sheet.

All material infercompany balances and transactions between the entities of the Group, including
unrealized gains resulting form these transactions were compietely eliminated in consolidation.
Unrealized losses are eliminated unless it proves impairment.

6.9 Investment in associates

Shares in associates are valued with equity method. Associates are entities which are significantly
influenced by the parent company and which are neither subsidiaries of parent company nor joint
ventures. The financial statements of associates are the basis for valuation of shares owned by the
parent company using equity method. The financial year of associates is equal to the financial year of
the parent company. Associates apply accounting policies prescribed in the Accounting Act dated
September 29, 1994 with amendments (Journal of Laws No. 76, dated June 17, 2002). Before
calculating the proportionate share of parent company in the financial resuit of such companies the
financial statements of associates are restated to IFRS applied by the Group.

Proportionate share of parent company in the financial result of such companies is presented
separately in the consolidated profit and loss account. Value of such company resulting from purchase
of these shares is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

6.10 Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is measured initially as the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable
assets, liabilittes and contingent liabilities. After initial recognition goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment charges. Impairment tests are performed every year. Goodwill is not
amortized.
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As of the date of business combination goodwill is allocated to each cash generating unit which may
benefit from combination synergy. Impairment is calculated by estimating cash generating unit
recoverable amount to which allocated goodwill refers. if the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is lower than carrying value an impairment loss is charged to profit and loss account. If
goodwill is part of the cash generating unit and there is a sale of part of the cash generating unit when
calcuiating the profit or loss of this transaction the goodwill related to the sold unit is included in its
carrying value. In these circumstances the sold goodwill is calculated based on the relative value of
sold unit and the remaining part of the cash generating unit.

6.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include assets which meet following criteria:

- Can be separated or divided from the entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged either individually or together with a related confract, asset or liability or

- Arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardiess of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

Intangible assets purchased in separate transactions are initiaily valued in the purchase price or cost.
The value of intangible assets purchased as a result of business combination is their fair value as at
the date of the transaction. After initial recognition the intangible assets are presented in purchase
price or cost less amortization and impairment write downs. The cost for intangible assets produced in
house except for cost of research and development are not capitalized but expensed as incurred.

The Group states whether the economic useful life of the intangible assets is limited or unlimited.
Intangible assets with limited economic useful life are amortized over its usage period and are tested
for impairment every time any indications of such impairment appear. The period and method of
amaortization of intangible assets with limited economic useful life are tested for impairment at least
once a year.

Expected economic useful lives are as follows:

Patents, licenses, frade marks 1 year
Computer software 2-5 years
Gther intangible assets 5 years

Changes to the estimated economic useful life or the expected way of consumption of the economic
benefit being the result of asset use are accounted for through proper change of the perfod or
amortization methed and are treated as changes in estimates. The amortization of intangible assets
with limited economic usefu! life is presented in profit and loss account in the category that represents
the function of given intangible asset.

Intangible assets with unspecified economic useful life and these which are not used are every year
tested for impairment in relation to each asset or on the cash generating unit level. In case of other
intangible assets it is assessed every year whether there are any indications of impairment. The
estimaied useful lives are also verified yearly and if needed, adjusted with effect from starting the just
ended operating period.
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6.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or production cost, or revalued amount, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment write-downs. The purchase price of the right of perpetual
usufruct to land is the value of the right pursuant to the decision issued by the municipality at the
moment of granting such right. Land is valued at its acquisition price reduced by write-offs due to
impairment.

Costs incurred on an asset already in use, such as repairs, overhauls or operating fees, are expensed
as incurred. If, however, it is possible to show that such costs increase the expected future economic
benefits of a given fixed asset beyond the original expected benefits they are capitalized into the value
of the asset as a separate component of the asset.

Assets, except for land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Perpetual usufruct to land 20 years
Buildings, premises and other civil and water engineering structures 20 years
Plant and machinery from 2.5 years to 20 years
Vehicles from 2.5 years to 5 years
Other fixed assets from 5 years to 7 years

Each class of assets is recorded separately and depreciated over its estimated useful life.

When acquired the fixed assets are classified into components with material value for which a useful
life can be estimated.

If there are any indications of impairment of the asset so that the currying value of the assets can not
he recovered, the Group performs an impairment test for each class of asset If there are any
indications that an impairment of asset exists and the carrying value exceeds recoverable amount
then the asset or cash generating units which these assets constitute is written of the its recoverable
amount, Recoverable amount is higher of pet realizable value or value in use. While estimating the
value in use estimated future cash flows are discounted fo present value using the discount rate. The
discount rate reflects market time value estimates and risk associated with the particular asset. in
case of an assef that can not separateiy be treated as cash generating unit recoverable amount is
established for the unii to which the asset is classified. The impairment write downs are expensed 0
profit and loss account.

A fixed asset may be derecognized from the balance sheet after selling the asset or if there are no
expected probable economic benefits resulting from further use of asset. All the losses or gains
resulting from such an asset removal from the balance sheet (calculated as the difference between
sales proceeds and net book value of the asset) are expensed in the profit and loss account in the
period in which the derecognition was done.

6.13 Assets under construction

Assets under construction are carried at the value of aggregate costs directly attributed to their
acquisition or manufacture, including financial costs, reduced by write-offs due to impairment. Assets
under construction also include materials for construction. Assets under construction are not
depreciated until they are completed and available for use.
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6.14 Shares in joint ventures

The Group has a joint venture which comprises cooperation on completing the development of wind
farm projects. The necessary investment for development of wind farm projects is capitalized in the
Group assets and in the assets of the joint venture partner.

6.15 Leasing

Group as the leasee

Financial lease agreements which transfer to the Group all of the risks and rewards relating to
ownership of the asset are initially recognized in the balance sheet at the inception date at the lower of
two values: fair value of the leased assets or present value of minimum lease payments. Lease
payrments are divided between financial revenues/costs and decrease of receivables/liabilities balance
in a2 way enabling to achieve a fixed interest rate from the outstanding receivable/abligation. Financial
costs are directly expensed in the profit and loss account.

Fixed assets used under the financial lease agreement are depreciated over shorter of two periods:
estimated useful life or lease period.

Lease agreements in which the lessor has all of the risks and rewards relating to ownership of the
asset are classified as operational lease. Lease payments resulting from operational lease are
expensed in the profit and loss account using the straight line method over the lease period.

Group as the lessor

One of the Group entities is party of lease agreement which assumes lease of fixed asset and
intangible assets over a specified period of time.

Pursuant to 1AS 17 the above mentioned lease agreement meets the criteria of financial lease and in
this way was presented in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For tax purposes this
transaction is treated as operational lease.

In case of a financial lease, where the agreement results in substantially all of the risks and rewards
relating to ownership of the asset being transferred to the user of the equipment, the subject of the
lease agreement is recorded in lessee’s assets as fixed asset based on the current value of minimum
lease payments set at the lease inception. In lessor's books the asseis fransferred under financial
lease agreement are presented as receivables amounting o lease investment amount. lLease
payments are divided between financial revenues/costs and decrease of receivables/liabilities balance
in a way enabling to achieve a fixed interest rate from the outstanding receivablef/obligation. Financial
revenues and costs are recorded directly in the profit and loss accounts.

The lease payments resulting from agreements which do not fulfil the criteria of a financial leasing are
recorded as costs or revenues in the profit and loss accounts based on a straight-line method for the
lease agreement period.

6.16 Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition is accounted for based on a ,weighted average™ method.

Production costs and production in progress costs include direct material costs, workers cost and
allocated, justified indirect production costs, established at the normal usage of production capacity.

Net realizable value is the selling price estimated at the balance sheet date net of VAT and excise
taxes less rebates and discounts less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

6.17 Short- and long-term receivables
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Trade receivables except for receivables described in 6.15 are recognized and carried at original
invoice amount less an allowance for any doubtful and uncollectible amounts.

An estimate for doubtful debts is made based on the assessment of the probability of receivables
collection to reflect the realizable value of receivables. The allowance is recorded, as either operating
costs or financial costs, depending on the type of receivable.

Balances of receivables which are subsequently written-off reduce the allowance created against the
account.

Balances of receivables which are subsequently written-off where there was no full or partial
allowance previously created are expensed as other operating costs or financial costs.

Receivables include also receivables from financial lease.

if the impact of time value of money is material the value of receivables is established at the present
value using the discount rate. The discount rate reflects market time value estimates. If the applied
method assumes discounting then the increase in receivables due to time is recorded as financial
income.

6.18 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in non-Polish currencies are translated into Polish equivalents at the rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction.

As at the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities expressed in currencies other than Polish
zlotys are translated into Polish zlotys at the average exchange rate of the National Bank of Poland.
Foreign currency differences resulting from the above transaction are reported in the financial income
or financial costs respectively.

Non monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost expressed in foreign currency are
recalculated at the historical exchange rate at the transaction date. Non monetary assets and labilities
measured at fair value are recalculated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of valuation.

For the purpose of valuation, the following exchange rates have been adopted:

31.12.2008 31.12.2005
usp 2,9108 3,2613
EUR 3,8312 3,8588
CAD 25077 2,8093
CHF 2,3842 2,4788
GBP 5,7063 56253

21



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
{(in thousand zlotys)

6.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank and short-term deposits held until maturity are carried at fair value.

The cash and cash equivalenis item presented in the consolidated cash flow statement includes cash
in hand, bank deposits, treasury bills and bonds investment fund units which were not treated as
investment activity.

6.20 Prepaid and accrued expenses

The Company recognizes a prepayment if costs incurred relate to future reporting periods and accrues
expenses as a hability for costs incurred in the current reporting period in the amount of probable
liabilities due in current reporting period.

6.21 Share capital

Ordinary share capital is recorded in the amount stated in the Statutes as entered in the court register.
Differences between the fair value of amounts received and the par value of shares is recorded as
share premium. In the case of purchase of own shares, the amount of payment for shares is debited
against the share capital and is disclosed in the balance sheet in equity. Declared but unpaid cash
contributions to capital are recorded as share capital due from shareholders.

6.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, such that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is ceriain or
highly probable to be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

If the Group expecis that cosis which were provided will be reimbursed i.e. from insurance company
then this reimbursement is recognized as asset but then and oniy then if it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be collected. Costs relating to s specified provision are incuired in the profit and
loss account net of any reimbursements. In case the fime value of money is material factor the
provision is measured using the present value of future cash flows at the discount rate which reflects
current market estimate of time value of money and the risk related to the specified liability. if the
discount method is applied the increase in the provision as time passes will be recognized as
borrowing cost.

6.23 Provisions for jubilee awards and retirement allowances

According to the company’s remuneration system, employees have right to jubilee awards and
retirement allowances. Jubilee awards are paid after servicing a specified amount of years. Retirement
/ pension allowances are paid at the time of retirement / pension. The Group creates provision for the
abovementioned allowances to distribute the jubilee awards and retirement / pension allowances
along the whaole period of employment in the Company. According to 1AS 19 jubilee awards are other
long term pension cbligations and retirement allowances are programs of specified allowances after
servicing period. Present value of these liabilifies at each balance sheet date is calculated by an
independent actuary. The calculated liabilities are equal to the discounted payments which will be paid
in the future taking into account rotation and relate o the period il the balance sheet date.
Demographical information and rotation information are based on historical data. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in the profit and foss account.
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6.24 Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at cost, being the value of the consideration received
net of acquisition costs associated with the borrowing/loan. After initial recognition, all interest-bearing
loans and borrowings, other than labilities held for trading, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Costs related to loan acquisition, discounts and premiums received at the moment of liability
settlernent are taken into account when calculating the amortized cost.

Profits and losses are recorded in the profit and loss account at the moment of liability removal and
when calculating the payment.

6.25 Borrowing costs

The costs of loans and credits including foreign exchange resulting from loans and credits drawn in foreign
currency which can be directly attributed to purchase, construction or production of asset, pursuant to the allowed
alternative in the IAS 23 is capitalized as part of the purchase price or production cost of the asset. The cost of
external financing includes interest and profits or losses from foreign exchange differences up to the amount
referring to the interest cost.

6.26 Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is provided for, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized on all taxable temporary differences:

- With exempt when the deferred tax liability arises due to initial recognition of goodwill or
the initial recognition of asset or liability is in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the fransaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit, and

- In case of positive temporary differences resulting from investment in subsidiaries,
associates and shares in joint ventures - except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable fulure

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible ternporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses can be utilized.

- With exempt when the deferred tax asset arises due the initial recognition of asset or
liability is in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit, and

- In case of negative temporary differences resulting from investment in subsidiaries,
associates and shares in joint ventures the deferred tax asset is recognized in the balance
sheet in the amount which is probable that in foreseeable fuiure the above mentioned
differences will reverse and taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted at the balance sheet date.

The income tax relating to the items directly recorded in net assets is recorded in net assets and not in
the profit and loss account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented net in the consolidated balance sheet.

6.27 Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified into one of the following four categories:

~  Held to maturity,
- Fair value through profit and loss
—  Qriginating loans and receivables

— Available for sale.

A held- to — maturity asset is one that has a fixed maturity and fixed or determinable payments and
that the entity has the positive intent and ability to hold untit maturity. Held — to — maturity assets are
measured at amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments acquired in order to gain on short term price changes are classified as financial
instruments fair value through profit and loss. Fair value through profit and loss financial instruments
are valued in fair value without any transaction costs, taking into account the market value as at the
balance sheet date. Changes in these instruments are recorded in financial revenues and costs.

Originating loans and receivables are valued using amortized cost method.

All the remaining financial assets are financial assets available for sale. Financial assets available for
sale are valued at fair value without any transaction costs, taking into account the market value as at
the balance sheei dale. if there is no active market for such instruments and no reliable available
valuation using alternative methods, available for sale financial assets are valued at historical cost less
impairment.

Positive and negative difference between fair value and historical costs, after deferred tax, relating to
available for sale assets (if active market exists or fair value can be reliably measured) is recorded in
revaluation capital. The loss in value of available for sale financial assets is recorded as financial cost
in the profit and loss account.

Held — to — malurity financial assets are classified as long term assets if they maturity exceeds 12
months from balance sheet date.

Fair value through profit and loss financial assets are classifies as current assets if the management
intends to close the position within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

Purchase and sale of financial assets are initially recognized as at the date of the transaction. Initial
measurement includes purchase price which is fair value including transaction costs,

Financial liabilities which are not fair value through profit and loss financial instruments are valued at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial instrument is derecognized from the balance sheet when the Group loses control over
contractual rights comprising this instrument. Typically this happens when the instrument is sold and
all the cash flows related fo this instrument will now be attributed to an independent third party.

6.28 Impairment of assets
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An assessment is made at each balance sheet date by the Group’s companies to determine whether
there is objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists,
the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined. If the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit is higher than the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized for the
difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount. The costs of any write-downs
are included in other operating expenses. If there were previous asset revaluation then the impairment
loss is charged against the revaluation capital and the remaining impairment loss is charged to the
profit and loss account for the current period.

6.29 Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date by the Group's companies to determine whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired.

Assetls recognized at amortized cost

If there are objective indications that there is a toss incurred as a result of diminution in value of loans
and receivables valued at amortized cost, then the amount of revaluation due from impairment is
equal to the difference between the carrying value of the financial asset and the present value of the
future cash flows (excluding all future losses due from lack of collection of receivables, which have not
been incurred yet) discounted with application of primary discount rate (which is interest rate
established at initial recognition). The carrying value of the asset is reduced directly or through
reserve. The cost is incurred in the profit and loss account.

The Group assesses firstly whether there are objective indications of impairment of particular financial
assets which individually are significant and indications of impairment which individually are not
significant. If as a result of the analysis there are no objective indications of impairment of an
individually assessed financial asset, irrespective of whether it is significant or not the Group includes
this asset of the group of financial asset with similar credit risk and assesses jointly the impairment.
Assets which are assessed individually for impairment and for which the impairment was recognized
or it was assessed that the current impairment will not change are not taken into account in group test
for impairment.

If in the next period the impairment write down lowered and this lowering can be objectively related to
the event after the impairment was recognized than the previous impairment is reversed. The later
reversal of the impairment is recognized in the profit and loss account in the scope in which as of the
date of the reversal the carrying vaiue of an asset does not exceed its amortized cost.

Financial asseis recognized at cost

If there are objective indications that an impairment exists of an unguoted financial instrument which is
not valued in fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably estimated or derivative instrument
which is embedded and must be seftled through delivery of such an unquoted financial instrument
then the amount of impairment is established as the difference between carrying value of the financial
asset and present value of future cash flows discounted with current market discount rate for similar
financial instruments.

Financial assets available for sale

If there are objective indications that an impairment exists of an available for sale financial asset then
the difference between purchase price of this asset (less principal repayment and amortization) and its
present fair value less any impairment write downs of this asset previously recognized in the profit and
loss account is booked from equity to the profit and loss account. It is not allowed to recognize in the
profit and loss account any reversal of the impairment of equity instruments categorized as available
for sale. If in the next period the fair value of a debt instrument available for sale increases and this
increase can be objectively assessed with an event after the impairment was recognized in the profit
and loss account then the reversal of impairment is recognized in the profit and loss account.
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6.30 Share based payments

The management board member of the Group receive share based payments which means that they
render services in exchange for shares or rights to obtain shares.(* Transactions settled in equity
instrument”).

Transactions settled in equity instrument

The cost of such equity transactions with management board members is valued at fair value at the
date of granting of such rights. Fair value is estimated based on binominal model or Balck-Scholes-
Merton model. When valuing the transactions setfled in equity instrument there are no conditions
relating to the effectiveness/ results taken into consideration apart from these which are related to the
share price of the parent company (“market conditions”).

The cost of transactions settled in equity instruments is recognized together with associated increase
in equity in the period in which the effectiveness//results conditions were met and ending in the day in
which specified employees will receive the rights (rights grant date). The cumulative cost resulting
from the transactions settied in equity instrument for each balance sheet date till grant date reflects the
time passage of receiving rights and the number of awards, to which rights — in the opinion of the
Management as of that date, based on the possibly best estimates of the equity instrument number
will be purchased.

No costs are recognized from awards to which the rights are not finally purchased, except for awards
in case of which the purchase of rights depends on market conditions which are freated as purchased
irrespective of meeting the market conditions, under the condition of meeting other conditions relating
to effectiveness.

In case of madifications of granting the awards selfled in equity instruments, in order to meet minimum
requirements only costs are incurred as if in case the conditions were not modified. Moreover, the cost
is recognized of each increase in transaction market value as a result of modifications, valued as of
the date of modification.

In case of deletion of award settled in equity instrument it is treated in the way as if the rights were
purchased in the date of deletion and all the cosis due from the award not incurred yet are
immediately recognized. However, in case of replacement of deleted award with new award —
specified as deputy award in the day of grant, the award deleted and the new award are treated as if it
is a modification of the primary award which is in the way described in the above paragraph.

As of the day of the financial statement the option on ifs own shares do not have significant ditution
effect of the earnings per share.

6.31 Recognition of revenues
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefils will flow to the

Company and the revenue can be refiably measured. Revenue is recognized net of VAT tax, excise
duty and rebates. When recognizing revenues the below presented criteria also apply.

6.31.1. Sale of goods and products

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration less VAT. Revenue from
sales of electricity includes excise tax.

6.31.2. Provision of services

Proceeds from the provision of services are recognized based on the level of completion of the given
service, if this may be reliably estimated. Where the effects of the transaction for the provision of
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services may not be reliably estimated, proceeds from the provision of services are recognized only up
to the amount of costs incurred in this respect.

6.31.3. Interest

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset
which is the discount rate which discounts future cash flows over the estimated use of financial
instruments) in relation to the net book value of given financial instrument class.

6.31.4. Dividends

Dividends due are recorded at the moment of dividend rights for the shareholders.

6.31.5. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized in fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the entity will
comply with the relevant conditions and the grant will be received.

A grant that is compensation for expenses is recognized as income in the period to match the related
costs that they are intended to compensate. Grant that relate to the acquisition of an asset are
recoghized in accrued income and are subsequently recognized in income as the asset is depreciated
over the economic useful life.

€.32 Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calcuiated by dividing the earnings aftributable to hoiders of ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributabie to holders of ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding which are adjusted for the
affects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

6.33 Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are obligations whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence of uncertain
future events. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the balance sheet. However they are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the probability of an outflow is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the balance sheet unless the realization is virtually certain.
6.34 Emission rights

The Group provides for the emission rights in case the Group has a deficit of emission rights. In case
of emission rights surplus over the actual physical emission, this surplus is recorded off balance.

6.35 Certificates of origin

Certificates of origin of green energy are recognized in revenues and costs in the moment of
production when it is probable that the Group will achieve economic benefit.
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‘Revenues from third party sales sotr. 29698 - 62718

7. Information on business segment and geographical segment reporting

The company performed an analysis in order to identify potential business segments. The main
criterion to identify the segments is difference in risk and returns achieved by each segment. As a
resuit of this analysis the following segments were identified: industrial energy outsourcing which
consists of rendering operational services, industrial energy outsourcing which consists of heat and
electricity production and wind energy segment. There are presented in the table below the basic data
about the identified segments.
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' Other outsourcing -

Quisourcing - operating preduction of electricity

service __.and heat Wind energy Total

Intersegment transactions

BT
24765

e

29 444:
S8S e (10847}
Other operating income/expense S - e 1B TRY
Operatingprofit . T 2839
Financial income/cost . - o o)
Income tax S B i~ o 1300
Netprofit e - R - 19
‘Segment assets . .. B2 GASS4 64623 426 198

Unzllocated assets
Total assets

o L ee22 o BA9S4 462 426198
Segment liabilities 234 %67, CAa2im o Ao8es | 318062
Unallocated ligbiiies : - 139
Total liabilities G maser . 42199 40895 319457
:f‘urch?se of intangible and tangible fixed assets, 122 4297 37471 e
i- Tangible fixed assets o o1 4227 37474 41 830
clmangibleassets i _— 3 i
Depreciation e MO 2060
‘impairment write downs |

B oL

The line Other operating costs there is the amount of 12,878 thousands PLN which constitutes the
impairment write down of the segment ,Gther outsourcing activity — production of heat and alectricity™,
which is presented in Note 43 in detail.
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(in thousand zlotys)

:Continued operations

Qutsourcing - operating

production of slectricity

Cther outsourcing -

Wind energy | Totat

S ... service i..... Bodhest ;
‘Revenues from ihird party sales ...32668 28429 61097,
Intersegment transactions - - :
320688 28429
egment RO I 20956 2265 .are
EXPENSES ' - T 9 995)
:Other operating incomefexpense : L
Operatingprofit . 12717
‘Financial income/cost - .
Gross profit - Then
Income tax - - (3 185)
Net profit - .o 33
Segment assets 295072 23091; 379525
Unallocated assets R B S . .
Total assets I 295 072 ..60576; 23081 318525
Segment liabites 239 594 5293 1226) 266143
:Unallocated fiabilities - 173 e 1791
Total liabilities 239594 27084 1226 267 904
!’urche'zse of intangible and tangible fixed assets, a7 7478 18855 26 420
- Tangible fixed assets 18 457 18 848 26 381
- Inangible assets L s | N 7 38
Depraciation SN S 132 T T 20T
:Impairment write downs . : S 220

The Group operates on Polish territory (100% of revenue) which regions due to their similar economic
conditions and risks should be treated as homogeneous territory. Due to the above the Group des not

have any geographical sectors.

8. Average exchange rate of Polish zloty in relation to EURO

In the period covered by these financial statements and consolidated comparable data the exchange
rates published by NEP in refation to EURO amounted to:

Exchange rate as
Average Minimum Maximum at the balance
exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate sheet date
31.12.2006 3.8991 3.7565 4.1065 3.8312
31122005 4.0233 3.8223 42756 3.8598
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(in thousand zlotys)

9. Selected Financial Data of the Capital Group recalculated to EURO

31.12.2006 31.12.2005
CONSOLIBATED BALANCE SHEET thd. zt thd, EUR thd. zt thd. EUR
Total Assets 426 198 111244 379 525 98 328
I. Fixed assets 348 567 90 981 294 696 76 350
Il. Current assets 77 630 20 263 84 829 21978
Total capital and liabilities 426 198 111244 379 525 98 328
|. Shareholders’ Equity 106 742 27 861 111621 28 919
Il. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 319 456 83 383 267 8904 69 409
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(in thousand zlotys)

CONSOQLIDATED PROFIT AND LLOSS STATEMENT 31-12-2006 31-12-2005
thd. 2t thd. EUR thd. zi thd. EUR
g[' Sales income 82715 16 085 61097 15186
g||. Cost"of goods sold {31 801) {8 158)] (35 043) (8 710}
I‘i‘l'. é;roag proﬁt onsaies 30914 7929 26 054 6 476
IVSeltlng expense “ - - - -
V. Gene-r“';i and administration costs {14 051) (3604)] (13 152) (3 269)
Vi Proﬁk;”rl)‘n sales 16 863 4325 12 802 3207
\mlll. Other operat%;g income 1 381 354 1356 337
VIl O cperang pense. (7es0)| (aeom| (1082  (269)
!XOperatmg proflt o 294 75 13 176 3275
X. Financial income 13796 3538 11 959 2972
XIFmanmaI exé;.n;e ............ (11 605} (2976) (12 616) (3 136}
XIIP;oﬂtILoss from subordinate units (861) (170) 5] 1
XI!! Gross proﬁt!léss - 1823 467 12 525 3112
*iV. Gross profitioss 1823 467 12525 8112
;XV. Corporate income tax (1 304) (334) {3 184) (791}
XVE Néi profitioss | 519 133 9 341 2321
34-12-2006 31-12-2008

Consolidated Cash Flows Statement thd. =t thd. EUR thd. =t thd. EUR

1.Gross profitloss 1823 467 12 525 3113

IIAdjustments 5725 1 469 (8 672) (2 155)

” ACash ﬂow ;rcm operating activities 7 548 1936 3853 958

R.Net cash flow from investing activities (47 946) (12 297) (23 938) (5 950}

C.Net cash flow from financing activilies 21757 5 580 27 003 6712

0 et hange 1 cash and cash cqivclrts eoan| @em)|  eo1s| 1720

The above presented financial data were recalculated to EURO based on the following rules:
- balance sheet items — average exchange rated published by NBP as of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005 which were presented in the note 8 of this financial statement,
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- profit and loss items and cash flow items — average exchange rate heing the arithmetic mean
of average exchange rates published by NBP as of the last date of each month in 2006 and
2005 which were presented in note 8 of this financial statement

10.Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company for
the period divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

The diluted earnings per share are the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (after adjusting for
interest from redeemable preference shares convertible inte ordinary shares) divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding (adjusted for the diluting impact of options and diluting
redeemable preference shares convertible into ordinary shares).

In the table below there are presented data relating to the profit and number of shares which were
used to calculate basic and diluted EPS.

Ea'r'ni'ng's pef share et
31.122006 ©  31.12.2005

a) Net profit ‘ 519 9 341
b) Weighted average number of shares 18295142 18050422
<) Earnings per share (in Zloty) 00 082
Number of
shares o the
Number of Number of weighted
date shares New issue months average
2006-01-01 18 184 673 2 3030779
2006-03-17 18 255 581 70 908 8 12 170 387
2006-11-24 18 305 081 49 500 1 1525423
2006-12-13 18 342 641 37 560 1 1528 583
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2006 18 255 142
Dilution effect 0
Weighted diluted number of ordinary shares in 2006 18 255 142

In the period from the balance sheet date till the date of preparation of this consolidated financial
statement there were no other transactions relating to the ordinary shares and potential ordinary
shares.

32




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

11.Intangible assets

Total intangible

intangible fixed assets _patents, licencas, concessions
; fixed assets
computer software:
e hmk T ST 624
a) increase, |nciudmg Ta0l s
-purchase 330 371
‘h) decrease, |nc|ud|ng ) ) (48) _' : (48)
" e and e aion “ (43.)3_ S (48)
2. Gross hook value of :ntanglhle fixed assets at the end of the period 566 947
3, Accumg!g}_ed amoriization at the beginning of the period &9 (597)
- amorizaton in the period B A/
- decrease 48 T
sdleandliquidation 48
| Aransfers
5 impairment write-downs atthe baginning of the perio"dm
‘6, Impatrment write-downs at the end ef the peﬂod ; o
TV 'Net book value of intangible fixed assets atthe begshnlng of the perlod

reported as of 31-12-2005

intangible fixed asseis

8. Net book value of intangible fixed assets attheend of theperiod

¢ patents, licences, concessions
and similar assats:

:1 Gr&ss book value of mtanglbie ﬁxed asset
‘a) incraase, mc!udmg
: —purchase _

Eb) decrease, gac!udmg

3 Accumulated amortization at the beg:nmng ef the persoﬁ
- amonzatson In the pesicd

ated amomzatien at the eﬁcf of the period '
5 Impairment wrﬂe-downs at the beginning of the p

riod

re beginning of the period

=:r': Gruss book vatue ofnlthtangtbie ﬁxed assets at the end of the periad N

- increase
- decrease

‘computer software |

Total intangible
fixed assefs

6. Impairment wnte-downs at the end of the penod

7. Net book value of lntang:hle fixed assets atthe begmnmg of the peried : _'

fintangibls fixed assets at the end ofthe period

%

27
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12.Business combinations and minority shares purchase

_ Gooawill from consolidation

31.12.200

DipolSp.zoo. e
Mercury Energia Sp. 7 0.0. i Wspolnicy, Sp. Komandytowa

437

Total carrying value

569

31922005

_ Goodwill from consolidation (changes)

31.12.200

6

31.12.2005

Goodwill at the beginning of the period

132

437

Decrease due fo impairment writeoff .
Decrease due fo sales

Goodwil at the ‘the period

iFair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. i Wspélnicy, Sp.

iKomandytowa as of the acquisition date is as follows:

' "'f"(')arryihg vaiue Fair value at
f . acquisition date |

aingives
Tredereceivebles
T q[WAssets

:éaﬂk loans and borrowings

e

288
350
22517
20 057

Trade liabilities

181

Other financial liabilties

Provsiosn for deferredtax
Tofalliabiles o n

| 2914
663

§Nei assste o

 Goodwill at acquisition date _

106
137,

Cashinflow dueto acquisition is as follows: |

Netcash taken over together with subsidiary

On October 1, 2007 the Company took over control on Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. | Wspdlnicy, Sp.
Komandytowa. The control takeover was done by setting the unlimited partner Mercury Energia Sp. z
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0.0. of the company Mercury Energia Sp. z 0.0. i Wspolnicy, Sp. Komandytowa. Mercury Energia Sp.
z 0.0. is fully dependant subsidiary of Polish Energy Partners SA. Aa a resuit of the above transaction
the share in capital and share in profit did not change in comparison to the prior period. Due to the fact
that in 2006 the share in profit of the Group in Mercury Energia Sp. z o.0. i Wspdlinicy, Sp.
Komandytowa did not change teh moment of control takeover does not affect the Group's reported net
profit. Had the combination taken place at the begining oif the year the net profit would not have
changed but the revenues from continued activity would have amounted to 63 714 thousand zlotys.

In the goodwill amounting to 300 thousand zlotys there are some intangibles, which can not be
separated and valued reliably in the subsiadiary due to its character. The items in this goodwill include
busienss concept of Mercury project.
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

14_Fixed assets — ownership structure

__ Tangible fixed assets - Ownership structure

31122006 31.12.2005
...103064 55428
103705, 55925

-~ on Ieaseagreement N S
gible fixed assets

15.Long term receivables

31422006 | 31.42.2005

a} From affiliates
b} From others - leasing
Long term receivables, net R
¢} Provisions for long term receivables ,

Long term receivables, gross

LY
I
L2505 281587,

16.Long term financial assets

_ Longterm financial assets

31122006 21.12.2005

a) in subsidiaries R 516, 198
b) in associates _ e B9
-loans graned 5439
c} in other entities -
- shares

Total long-term financial assets e oHe 6398

17.Long term financial assets
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand ziotys)

IShares in affiliates

“ No. .
: : Name of the Company with indication of kegal form

NERGOPEP Spoka z ograniczong odpowiedziainoScig

2 INTERPEP Spdtka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia, *}

'SATURN MANAGEMENT Spotka z ograniczong
dpowiedzialnoscia *)

: : x , ; ‘
: ofher equily including:
¢ indication of other sources o_. : Unpaid share
revatUalion book vaiue of | percentaga sharein ;  shareinvolesin ! tolel equity of the an ital capital Reserve ;
adjustements shares capital ¢ shrshatders meeting i sgnificant influence than entity are caplal ; {nagative capita Profitoss w_.o_.nn
: stated It secilon [} of k} amount) . ‘Net profitfioss
previous years
50 100,00 100,00 1o data 28 ; @ (19) )
50 100,00 100,00 no data 49 50 - M (1)
50 100,00 100,00: no dala 248; - - 198 - 198

4 Notos Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia”)

28

51,00 51,00 o data

50

mzﬁﬁé Energia Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig®)

6 E.W.G Spatka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoScig®)

50

100,00 100,00 rie data

103

no data

5133

50:

nterpen, EC Zakrzow Spolka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoécig®)

8 Beta Spdlka z ograniczong odpowiedziainoscig™)

50

26

51,20

100,00 o data

no data

50 i ) ‘

e .a 3 - “) )

e mc _ - - - )
- mc Lv mom ")

”J 6 data

40
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

reported as of 31.12.2005
mzmi in affiliates

Name of the Company wilh indication of lagal form

1 ENERGOPEP Spéfka z ograniczong odpowisdzialnogeig )

2 INTERPEP Spétka z ograniczong cdpowiedzialnodeia *)

Affiaia fype (subsidiary, fointy conrolied |
entity, associate), with destription of direct

Seat of lhe campany :
and indirect relations H

Desaription of achily company i sxcluded from corsolidation)

axluded from consolidation due to immaterial

rendering od services in the energy sector subsidiary Fnancial data

exiuded from consolidagon due fo immaterial

Jul, Wiertnicza 169, 02-952 Warszawa  rendering od services in the energy sector subsidiary financial data
i : =

3 SATURN MANAGEMENT Spéka z ograniczong odpowiedzialinoscig *)

: Mercury Energia - Przedsiebiorstwe Predukeyjno Uslugowe i

. xo3maﬁ%m *

4 Posrednictwa Comax Spalka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia , Spotka

exuded from conselidation dug S.W.s.a_u_mam_
finangial data

ul. Wiertnicza 169, 02-952 Warszawa :rendering od services in the energy sector subsidiary
exiuded from consolidation due fo immaterial

mqw:n_mmmn od services in the energy mmnaqm assaciate financial data

ul. Wandy 16, 40-322 Katewice

5 Mars Management, s.r.0*)

consalidation mathod used  equly mathod or indication ihat the;

date ol efective
+ controlf jointly control
: signifeant inflsance

28.03.2002

129.07.2003

24.09.2001

12301.2004

| vaukofshores ol ;
adjustements

historical cost

inancial, ecenomic and organizational
‘advisory services, wholesale aclivities, | subsidiary
isenvice and sales intermediary i

exduded from consclidation due 10 immaterial

Ostrava, 28.1ijna 270/854 kod 708 00 financial data

20.09.2004

B:Notos Sp. z 0.0.%)

exiuded wo:wmomwm_&mn% due 1o immatenal
m:m:nm.m_ data

120.12.2005

Al Wojska Palskiega 156 Szczecin rendering od services in the energy sector associate

uu. unaudited financial statements
¥ no data

revaluafion . book valuaof :

sharss

45
5¢

5¢

756

28

25
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additionat Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

[Shares in affiliates

n 0 p T ! s

Liabilities and provisions of the entity, including: receivables of the enilty, including:

dividend received or dug’
from the entity during
the last financial year |

P Narne of the Company with indication of legal form: | ; : ; ; lotal assets sales revenue | Unpaid by the issu

, _ : f the enti © shere capial
fong ferm kablifes ©  shor: tem fabilifes ' long e iabilies | shorttom iabiies  * oo [ samcan

=y

ENERGOPEP Sgotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig ™) 1 -

3]

INTERPEP Spotka z ograniczona cdpowiedzialnoscia ™) 4 -

3 SATURN MANAGEMENT Spddka z ograniczang odpowiedzialnodeig *) 93 -

209 . - 118

ercury Energia - _uam%mmg%?o Produkcyino Uslugowe i ‘ : ;
4 Pogrednictwa Comax Spolka z ograniczang odpowiedzialnoscia , Spaka 17 235 15119 2 jmm 2325 - 2 ummw 19 026; 45
‘komandytowa *} : : : :

m Mars Management, 5.r.0% b * J .J, b} ) b b J

: & /Notos Sp.z0.0% = .J“ ) J )}

*) unaudited financiat statements
*} no data
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

18.Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets

31.12.2006 31.12.2005

‘a) capitalized expense for wind farm development T e3s2 308
‘b) cost reimbursement ‘ !
Total other fixed assets ) e gogt 632;

19.Inventory

_Inventory
31122006 | 31.12.2005
ajraw materials 2 9
b) goods for resale i 1908 1945
c) inventory prepaid Y 2 N )
Total inventory 1932, .. 1986

20.Short term receivables

__Short term receivables

31422006

a)frader receivables e o 17962 )
fomaffiates 0
- other e i MT952
) Cﬂ' fECEiVable U S | S
C)ofherreceivables 2708
- from other taxes
from fi nancnai Iease
-other

. 448

17732

16585

15566

511

d) prowsmns for doubtfui debt ] o . B 6290

Total short term receivables, gross T

21.Short term financial assets

.. Short- term f‘,ﬂﬁnc'a' assets
31.12.2006

31 12 2005

36087,

3 5461

Total shortterm financial assets SR S R R 1):4

17 859§
17 842
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Polish Energy Partners Capitat Group
Consclidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

22.0Other short term assets

.. Othershorttermassets
31422006 | 31.12.2005

o) acoied incorie”
b) cost reimbursement

23.Accrued income and deferred cost

Accrued mcome P P —— cost o

31122006 | 31.12.2005

)inswance R o 914

b} prepayments 3

934

218

3

c) projects settled in next periods 4
d) ohter 528

39

I accrued income 2

24.Cash and cash equivalents

_ Cashandcashequivalents
e 31122006 0 31.12.2005
h and cash equivalents _ 25079 41601,
- Cash in hand and in bank 25079 38 082
- deposits and investment funds shares - . 3519
Total cash and cash equivalents 25079 41601

nddeferedcost [ 149

1194
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2008
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

* Based on the resolution of General Shareholders Meeting of Polish Energy Partners S.A. forn august 24, 2004 and based on the decision of Polish Security
and Exchange Commission from December 10, 2004 shares from issues A to L becamne shares to the bearer.

** the split in nominal value of the shares was registered in KRS on September 2, 2004.

**Company registration date in KRS, as of that date the nominal value of one share amounted to 100 zlotys, the lowering of the nominal value of one share to
48 zlotys was registered in KRS on August 27, 2001.

**+ in 1997 the Company issued 1000 shares of class A, which were entitled to dividend from 1987, the next issues which were made in 1998 entitled to
dividend from 1998. On 28th of November 1898 all of the shares issued up to this date were designated as A class

4 till the date of teh financial statement the last share capital increase was not registered
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

Shareholders owning over 5% of total number of shares:

Shareholder - . Numberof shares Number of votes Share
Pioneef Pekao Investment Management | 1030 0.34 h 1 030034 582%
PZU Asset Management 1200 000 1200000 654%
SICAV IXIS AM EMERGING EUROPE 1034 920 1034920 564%
Generali OFE 2062 464 2082464 11,24%
Millennium Funds* 933 186 933186 5,09%
Other {free float) 12 082 037 12 082 037 65,87%
Total 18 342 641 18 342 641 100,0%

* Funds managed by Milenpium TFI, ie. Millennium FIO  Akcji,
Millennium FIO Zréwnowazony oraz Millennium F1O Stabiinego Wzrostu
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

Deferred tax
Consolitated balance sheet

31.12.2006

_ fxedassets

receivables

31.12.2005

. 0%

_..cash,

_ Consolidated proft and loss account _

. 31.12.2008

31.12.2005

L 31122006

Goodwill

L 31422008

loans

lease receivalbes _

 liabilities

__ Gross deferred tax liability

receivables .
loans }
fiabilities 583 697
i provisions 1169 885
... lease asstes .48 600 10
loss for previous periods A -
_Acruals and deferrals o by
Gross deferred tax asset ) 53 046 158
Deferred tax expense (533) 7
:Net deferred tax : 1385 - - -
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

'EFFECTIVE TAX RATE 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

income tax expense in profit and loss account 1304 3184

Currentmcometaxexper;se o . o ,‘ 1837 460

Defered income tax ._ (533 2324

346 2380

{Tax on earnings before tax at 16% fax rate
{(2005:19%)

Adjustments to current income tax resulting
fom priorperiods e e )
Tax non deductible costs, including a1 679
undocumented costs 5
costs not refated o revenues . L S
costsfromotherperiod 4
payment for non obligatory societies | e
expense for owners and members of SE - N2
__loan revaluation e
1% sharfs in tax profitfioss of limited iability 19? g'
companies - — . e
_ dividends 10 22

(71) (192)




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
{in thousand zlotys)

27.Provisions

1 3422008 | 31422005 |

‘Long-term provisions

Short-term provisions

Y S
Other provisions 2445
Total short-term provisions S

Movements in other fong-term and short-term provisions

Balance at the begining of period B B ). |
creation of provisions 1T

_release of provisions B T )

use of provisions I R )
_ movement provisions to long-term provisions

__Mmovement provisions to shortterm provisions .~ |

Balance at the end of period

The balance of other short term provisions includes provision for litigayion with EUR in the amount of 731
thd. zlotys and provsions related to the costs of termination of the project EC Wizdw in the amount of 1
062 thd. zlotys.

28.Long term liabilities {ageing)

Long term liabilities {ageing)

| 3422005

31.12.2006 restated

I 64048 42776
'b) from 3 to 5 years - 63 319 47007
CoverSyears . 133640 142783
Long-term liabilities, Total ' 266005, 232656,

) from 1 t0 3 years
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlofys)

4908

PLN

PEKAQ S.A. 4063

Warszawa PLN WIBOR 1-month plus margin 59 August 2015

Collaterai
osnc oﬁmxozmsm_m

nmmmaz 3 qmnm_,..mwmmm awman 8 Em mnamamaw 3_, :mm; and m_mﬂza_a_ defiveries concluded wmgmmz mmmacumu mu N o o mo .HN_aSm mw xosm:aﬁosm a zmam ﬁmmcm w A, Ecotex Polska mu zo. c _Ao:m_m:m.mu..m.o 0.

mmm stration ﬁ_mamm Eu to the maoza of a: assets Q EC Jeziomna which are used to mmzmas m:a deliveries of m_mosowe m_a :mmﬁ mommnzmﬁ with cmmm n 2 _=mEm:am uo_é_ M 413 Eo:mmza v_.z
m_mamm %Ssm amount of 4,408 thousand PLN e e e e e et

_submission to execution and submission to execution to hand over the piedged assefs

repayment in instalments, last principal

BRE Bank SA. | Warszawa . 74 mg. EUR 211363 {58724 EUR| - basic rate EURIBOR 1-month plus margin 4,0 is paid on 20.12.2015

Q:&ma_ .

muamsma s__m_ mmm mm«_w m.> mm_mezm 6 Em_zmm;_nm hanik accounts - projects Satumn T_:n_,mq

‘Agreement for pledge over shares in the Saturn Management Sp. z o.0. together with the transfer of PEP S.A. Rights

.»mﬂmm_.:mm; with BRE relating to the pledge over bank account tegether with the | power of mnova. for this mono::n
Agreement um.a_mm: _umv 5 > ‘and BRE Bank m A. realting to securing mmm_@ssmwa Satum project

mccammmwoz ”

Guarantees assignment ynsm.«:m.a.aq transfer of rights and ciaims frem granted by the business pariner
Agreement on mortgage on ﬂmﬁmam_ cmsﬂaa and o:s.mawmu Q Em b 5 3« BRE Bank

:Agreement on cession of rights from agreements with Mondi, Construction agreement and significant agreements with construction companies, insurance agreements up fo the amounts resulting from debt outstanding

w_u_maum on SM mw. z 0.0. rights as the unlimited partner of the Subsidiary

m:ma_.;mm o* Mondi _umoxmm_:m ms__mo_m S5.A, cn to the amount cm_zm minimum of : amount of three months costs of debt tand the amount of 3,000 thousand Naew tl 20 December 2016
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

BRE BANK SA Warszawa 9 ocow PLN 6243 PLN = WIBOR 1-miesipczry plus marza banku

Coliateral

6,4

W repayment in instalments, last principal
is paid on 20.02.2010

_u_m%m Notarial >Q

mm@mm#m on w_m&m on enterprise 8 mco thd. PLN

Agreement on cession for security
Power of attorney to dispose of Em E:ma account

mmnm:_ 266 005
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2008
Additional Notes and Explanations
{(in thousand zlotys)

PEKAC S.A. , Warszawa 3953 PLN WIBOR 1-month plus margin : 8,7 August 2015

‘Collateral )
Oss c “2 mxn:msmm .

‘cession of receivables related to the agreements for heal and m_mnmzn_q deliveries concluded between m:mwmonmv m_o 2 0.0. EC Jezioma Sp. WAosm_._&.Sém a Metsa Tissue 5.A., Ecotex Polska mn zo.0, xom.ﬁm:m mn Z0.0.
‘ tration Pledge up to Smmao: nt of on assets of EC Jeziomna which are used to generate and defiveries oﬁ electricity | and heat together with cession of insurance uo__o< 1113 thousand PLN

repayment in instalments, last principal

| 55.423 Em. :
” is paid on 20.12.2015

74.600 tys. EUR 213922 EUR ! - basic rate EURIBOR 1-month plus margin

BRE Bank S.A. Warszawa 4.0

_uos_mq of mno:..m« to di _muOmm Q the current account and amE sefrvicing account in BRE Bank S.A.
[agreement with BRE Bank S.A. xm_m ing to maintianing banlk mnnocsmm projects Satumn i Jupiter,

&mﬁmﬂma for n_mamm over shares in the Satumn _,\_m:mmmama mu z 0.0. fegether with the transfer of PEP S.A. Rights

‘Pledge on PEP S.A. rights as the limited pariner of the Subsidiary and PEP S.A, Rights

”>m reement with BRE refating to the u_mamm c<mﬁ bank account together with the power of attorney for th mnno%”
.mmamammﬁ between PEP S.A. and BRE mmzx S.A real ing to securing mmm_msamsm Saturn project

>u reement for m_maum Over assets _wooﬁoﬂmﬂmn i the company's enterprise - value of the pledge depends on m:m way of its S:mcanwo: but not mare Msmm Bw Qoo Eo_ﬁmsa mcx
>m raement between SM sp. kom. And BRE relating to Registration Pledge on Em rig| Zm 8 bak account acess SmmEQ _.z_m: power oﬁ mﬂc..:m« up 8 Em maoﬁm 9“
-Submission {o execution to BRE Bank S.A

>m am:._mi on transfer for mmnE_? no<m::m all 0563 and Eﬁzﬁmﬁnm:.mc_mm up to the amount

‘Ag awsma on :m:ﬂmq aq security, covering all current and Tuture receivables up 8 M:m maoca
o¢mﬂm=ﬁmmm mmmmm:_.zma >uamam=n for transfer of rights and claims from granted S_ the business partner
>9mm5mao= mortgage on umamam_ usufruct and c:s.ma: of Ewu idings for BRE mmsx
Morigage for BRE and Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufhau in the amount of amounting to EUR 45 miliion each.
+Agreement on cession of rights from General Agreement up to the amounts resuiting from debt o:ﬁm:a_mm

m>m8m3m3 on ¢ession of rights from agreements with Mondi, Construction agreement and significant agreements with construction companies, insurance agreements up to the amouints resulfing from debt outstanding

:Pledge on SM Sp. z 0.0. rights as the unlimited nm:umﬂo:zm Subsidiary

ocmﬁmamm 2 z_oaa_ _umaxmm_:@ mi_mn_m m.. A mu to the amount wm_zn minimem of : amount of three months costs of debt tand the amount of 3,000 thousand N_oy\m till 20 December Noa
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations

{(in thousand zlotys)

30.Short term liabilities

_ Shortterm abifes

31.12.2006

| 31422005
restated

2588

a) bank loans and bor T

b) trade payables
¢} income tax liabilities o 152
d) other liabilities 223
- taxes, customs and social security liabilites ¢ 1752
__ - other financial liabilties L
- payroll liabitites , 249 01
- other financial iabilities . I .. . S -
Total short term liabiities . 366713 26527

31.Short term liabilities from bank ioans and borrowings

reported as of 31122000 ... _ .

‘Short term liabifities from foans and borrowings

. Nameofthe
Company with
indication of

Seat ! Loan/Credtt limit as in the agreement Amount of loanicredit {0 repay Condition of inferest : Repayment dale

degdforn U hewandzoty ey owendZo ety
. BREBankSA | Warszawa 44 851 PLN TR PLN tong t_erm debt (amount payabie within one
: : : : year time) :
Coffateral

Prasented i long-term Habilities note

h .i.l.c.)r.»é.terh& debt (aﬁno'ﬁnt payable within one
‘year time) :

 BREBankSA. « Warszwa 13500 . PIN | 573 . PN
:Cobateral

Presented in long-term liabiiies note

‘long term debt {amount payable within oneﬂ

PEKAOSA. | Warszawa | 4506 % PLN o553 PLN ong X

iCaIIateraI

Presented in long-term liabilities note
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

iequal amount in PLNE

BRE BANK Warszawa | curvent account { WIBOR 1-manth + bank

of 453thd. EUR e - : margin to 31.03.2007

Collateral
éSecuzity assignment of rights of the borrower from the: Project documentation other than Diligent Execution Guaraniess, Warranties and Obligatiens of the
:Parent Companies

German Guarantee Assignment Agreement of the borrower’s rights to Diligent Execution Guarantees, Warranties and Obligations of the Parent Companies :

Eln blarco bill of exchange issued by the borrower together with the bill of exchange declaration of the borrower

ZPower of attorney for the Bank to dispose of af of the Bank accounts of the borrower held ir: Bank

z;Submission 0 execution according to the Articke 97 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1997 until March 31, 2008,

| WIBOR {-month + bank |

BRE BANK Warszawa = 3.500thd. PLN VAT Lo - . ! fo 31.03.2007
: : : margin

Collateral

‘Statement of the apprepriate tax office, presented on borrower's request, including an obligation to refurn the VAT on VAT Account, and in case of not
;obtaining such statement a statement of the borrower including assurance of returning VAT on VAT account o, if obtaining such statements would not be
possible, an obiigation of the borrower to make transfers of the amounts acquired as VAT return on VAT account, according to the bank accounts agreement

“Security assignment of ights of the borrower from the Project documentation oter than Diigent Exacution Guaraniees, Warranties and Obligators of he
.Parent Companies

German Guarantee Assignment Agreement of the borrower's rights to Diligent Execution Guarantees, Warranties and Obligations of the Parent Companies
iCession of rights pertaning to PEP from Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie S.A. Relating fo General Agreement

Power of atlomey for 8RE Bank to dispose of all of the bank accounts of the boower held in bank

Submission io execufion according to the Articke 87 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1997 until March 31, 2008,

BRE BANK E Warszawa | 74.800 thd.EUR nvestment deht 17786 | 4160 thd. EUR fong t.erm debt {amount payable within ane
! : year fime)
Collateral

EPresen%ed in long-term liabilities note
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consglidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

3 : : : repayment in
Raiffeisen Bank Warszawa | 21 600 j EUR 2057 EUR - basic rate EURIBO-R% ﬁ_astfalme.nts, _Iast
Polska SA ! : i : ; 1-month plus margin - principal is paid on
: : ‘ ; 31.12.2021
Coliateral
Presented in long-term liabilities note
- e | . -
Polska SA Warszawa 3.000 PLN PLN :_ WIBOR 1-week + margin fo 30.06.2007
Coffateral

agreement on transfer for collateral of receivables frem insurance agreement

agreement on cession for security of receivables and right from project agreements

agreement on cession of receivables and rights from guarantee

Power of attorney fo dispose of the current account

Power of atiorney to dispose of the cutrent accounts

Agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge cn receivables due from hank account
Agreementw;th Raiffeisers Bank Poléké SA re!alir.]é to .registratit.};\ ph;;jge un .recei\;ablc.es due frem bank accounts
gcement i Rsfcson Brk Polska SA rdltng oogittonpedgeenasses.
s.ﬁi;mi.ssic.).r{ i.o.e.xecution ofthe bo;r;\.m.er S

twe fégistraﬁion pﬁeéges; on fixed assets of .DIPOL. sp z .o..u:.F.o.{ i.%;iﬁ.éiée.n Bank Polska SA

regist;e;t.i;m ple&ge %ér éaiffeisen Bank Palska SA

six registration pledges for Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA

submission to execution of PEP SA

submission to execution of PEP SA

Registration plegde agree'ment 6n shares in DIPOL's'p. z29.0. Cbncluﬁed betweén PEP SA and Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA - value of the pledge depends
on the way _of use but nct more than 33,5_25_ thousand EUR
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

Raiffeisen Bank ! Warszawa 17.000 LN . PLN WIBOR 1-menth + bank :
PolskaSA | : H §

. to 31.03.2007
margin

Collaterat

JDisposition of the borrower submitted to the Tax Office in order to transfer VAT retums to the VAT account

Agresment with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge o receivables due from bank account

Power of attorney to dispose of the VAT account in Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA

:Submission to execution according to the Article 87 of the Banking Act as of August 20 1997 until March 31, 2000.

; repayment in

| WIBOR 1-month + bank |  instaiments, last

| margin | principal is paid on
L 20022010

BREBANK SA | Warszawa | 9000 PN 238 PN

‘Collateral

;Presensed in long-term liabilities note

Total . 25888

reportedas of 31122005 oo
‘Short term liabilties from loans and borrowings
{ Nameofthe i

%{;g;s:g;’nw;? ; Seat | Loan/Credit limit as in the agreement Amount of loan/credit io Eepay: Condifion of ineresl  Repayment dale

j ]egaiform “

Cbowedzoy  areney  ewendzo ey ol
! : : ‘Jong term debt (amount payable within one

BREBankSA = Warszawa = 11851 PLN Do1as0 PLN jong ¥
: : : -year tima}

Collateral

‘Presented in long-term Habilities rote

.icmg termdeb! (érﬁounﬁ payab!e {éi.iﬁé'ﬁ'éﬁ'e'
year time)

BREBank SA.  Warszaws - 13500 PLN 1134 PLN
fCoI!atera!

‘Presented in long-term abiliiies note

. :Ior;g tefm deb.tu(a;l.oﬂhi pa;fnable'within one

PEKAOSA.  Warszawa | 4906 ‘ PLN L om PLN | ond
; : ‘ ‘year time)

‘Collateral

?Presented in leng-term liabilities note
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consclidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2008

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

?equal amount in PLN? . equal amount in long term debt {amount payable within one

BREBANK = Warszawa ' OF 4,800 thi,EUR | investment debt 15461 : PLN 4,006 thd. year time)
; ‘ S S EUR
;Collaieral
‘Presented in long-term labiliies note
E - . - e Re e e et e mee e e g5 e o e g 25 e e 255 e 4 e 8 8 2 148 124 4214 11 824 e o1 B A1 4 S 14 e S8R0 0 e
| Raiffeisen Bank | ; f : .
PolskaSA Warszawa 3.000 PLN - PLN : WIBOR 1-week + margin to 30.06.2007
ECollateraI

agresment on transfer for collateral of receivables from insurance agreement

Power of attorney to dispose of the current account

Power of attorney to dispose of the current accounts

Agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to regisiration pledge on teceivables due from bank account

Agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to regisiration pledge on seceivables due from bank accounts
Agreement with Raiffelsen Bank P;I;ka. éA relatmg ;o reglszratlon ;i.éd;;;or;.assets. |

submissmnto e;écution of the borrower -

two registration pledgés or.m ﬁ)itet.j ;;se!s of D!POL spz 00 FG!‘ Ra;ffezsen é;i.n.k.PoI%a. SA

reglstfalaon pEedge .f(;; .I%a.if.féis.en.Bank. F.’ols.i(a SA

six registration pledges for Raiffelsen Bank Polska SA

submission to execution of PEP SA

submission to axecution of PEP SA

Registratior: plegde agreement on shares in DIPOL sp. 20.0. Concluded between PEP SA and Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA - value of the pledge depends
on the way of use but not more than 33,525 thousand EUR

guarantee agreement between PEP SA and Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA.

Raifloisen Bank . czowa | 17000 PLN C 27 PLN | WIBOR1month +bank | g5 31.63.2007
Polska SA i : margin

Collateral

Disposition of the borrower submitted to the Tax Office in order to transfer VAT returns to the VAT account
Agreement with Raiffeisen Bark Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due from bank account

Power of atforney to dispose of the VAT account in Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA

:Submissicn to execution accerding to the Article 97 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1997 until March 31, 2009.

Total | - 20490
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

32.Accrued cost and deferred income

. 31.12.2006

‘Long-term accruals and deferred income

and deferred income total

Long-term accru

L ss Akl

Short-term accruals and deferred income

futures salaries and bonuses

)
e

costs of outsourced services

197

951

other

7583

B

:d) holiday pay accrgjat

o

d) deferred income - gran

1904

'Short-term accruals and deferred income, total

33.Assets and liabilities of social fund

79

__SOCIALFUND ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31122006

‘a) loans granted to employees
b) cash

o)lisbifies tothe fund

fees due fo the social funde in current year

34.Contingent liabilities

* Contingent Liabilities to affiliates
a) guarantees granted
b) other (due from limited fiability sum in LLP):

4016

31422005

135

2

2.2006

39310

31122005
21572

21611
39310

- to subsidiaries

39310

38 650

-fo associates

660

c) court cases

Tota contmgenthabmnestoaff;]lates e e

61315

Guarantees granted:

PEP SA issued a guarantee for BRE BANK SA with seat in Warsaw. The guarantee issued amounts
to 10.500.000 PLN and secures the liability of "Mercury Energia - Przedsigbiorstwo Produkcyjno-
Ustugowe i Posrednictwa COMAX Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia” Spotka komandytowa to
BRE BANK SA which results from bank loan in the amount of 9.000.000 PLN. The liability of PEP SA
ceases within the period of 2 years started from completion of Mercury project but not later than June
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Paolish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additional Notes and Explanations
{in thousand zlotys)

30, 2007. PEP SA did not receive any guarantee fee. PEP S A is a 50% shareholder in "Mercury
Energia - Przedsiebiorstwo Produkcyjno-Ustugowe i Posrednictwa COMAX  Spdlka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig” Spotka komandytowa.

On November 23, 2005 PEP SA concluded with Raiffeisen Bank Polska with its registered office in
Warsaw guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the guarantee agreement PEP granted fo Raiffeisen Bank
Polska guarantee which relates to the loan agreement concluded between Dipol Sp. Z 0.0, as
borrower and Raiffeisen Bank Polska as lender. The guarantee granted by PEP in the amount of up to
1,350,000 EURO can be exercised till July 31, 2007 and in the amount of up to 5,800,378 PLN can be
exercised till the day which is six months from the date of statements issued by EkoFundusz
Foundation about final settlement of the grant. PEP SA did not receive any reimbursement for the
guarantee granting. PEP SA is 100% owner of Dipol Sp. £ o.0.

On May 22, 2006 PEP S.A. issued bill of exchange in blanco up to the amount of 1,865,500.00 PLN,
as collateral for the grant received by Saturn Management Sp.zo.0. iWspolnicy, Spdtka
komandytowa from National Fund of Environmental Protection and Maritime Economy Warsaw. The
period of validity of this contingent liability resulting from issue of this bill of exchange amounts to 5
years from the date of completion of the project which was subsidized.

Additionally bank loans collaterai is contingent liability presented in the Note 28.

| egal proceedings in court:

- Court proceedings initiated by PKP CARGO SA of Warsaw as the plaintiff, against PEP SA for
payment of PLN 148,546.28 with interest. The litigation was raised on October 24th 2003. On
November 10th 2004, the Regional Court in Katowice issued a judgment whereby the Company
was obliged to pay the disputed amount. On November 25th 2004, the Company appealed
against the ruling and maotioned for it to be reversed and for the claim against the Company to
be overruled, or for the judgment to be reversed and for the case to be submitted for re-
examination. On December 13, 2005 the Appealing Court in Katowice changed the above
mentioned judgment in the way that the Company (together with Katowicki Holding Weglowy
S.A)) is obliged to pay to PKP Carge SA the amount of 60,577.15 PLN plus interest calculated
from June 26, 2003 and costs of court proceedings in the amount of 1,444 PLN. Moreover the
Company was adjudged the costs of appealing proceedings in the amount of 5,686 PLN. Due to
the fact that based on the confract between the Company and Katowicki Holding Weglowy S.A.
the Company was obliged to cover the coal {ransportation costs, the Company on January 9,
2006 paid the adjudged amount to PKP Cargo SA less the costs of appealing proceedings. PKP
Cargo S.A. claimed cassation from the above mentioned judgment. The copy of the claim was
received by the Company. On Ociober 8, 2006 the Majority Court rejected the cassation claim
of PKP Cargo 5.A.

- Court proceedings mitiated by Zbigniew Schczyk as the plaintiff, for declaring the notice of
termination of an employment contract as ineffective. The court of first instance rejected the
claim. The plaintiff appealed against the ruling which was rejected. On June 21, 2006 the
appealing of the plaintiff was rejected. The plaintiff claimed cassation from the above mentioned
judgment to the Majority Court.

. On May 16th 2002, the President of the URE issued a decision No. OWA 25/2002 on imposing
a penalty of PLN 856,000 on the Company for failure to comply with the obligation to submit a
tariff used by the Company for approval by the President of URE. As a result of the appeal filed
by the Company against the President of URE's decision, on June 25th 2003 the Anti-Trust and
Consumer Protection Court of the District Court in Warsaw modified the decision by reducing
the amount of penalty fo PLN 60,000. In May 2004, as a result of the last resort appeal filed by
the President of URE, the Supreme Counrt reversed the judgment of the Aniti-Trust and
Consumer Protection Court of the District Court in Warsaw and referred the case for re-trial to
the Anti-Trust and Consumer Protection Court of the District Court in Warsaw. On April 4th 2005
(after the date of this Prospectus’ update), the Regional Court in Warsaw reversed URE's
decision and referred the case for re-examination. On March 7, 2006 the Appealing Court
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reversed the judgment of the Regional Court and referred the case for re-examination by the
Regional Court. According to the judgment date September 21, 2006 the fine for the Company
has been lowered to the amount of 723 thousand zlotys. The Company appealed from the
sentence of the Regional Court. Case in progress.

- On October 17, 2005 the Company received a lawsuit, in which K&K Consultants Sp. z o.0.
claims from the Company 394 thousand zloty plus interest as a reimbursement for termination
by the Company of agreement concluded with K&K Consultants Sp. z 0.0.. The Company does
not accept the claim of K&K Consultants Sp. z 0.0. On June 21, 2006 the Regional Court in
Warsaw has issued the sentence in which it cancels the claim of K&K Consultants Sp. z 0.0. in
total. The information possessed by the Company indicates that there was no appealing from
the above sentence by K&K Consultants Sp. z 0.0. so the sentence is now in force.

35.S8ales revenue

Net revenues from sales of goods (éif&cture - by type)
31122006 31.12.2005

LI

e 2 _ 23 219§

revenues from conculiting proj ects e 4088
revenues from sales of over standard quahty and guarantee of delwenes 351
;revenues from cost relmbursement and reinvoicing - -
revenues fmm easing : and operating of the leased assets o 32540,
sale of QOOdS : 65
-revenues | from 002 em|ss;on rights sale -
Total net revenues from safes of goods 1

36.Costs by kind

 Costsbykind ..
31.42.2008 3122008
2) depreciation o . 308 285
b)material and energyused 9 18370
¢) external services 6368,
d) taxes and fees 2176; 1882
-e) payroll, including: 13985 -
__Mmanagement options 1981 103
'f) somal security and payroll related charges _ 2074”,” 20
g other costs by kind 1433 961
‘Total costs by kind o s6113 43282
Value of sold goods and materials (positveamounty . 18 278
Change in value of work in progress and finished goods (39 (369)
Cost of asset construction for own purposes (negafive amount) - o - -
Selling costs (negative amount) e . -
‘General and administration costs (negafive amounty Lo (14051 (13152)
Cost of goods sold OO | 31801 35043
Total costofgoodssold i ¥MBOY 35043
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37.0ther operating income

reversal of impairment wrtie-downs and release of provisions

- provisions for doubtfuldebt
- other write-offs

b)oth er,mciudmg e 1

31.12.2005
500
288
217

__-feceived penalties and compensaon 4

__-accelerated grant sefflement

-revenue from lease of fixed assets

856
360,

-other

-proft from sales of nonfinancia fred assets

Total other operating income

423

73

38.0ther operating costs

Other operating expense

a) revaluation of assets, including:

1.12.2006

ivables

b) other, including:

. _-costs of Warsaw Stock Exchange entry

Total other operating expense

3% Financial income

a) financial income from dividends and share in profit
‘b} due from loans granted

-penalties, compensations

. 31.12.2006

31.12.2005 |

528
A
55,
432
554
il
A

483:
-provisons o toez
7
082

31422005
S

118
757

c)other interest -leasing
inferest due from lease of assets

1oes
2066

foreign exchange

-unrealized

(600).

10256
_.2100

13 783
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40.Financial costs

| 31.12.2006 © 31.12.2005
a) financial costs from interest | 10632 9623
b) foreignexchange 480, 2579
c) increase of revaluation provision - 52
d} provisons and other costs od credits o 330 266
‘Total financial costs 11 605! 12616
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41.Current income tax

) Current income tax expense

31.12.2006 31.12.2005

1. Consofidated gross proft{lrJSS} .. .' . S 952 ,1.5.8.02?
2. Consolidation adjustements : e B2 (B414)
3. Differences batween gross proflt and tax base for corporate income tax B!

- revenue to be recogmzed in next fiscal penod

- dswdends from Ilmlted Ilabllmes compames

- release of provisions

receweci grants _
- seﬂlement of tem;)orary dlﬁerences from prewous years
- zepayment of principal i financial lease payment

- settlement of revenues included in prior period

s 752.. BN (]
1917 63

_-foreign exchange from balance sheetvaluaton T T ey -
- other income {65 . (241)
- valuation of receivables (366 -

29 o
(580)

e g P o

.b) costs - . - . foast 21298
* - undocumented costs _ _ _ z 42
: _—cos%s nc{ related tc revenues _ : 411 120;
-cosisfrom other perlod N '

... payments k t° PFRC’N T
- paymentfornon obligatorysocietes
- expense for owners and memberso§SB S
- insurance pokicy of management board
- accounting depreciation
.2 tax depreciation S
- costs - hqmdatlon costs
- cosls - capital part of lease
- osis - revaluation of cash
-costs -reserves )
- costs - valuation of receivables 0
E,_vcosts revaluatiion of seﬁ!emenis -
- costs - salarses - paid in due date
- costs - fax deductible from sales of heat and e eairlmty
| -costs-ioansrevaluafion
- cosis - iosses ]
. - cosis - provisiosn for honuses
) -costs - provisiosn for fixed assets
) —costs interest pazci . o
- costs ized in assets leased in financial lease
- costs n assefs leased in financiailease . 19
- costs - sefflement o costs related to assefs in firancial lease T T e g0 T 66e)

- costs - movment of other costs in accordance with payment date - D R
s
595 -

- cosis - balance sheet valuation of loans

- costs - setﬂement of costs |ncurred in prior pericd
: - costs refated to revenues diring construction pertod e
- costs - foreign exchange from balance sheetvaluation
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; Tax basis after tax Joss

5 Income tax at current tax rate 19%

76 increase, iowenng tax deductlons )

: Cur_fent income tax expense in the declaratlun to tax authonty
B.Income tax at effective tax rate19% e
9. Tax aﬁg% rate (2005 19%) e

Currant 1ncome {ax expense

Change in deferred tax balance ‘ o
‘Income tax repoded in profit and loss account

42.Cash flows — explanatory notes

Cash flows from operation activity - other adjustements

3221 3 572_%;
34122006 | 31.12.2005
T

(G¥y . 234

1304, 3184

31.12.2006

3, 12 2005

‘management options
‘sale of assets under cos
1mpairment write down
.Grants received

Totalother adjustements

Inne wplywy inwestycyjne

1851

1032
2078

3110

Repayment of principal and inferest from financil 22213
Total 22213
Other investment outfiows S

| 31.12.2006 | 31.42.2005
Outflows for leased fixed assets s 74
Expense for wind farm projects tgrs -
Total 29 166 17 418

restricted cash

| 31.12.2006

31.12.2005 |

deposit* ‘5936%
ESocial fund 2 392
iTotal 22: 6 025

* Restriction results from bank loan areement for project Satum and consitutes collateral of e(;wty Tor the

project
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Reasons for differences between balance sheet changes of praticular
items and changes presented in cash flow statement

Baliance sheet change in long and short term;j (14 287)§
ZChanges in receivables due from financial lease after 8 4662
:Changes in receivables due from advances for

P ; 164
dividend
. stment recobvables o . 18
.Changes in receivables presented in cash flow

} {5 642)
statement R

Acorualsanddeferals 0
‘Balance sheet change in acrcruals anddeferals =~ 72
sels

Lease interestaccrued

grants received S
Consolidation adjustements
;Changes in accruals and deferals in cash fiow

‘statement (1 929)
Liabiles: e 31122006
iBaIance sheet change in short and long term liahilitios 4 444;
?chlahg'eé = i”ri'\.'rés'tméritﬁé"tiijl_i'_t_lééjs':_"_'_' s L 79.5).2
.Changes in liabilities due from financiallease . 381
(Changes in fiabilities in cash fiow statement = (842)

43. Impairment

in course of first half of the 2006 the financial condition of one of the Group’'s customers, Wizow
chemical plant S.A. {,Wizéw") deteriorated significantly. As a result the bad debt of Wizow significantly
increased and the actions which were taken to improve the situation did not succeed. Moreover, in the
mid of June 2006 Wizow stopped production. On august 4, 2008 the Group filed with the Regional
Court the claim for bankruptcy of Wizow.

As a result of the above facts the Management of the Group took the decision to create revaluation
provision for the assets engaged in this project {receivables and fixed assets) and to create necessary
provisions for the costs of termination of the project.

The profit and loss account as a result of the revaluation provision for the assets engaged in the

project and created provisions for other costs related to termination of the project was charged in the
following way:

Type of revaluation or Amount Valuation Recognition in profit
provision and loss account
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Impairment write down (10,959.4) Valuation of fixed Other operating cost
of fixed assets assets in the net
sales price
Recognition of revenue 980.4 Accelerated Other operating
due from grant received settlement to the revenues
to finance the above revenues of grant for
fixed assets the turbogenerator
Provision for doubtful {4,926.6) Full provision for the | Other operating cost
debt gross amount of the
receivables due
Other provisions (1,062.0) Estimate based on Other operating cost
the best knowledge
of the Company
includes other cost
of termination of the
project
Deferred tax on the 2,865.2 Deferred tax asset Tax
created revaluations for temporary
and provisions differences relating
to the above figures
TOTAL {13,102.4)

In third quarter due to the fact that Interpep Spdika z ograniczong, odpowiedzialnodcig, EC Wizbw
Spotka Komandytowa with seat in Warsaw (,IP"} concluded with Rolmex Spotka Akcyjna (,Rolmex”)
and Wizéw three party agreement refating to temporary heat supplies by IP to Wizow through Rolmex,
heat sales to Wizoéw has been temporarily reestablished. Moreover the claim for bankruptcy of Wizow
has been withdrawn,

Moreover based on this agreement Wizow repaid part of its liabilities due to the Company in the
amount of 200 thousand zlotys.

The above mentioned agreement was concluded for specified period till December 31, 2006. Based
on this agreement Rolmex was delivered heat generated by iP. The heat delivery was conducted
based on prepayments from Rolmex. It should be mentioned that the value of heat sales did not
exceed the value of prepayments received.

The abovementioned agreement was prolonged till January 31, 2007 and on that day ceased,

Early February based on the decision of the Regional Court in Jelenia Gora Wizéw has been put into
liquidation bankruptcy proceeding.

As of the date of the financial statements heat is being delivered to Wizdw in the amounts sufficient for
space heating and machinery maintenance. As of the date of this report there are no condition
precedent which indicate the chance to restore production in the near future.

The Management of the parent company would like to stress that the Group forecast for 2006
presented in the current report 50/2005 would have been met, if the impact of the impairment write
down and lost contribution of Wizéw would have been omitted.
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44.Financial Risk Management — goals and rules

Financial instruments issued or possessed by the Group can cause - on a standalone or combined
basis — one or several classes of significant risk.

The main financial instruments the Group uses comprise bank loans, financial lease contracts with buy
back option, cash and short term deposits. The main goal of these instruments is to supply sufficient
amounts of cash for Group operations. The Group has also other financial instruments such like trade
receivables and liabilities which arise as a result of normal business operations.

The main classes of risk resulting from financial instruments include interest rate risk, currency risk
and credit risk. The Management of the company verifies and reconciles the rules of each class risk
management — these rules are discussed in an abbreviated form below. The Group also monitors the
market price risk relating to ali of its financial instruments.

44.1 Interest Rate Risk

The exposure of Group to the risk of changes in inferest rates refers mainly to long term financial
liabilities.

The Group manages the interest costs by using the variable interest instruments. The Group does not
apply any hedging using derivative financial instruments.

44.2 Currency Risk

The currency risk refers mainiy io the changes in EUR foreign exchange rate in relation to the open
asset currency position in the financial lease transaction. This risk is described in detail in Note 48
relating to leases. The position is nof hedged in order to eliminate the exchange rate volatility.

44.3 Credit Risk

The Group concludes contracts only with renowned companies with stable financial position. All clients
who would like to have extended credit line are subject {o detailed verification. Morsover due o instant
monitoring of receivables balances the Group is only slightly exposed fo the overdue receivables
balance risk.

in refation to other financial assets of the Group, cash and cash equivalents and assets available for
sate the credit risk for the Group arises when the counterparty is not able to pay its obligations and the
maximum exposure to such risk is equal to the carrying value of such instruments. The Group
concludes such financial instruments contracts only with renowned financial institutions.

There is no significant credit risk concentration in the Group.
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45.Information on financial instruments

451 Presentation of financial instruments — changes in value of financial
instruments by category

As of December 31, 2006 the Capital Group PEP had the following financial instruments classified into
the following groups (in thousand zlotys):

Cash oy |
equivalents it air value
{bonds, %’agr::a;:?g Available for | through profit
bills, .
’(reoaps(:::yentcI 5 receivables sale ( shares) and loss
funds)
Opening Balance 3,519 5439 954 1,319
increase, including:: - 161 254 51
Purchase of treasury bills and i i i i
bonds
Loans granted - 154
Interest - 7 51
Purchase of shares - - 254 -
Decrease, including: 3,518 5,43¢ 853 1,370
Sale of treasury bilis and bonds 3518 - - 1,266
interest reclassification - - - -
 Shares retum - - 28 -
Revaluation - - - -
interest received - - - 104
Consolidation adjustments
due o control takeover in - 5439 825 -
2006

Closing Balance - 161 355 -

The value of available for sale financial instruments consists of shares in affiliates. These shares are
using the equity pick up method. The value of other assets except fro originating loans reflects their
fair value. In case of originated loans it is practically impossible to measure in fair value because these
loans were given to affiliate.

The detailed description of valuation methods of financial instruments in discussed in Note 6.27 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financia! Statements.

As of December 31, 2005 the Capital Group PEP had the following financial instruments classified into
the following groups (in thousand zlotys):
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c(:gg::desqﬁ;:funrzs %’;9;23;;”3 Available for thfrzgjrg\;aa;;gfit
hills, open end . sale { shares) and loss
funds) receivables

Opening Balance 17,034 3,036 1,009 -
Increase, including:: 25,354 2,403 25 1,319*
g;lrr‘z:ase of treasury bills and 25259 ) N 1,319
Loans granted - 2,280 - -
Interest 95 123 - -
Purchase of shares - - 25 -
Decrease, including: 38,869 - 80 -
Sale of treasury bills and bonds 38,869 - - -
Interest reclassification - - - -
Shares return - - 80 -
Write offs - - - -
Closing Balance 3,519 5,439 954 1,319

The value of available for sale financial instruments consists of shares in affiliates. These shares are
using the equity pick up method. The value of other assets except fro originating loans reflects their
fair value. In case of originated loans their fair value does not differ from carrying value,

The detailed description of valuation methods of financial instruments in discussed in Note 6.27 in the
Notes to the Consoildated Financial Statements.

46.The characteristics of financial instruments

Fair value of fiabilities and financial assets is equal to their carrying value except for investment in
unlisted financial instruments.

a)  Fair value through profit and loss financial assets

As of the balance sheet date the Group did not have financial assets through profit and loss:

On December 5, 2006 Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. i Wspdlnicy, Spdlka Komandytowa sold for
1,300 thosuand zlotys 1,248 bonds with face value of 1,248 thousand zlotys, out of this amount 32

thousand was accrued interest. These bonds were purchased by Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0, |
Wspdinicy, Spotka Komandytowa from BRE Bank on August 12, 2005 for the amount of 1,299
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thousand zlotys. In 2006 the total interest received by the Company due from bonds amounted to 104

thousand zlotys.

b) Loans granted and receivables

The parent company granted the following loans to its affiliates:

Reported as at December 31, 2006

Total limit of
the loan
- Balance of
Date of | according to Balance of Date of .
Borrower agreement the the Zr::unt interest due | repayment Interest  |End of grace period| Collateral
agreement
{thd. zlotys)
After After commencement
E.W.G Spétka z commence of operations No
ograniczong | 3.02.2006 70 70 4 | mentof | feq 84% collateral
odpowiedzialnoscig operations
After After commencement
E.W.G Spotka z commence of operations No
ograniczong | 28.06.2006 40 40 3 | mentof | fred 8.4% coliateral
odpowiedzialnoscia operations
After commencement
AMON Spotka z of operations No
ograniczong | 12.12.2008 44 44 - fixed, 5.4% coliateral
odpowiedzialnoscia;
Total 154 154 7
Reported as at December 31, 2005
Total
fimit of
the foan
.| Balance of
Date of |accordin Balance of Date of End of grace
Borrower agreement | g to the the gﬁfﬁm interest due | repayment fnterest period Collateral
agreeme
nt {thd.
zlotys)
Mercury Energia-
Przedsiebiorstwo i?;‘g?f:ydgﬁ;‘:?
Produkcyino- drawing till the day
i Poéreg?\‘if:twa of issuing of first No
06.2004 2. i 385 10.2010 fixed, 10% invoice for collateral
g(;)r;raaxniggi:z 25.06.200 750 2750 3110 xed, ) electricity delivered
Odpowiedzialnoscial by ézect;%r;{:?f;dw”
Spotka
komandytowa
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g;:;ggﬁﬁgﬁé Interest due from
Produkeyjno- the day of loan
Uslugowe drawing till the day
i Poéregnictwa of issuing of first N
Comax Spotka | 30.09.2005 700 700 15 | 31.05.2011| fixed, 10% invoice for collateral
Z ograniczong giecgrlctl)ty delivered
L . y the borrower will
Odpowiedzialnoscia be capttalized
Spotka
komandytowa
g;z;g;;:;%z Interest due from
Produkcyjno- the day of loan
Ustugowe drawing #ll the day
i Poéregnictwa of issuing of first No
Comax Spélka | 4.11.2005 | 1.000 1000 9 | 31.05.2011| fixed, 10% invoice for collatera
Z ograniczong electricity delivered
iedzi 5Ci by the borrower will
Odpowiedzialnoscia oo canialined
Spdtka
komandytowa
grirgsgegir;?;%; Interest due from
Produkeyjno- the day of loan
Ustugowe drawing tili the day
i Poéregnictwa . of igsuipg of firgt No
Comax Spotka | 27.12.2005 580 580 31.05.2011] fixed, 10% invoice for collateral
Z ograniczong g[echtnc;ty delivered
iedzi i y the borrower will
Odpowiedziainoscia, bo capttalizod
Spotka
komandytowa
TOTAL 5.030 5.030 409

c) interest on loans granted

In the year ended December 31, 2006 the Group did not realize revenue from loans granted. In the
profit and loss account the interest accrued was incurred for the year 2006.

interest reaiized

Unrealized due within

Total interest

Tili 3 3-12 .

Year ended 31.12.2006 months | months | |5 ¥ears > Syears| Total unrealized

Iinterest on long term

financial receivables i i ~ 7 7 7

from affiliates

Totat ] ] . 8 8 8

interest realized Unrealized due within Total interest

Tilt 3 3-12 .

Year ended 31.12.2005 months months 1-S5years | > 5 years| Total unrealized

Interest on long term

financial _receivabtes _ 4 . 2499 299 299
from affiliates
Total 4 4 - 299 299 288
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d) financial assets available for sale

On May 31, 2006 the Parent Company purchased shares in Mercury Energia Spdlka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscia, Notos Sp. z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia, Beta Spétka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig | E.W.G Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnocig in the amount of 50 thousand
zlotys, 0.5 thousand zlotys, 25.6 thousand zlotys and 102.6 thousand zlotys respectively.

On June 7, 2006 the Parent Company purchased shares in Interpep EC Zakrzow Spolka z
ograniczong odpowiedziainoscig in the amount of 50 thousand zlotys.

47.Interest Rate Risk

The carrying value of financial instruments bearing the interest rate risk is presented in the table below

in the aging breakdown.

Year ended December 31, 2006

Variable interest rafe
<tyear

Cash

' Bank loans amounting 28,246 6045

thousands zlotys
"Bark loans in EURO

amounting 263,647 thousands -~ 19 843
zlotys
Fixed interast rate
<fyear
Cash assets 25079
t.oans granted
Year ended December 31, 2005
Variable interest rate
<fyear
Cash :
1 24 367
'Bank loans amounting 23,763
- thousands zlotys 5029
“Bank loans in EURO R
amounting 229,383 thousands 15 461
Zlotys 5
Fixed inferest rate
<fyear

1-2

years

13 117

28 547 .

1-2
years

-2

... years

3636

16 848

1-2
years

2-3

. years

6007

30811

2-3
years

2-3

years

3997

18612;

2-3
years

34

years

2191

33482

34
years

3564

20 062

34
years

4-5

Lyears

886

29 515

4-5
years

2237

21636

4-5
years

>5 years Total
- 28246
121349 263 647
>5 Totaf
years
25 079
162 162
=8 years Total
-1 24367
5300 23763
136 764 229383
>5 Total
years
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Cash assets 17,263 - - -
Loans granted - - - -

- 17,263

3,136 2,302 5,438

The interest on variable interest financial instruments is reviewed in periods shorter than one year.
Other Group’s financial instruments which were not presented in the above tables are not subject to
interest and therefore are not subject to interest rate risk.

48.Capital Group as lessor

48.1 Reconciliation of gross investment lease as at the balance sheet date with the present
value of minimum lease payments as at the balance sheet date:

in PLN asof

Exchange rate PLN/EUR 3.8312 SZIM | 01 year ;rg::s TS e 5 years
Gross investment lease 355 286 26 683 124 694 203 608
Net lease investment 254 407 17 989 93 083 143 325
Minimum lease payments 355 296 26 693 124 994 203 809
Unrealized financial revenues 100 889 8704 31 901 60 284
Unguaranteed residual accruing to the lessor

Conditional lease payments 58 465 9436 2 399 19 630
Conditional lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the period January 1, 2006 ~
December 31, 2006 amounted to 15,014 thousands zlotys.

in PLN as of

Exchange rate PLN/EUR 38598 STAZETEM N 01 year L
Gross investment lease 3115806 20 949 105734 184 823
Net lease investment 247 147 15 866 79 546 151 641
Minimum lease payments 311 505 20 948 105 734 184 823
Unrealized financial revenues 64 359 5352 25 788 33219
Unguaranteed residual accruing to the lessor

Conditional lease payments 85 588 7738 26 555 61 295

Conditional lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the period January 1, 2005 -
December 31, 2005 amounted to 9,712 thousands zlotys and for the period January 1, 2005—June 30,
2005 amounted to 5,826 thousands zlotys.

48.2 Description of risks related fo the financial lease transaction:

Market Risks

a/ foreign exchange risk

82



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2006
Additionat Notes and Explanations
(in thousand ziotys)

The foreign exchange risk of the financial lease transaction relates only to this part of the investment
which was financed through own equity of the lessor. The target financing structure is 87% loans 13%
equity. The above results from the financing of lease through bank loan denominated in EURO which
is the settlement currency of the transaction.

b/ fair value risk related to the interest rate

The mechanism of the lease transaction hedges the lessor against the impact of interest rate volatility.

¢/ price risk

The price risk is nonexistent in this transaction.

Credit Risk

The credit risk related to this transaction is related to the credit risk of Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie
(,MONDI"). MONDI is large and stable listed company so the credit risk is being evaluated at low level.

Liquidity risk (financing)

Liquidity risk related to this transaction is related to MONDI liquidity risk. MONDI is large and stable
listed company so the fiquidity risk is being evaluated at low level.

Cash flow risk related to the interest rate

The mechanism of the lease iransaction hedges the lessor against the impact of interest rate volatiity.

Description of key points in the lease agreements:

On April 29th 2002, MONDI, SM and the Issuer conciuded a general agreement (amended by Annex
No. 1 of December 15th 2004), governing the parties’ cooperation on optimizing the operation and
financial aspects of MONDV's activities, including the reduction of energy expenses. Moreover, the
following specific agreements were concluded: agreement for sale and lease back of the Saturn CHP
Plant by MONDI; agreement for execution of an investment and modernization programme with SM's
assistance, and 20-year agreement for operation of the Saturn CHP Plant by SM. The general
agreement establishes the following economic objectives:

- Financing and construction of a new CFB by SM on the premises of the Saturn CHP Plant (the
CFB has been successfully constructed and handed over), as well as execution by SM of the Facility
Upgrading Programme, and enhancing the Facility's operational efficiency to reduce electricity and
heat expenses over the next 20 years,

- Sharing of profits and risks related to the operation and maintenance of the Facility and
ensuring energy security for MONDI through failure-free and continuous generation of electricity and
heat, with agreed volumes and parameters,

- Improvement of the environmental protection conditions through the use of the bio fuels
produced by MONDI.

Energy Alliance

The parties’ economic cooperation is based on the Energy Alliance, understood as the concept which
assumes close links between the objectives and results of SM's activities as the Facility operator and
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the investor under the investment and modernization programme, and the objectives and resuits of
MONDI as the energy generator who uses this energy, where one party cannot draw profits at the
expense cof the other party, and their cooperation must develop harmoniously regardless of the market
conditions, ensuring long-term business security and economic profit.

Subject of the Agreement is lease on the land real estate situated in Swiecie, comprising lots Nos.
106/62, 105/63, 105/64, 105/65, 105/68, 105/69, total area 6.8173 hectares, under the right of
perpetual usufruct held by SM, all buildings and constructions constituting components of the real
estate classified as fixed assets and simultaneously as separate real properties, other fixed assets
and items of property specified in the appendix to the agreement {“the Facility").

In accordance with the provisions of the agreement FS will use the Facility for production of electricity
and heat on its own behalf and on its own account. The agreement obligates FS to pay a lease rent to
SM. The agreement was concluded for the period of 20 years commencing from the date of the
agreement, and may be extended for ancther 5 years. Liability of the parties for non-performance or
improper performance of obligations stipulated by the agreement caused by evenis amounting to
Force Majeure has been excluded.

49.0ff balance sheet items, in particular contingent liabilities, including
guarantees granted by the parent company

a) Contingent liabilities are presented in Note 34

b} Tax settlements

Tax settfements and regulated areas of business activities (i.e. foreign currencies and customs issues)
can be subject to control by administrative authority which is entitied to impose heave and adverse
fines and sanctions. Due to lack of stable legal reguiations in Poland there is a lack of integrity and
high level of vagueness in the binding regulations. The differences in interpretation of tax regulations
in the tax offices and companies cause conflicts and area of uncertainty. Due to the above the tax risk
in Poland is significantly higher than in other countries with higher developed tax sysiems.

The tax settlements may be subject of control over 5 years period started from the end of year in
which the tax liability was paid. As a result of such control the tax liability of the group may be
increased. According fo the Group as at December 31, 2008 all provisions for recognized and
countable tax risks were calculated.

¢} investment liabilities

As of December 31, 2006 the Group plans to incur capital expenditure in 2007 for tangible fixed assels
and capital investments in the amount of approximately 16 millions zloty. The funds will be spent on
purchase of new machines and equipment.

50.Profit distribution

On April 27, 2006 the General Shareholders Meeting voted the resoclution stating that:

- Coverage of loss incurred by the Company in 2005 from reserve capital in the amount of
417 thousand zlotys,

- Distribution of reserve capital {o cover the negative difference on profitloss from previous
years which is due to restatement of financial statement as of January 1, 2005 to the IFRS
voted by proper body of EU,
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- Distribution of part of the reserve capital created from profits of the Company in the year
2002 and 2004 in the amount of 9,057 thousand zlotys in the form of dividend to the
Company's shareholders..

The Management of the Company intends to deliver to the Supervisory Board final proposal for 2006
profit distribution and potential payment of reseve capital in the form of dividend tilt May 2007.

The Management wili propose to the Supervisory Board that the profit for 2006 potentially increased to
achieve the target value fo dividend in the amount of PLN 9.9 million will be in full distributed to the
shareholders in line with the announced dividend policy.

51.Liabilities to State Budget or local authority budgets

The Capital Group did not report any liabilities towards State Budget or local authority budgets
resulting from purchasing of buildings.

52.Information on revenue, costs and results of discontinued operations

Till December 31, 2006 the Group did not discontinue any activities and no plans exist to discontinue
any significant activity in the next period.

53.Information on significant related party transactions

All of the Company’s transactions with related party in the specific periods are presented in the tabies
below:
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54.information on joint ventures

On March 15, 2004 the parent company signed a joint venture agreement with Przedsiebiorstwo
Projektowo-Serwisowe Elektroniki, Pomiaréw w zakresie Automatyki, EPA Sp. z o.0. relating to
development of wind farm projects.

On March 13, 2006 the Company concluded with EPA Sp. z 0.0. an annex to an agreement of 15th
March 2004 for economic cooperation with regard to development of wind farm projects.

Under the Agreement, the Company and EPA jointly develop projects of wind farms and share the
costs of devefopment. The Agreement shall remain in effect by December 31, 2010 {originally, the
Agreement was to be effective for three years after the date of the conclusion of the Agreement.)
Under the Agreement, the Company has the pre-emptive right of purchase to all projects developed
with regard to the Agreement. Moreover, pursuant to the Annex, the price of the next projects for the
total nominal capacity of 150MW to be purchased by the Company has been set.

The investment expense is agreed between the partners of the joint venture in yearly periods. Up to
the December 31, 2006 the parent company incurred expense of approximately PLN 2.8m. The parent
company plans to expense for next wind farm projects the amount of approximately PLN 7.5m till
December 31, 2007.

The current effect of the joint venture is the preparation for construction wind farm project of capacity
of 22MW located near Puck. According to the published current reports the Group plans to complete
the construction of wind farm in Puck as of December 31, 2006. Moreover, two wind farm projects with
total capacity of 70 MW are in the advanced development stage. The commencement of construction
is planned for 2007 and operations for 2008.

55.Employment

in the periods ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 the average employment in the
Capital Group classified inio groups, calcuiated as the average of the end of monih ievels, amounted
to:

Number of employees
31.42.2006 31.12.2005

Biue coliar employees 115 106

White collar employees
44 38

Total employment 159 144
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56.Remuneration, including profit based bonuses, paid or payable to members
of the management and supervisory bodies (in cash or in nature)

in the 12 months periods ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 the remuneration of the
Management Board amounted to:

31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Management Board

Stephen Klein 568 339
Grzegorz Skarzyski - 428
Anna Kwarcifiska 372 347
Woijciech Cetnarski - 194
Michat Koztowski 430 17

in the 12 months periods ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 the Management Board
Members and Supervisory Board Members of the parent company did not receive any remuneration
resulting from being in the management boards of refated companies.

Till December 31, 2006 the members of the Supervisory Bodies received remuneration in the amount
of 310 thousand zlotys, including Mr. Zbigniew Prokopowicz 310 thousand zlotys. The resolution of
GSM dated April 27, 2006 established remuneration in the amount of 3 thousand zlotys gross fo Mr.
Artur Oiszewski and Mr. Krzysztof Sedzikowski from April 27, 2006 and June 12, 2006 respectively.

57.Loans and other similar benefits granted to members of the management
and supervisory bodies their spouses, brother, sisters, heirs and other
related persons

in the period ended December 31, 2006 there were no transactions with Management Board Members
and Supervisory Board Members.

58.Presentation of changes in Company’s shares or rights to these shares
(options) held by managing and supervising persons in the period of 12
months ended December 31, 2006

in 2006 there was an option plan for the management and supervisory persons in the parent
company. The option plan is described in the table below:
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Option plan
beneficiaries

Management and supervisory persons

Grant Date

18.03.2005

Vesting Date

30.09.2005/ 31.12.2005 and
30.09.2006/ 31.12.2006

Expiry date 01.08.2007
No of shares in the

program 325416
No of options

granted 326 418
Exercise price/share | 2 PLN

Type of settlement

Share emission

Conditions of
exercise

- None. The loss of right to options in case of
resignation or dismissal before September 30, 2006 and

December 31, 2606.

The fair value of option was estimated based on the binominal medel. The fair value amounts to:
Options September 30, 2005 ~ 5.87 PLN
Options December 31, 2005 — 5.90 PLN
Options September 30, 2006 — 5.94 PLN
Options December 31, 2006 — 5.96 PLN

On January 31, 2006 the Supervisory Beoard voted a resolution based on which: (i) the right for 12,515
options to the Company shares pertaining to Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski was transferred to Mr. Stephen
Klein, (ii) the right for 47,969 options to the Company shares pertaining to Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski was
transferred to Mr. Stephen Klein, {iii) Mr. Stephen Klein was granted 8,516 options to the Company
shares, Mr. Michat Kozlowski was granted 34 511 options and Mr. Zbigniew Prokopowicz was granted
30,000 options. The above mentioned oplions will be besting after December 31, 2006. The eligible
persons will purchase the shares at nominal value of PLN 2. The shares will be issued by the
Management based on the statutory prerogative fo issue shares within the specified mit. The fair
value of these options has been calculated based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model. The fair value
of one opticn was calcuiated at 8.63 zlotys.

The table below presents the change of number of options granted in the period of the 12 months
period ended December 31, 2008,
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Number of | Average
options exercise price
Number of | 133 498 -

options as at
January 1, 2006

Options granted 134 511 -
Loss of right to | 12515

oplions
Options exercised | 255 494 2PLN
Number of 1 0 -

options as at
December 31,
20086

In order to meet the Company’s obligations resuiting from Management Option Program implemented
in the Company in relation to (i) Ms. Anna Kwarciiska — Management Board Member and (ii) Mr.
Grzegorz Skarzyniski — ex Vice-president of the Management Board there was a private offer, which
means without public offer and admission of the shares fo the public trade, of 70,908 ordinary
registered shares of the Company. The offer of the Company’s shares was structured in the way that
Ms. Anna Kwarcinska and Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski purchased 34,454 ordinary registered shares
class O each. The issue price of class O shares was 2PLN per share. Ms. Anna Kwarcifska and Mr.
Grzegorz Skarzynski paid at the issue % of the issue price of ciass O shares.

in order to meet the Company's obligations resuiting from Management Option Program implemented
in the Company in relation to Mr Zbigniew Prokopowicz — Supervisory Board Chairman there was a
private offer, which means without public offer and admission of the shares to the public trade, of
37,580 ordinary registered shares of the Company. The offer of the Company’s shares was structured
in the way that Mr Zbigniew Prokopowicz purchased 37,560 ordinary registered shares class R each.
The issue price of class R shares was 2PLN per share and was paid in full on issue.

in order to meet the Company's obligations resulting from Management Option Program impiemented
in the Company in relation to Ms. Anna Kwarcinska — Vice-president of the Management Board ,
Stephen Kiein - President of the Management Board, Michat Kozlowski - Management Board Member
and Mr Zbigniew Prokopowicz ~ Supervisory Board Chairman there was a private offer, which means
without public offer and admission of the shares to the public trade, of 147,026 ordinary registered
shares of the Company of class S. The offer of the Company’s shares was structured in the way that
Anna Kwarcinska purchased 12,515 shares , Stephen Kiein purchased 70,000 shares, Michat
Koziowski purchased 34,511 shares and Zbigniew Prokopowicz purchased 30,000 ordinary registered
shares class S . The issue price of class S shares was 2PLN per share and was paid in full on issue
except for 12,515 shares which were paid at the issue % of the issue price .

The option program for CEC - Mr. Stephen Klein

On April 21, 2005 the Supervisory Board of PEP S.A. voted the resolution regulating the condition for
CEO Stephen Klein in which the Supervisory Board obliged itself to establish till December 31, 2005
detailed regulation about the Management Option for Stephen Klein. Stephen Klein will be entitied to
purchase till June 30, 2008 not more than 358 00 shares of new issue at the exercise price equal to
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the price paid by investors in the initial public offer. The detailed conditions of the option plan were
accepted by the Supervisory Board on Naovember 3, 2005.

The option program of Mr. Stephen Klein is presented below:

Option plan | Mr Stephen Klein
beneficiaries
Grant Date
3.11.2005
30.06.2008
Vesting date 30.06.2007
10.06.2008
Expiry date 01.07.2008
No of shares in
the program 358 000
No of options
granted 358 000
Exercise
price/share 7.8 PLN
Type of | Share issue
settlement

Conditions of | Conditions relating to the June30, 2006 franche
exercise

- none. The loss of right to options in case of resignation or dismissal before June
30, 20086.

Conditions relating to the June30, 2007 and June 10, 2008 tranches

- the managing person is in Management Beard

- the managing person has received voie of acceptance from the general
sharehoiders meeting for the proper financial year

The fair vaiue of option was estimated based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model. The fair value
amounts to;

Options June 30, 2006 — 1.27PLN
Options June 30, 2007 — 1.43PLN
Options June 10, 2008 — 1.49 PLN

Due to the fact that on July 1, 2006 Mr. Stephen Klein received the right to purchase 89,500 shares
based on the share option program, the Management Board of the Company voted on August 18,
2006 the resolution to conditionally increase the share capital of the Company by the amount of
179,000 zlotys in order to issue subscription warrants on shares of P class. The mentioned conditional
increase of share capital has been registered by the Registry Court. Till the date of this report Mr.
Stephen Klein exercised his right to exchange the subscription warrants for Company's shares in
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relation to 49,500 shares class P. The P class share price amounted to 7.8 PLN ands was covered in
full.

The charge into the profit and loss account for the year 2006 resulting from the above mentioned
option programs amounted to 1,551 thousand zlotys.

59.information on significant prior period events recognized in current year
consolidated financial statements

In the year 2006 there were no events relating to prior periods recognized in the current financial
staterents.

60.Information on post balance sheet events not reflected in the consolidated
financial statements

On January 10, 2007 which is after the balance sheet date the General Shareholders Meeting voted
the resolution relating to issue of subscritption warrants of class 2 and conditional increase of share
capital through shares issue of class T excluding drawing right of current shareholders in order to
enable purchase the shares to the eligible persons included in the management option program.

The results of the voting of the above management option program will be incurred in the profit and
foss account for the year 2007 and following years.

The descritpion of the program is presented in the table below:

Option plan | Ms Anna Kwarcinska, Mr Stephen Klein, Mr Michat Kozlowski, Mr Zbigniew
beneficiaries Prokopowicz
D
Grant Date 10.01.2007
01.07.2008
Vesting date 01.07.2009
01.07.2010
Expiry date 30.09.2010
No of shares in
the program 945 800
No of options
granted 855 210
Exercise 11.41PLN
price/share
Type of . - .
settlement Share issue after subscription warrants issue
Conditions of | The option program includes 12 tranches,
exercise

Tranches 1,4,7, 10 — have vesting date from 01.07.2008
Tranches 2, 5, 8, 11 — have vesting date from 01.07.2009
Tranches 3, 6 .9, 12 - have vesting date from 01.07.2010

Purchase of subscription warrants depends on fulfiliment of the following
necessary conditions:

Conditions to vest tranches 1,2,3 and conditions to vest tranches 10,11,12 in
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respective years.

After fulfiliment of the above mentioned conditions it is possible for tranches 4-9
to vest.

The condition to vest of tranches 1,2,3 is to achieve the higher relation of the
Companys share price for the preiod of 6 months preceding the year of vesting to
the share price for the peiord of 6 months preceding the year of vesting the
reights by two years to the relation of WIG index for the same periods.

The conditions to vest of tranches 4,5,6 is to achieve the higher relation of the
Companys share price for the preiod of 8 months preceding the year of vesting to
the share price for the peiord of 6 months preceding the year of vesting the
reights by two years to the relation of WIG index for the same periods multiplied
by 1.07

The condition to vest of tranches 7,8,9 is to acheive EBITDA per share higher
than 1.64 PLN in 2007 for tranche 7, 1.97 PLN in 2008 for tranche 8 and 2.36
PLN in 2008 for franche 9.

The condition to vest of tranches 10,11,12 is to acheive EPS not lower than 0.78
PLN in 2007 for tranche 10, 0.92 PLN in 2008 for tranche 11 oand 1.08 PLN in
2009 for tranche 12.

In case the vesting conditions are not met in 2007 and/or in 2008 teh option
program assumes the possobility of vesting these options in after meeting
additional criteria in subseqguent years. The detailed rules of the option program
were published in the current report no. 3/2007

61.Business combinations

Till December 31, 2006 there were no business combinations within the Capital Group structure.

62.Information on CO2 emission rights for the years 2005-2007

As of January 1, 2005 the act date December 22, 2004 about CO2 and other substances emission
trading {Journal of Laws 281. pos. 2784} which defines the rules for emission trading which has the
goal to limit these emissions in an profitable and economically efficient way. PEP Group is subject to
this act. Pursuant to the regulation of Ministry Council date December 27, 2005 about acceptance of
National Allocation Plan for CO2Z emissions in the year 2005-2007 and the list of installations
temporarily excluded from the emission trading system in the period from January 1, 2005 io
December 31, 2007 the installations belonging to PEP received the emission rights in this period.
According to this allocation the yearly emission rights for CO2 in years 2005-2007 amount to 125,500
tons of CO2.

Based on the preliminary audited reports claiming the emission in 2005 erupted by PEP installations
the amount of CO2 emissions in 2005 were 89,221 tons. As a result of the concluded by the Group
outsourcing contracts the surplus of emission rights over the factual emission in the amount of 8,730
tons will be realized by the Group customers.

As of the date of the financial statements from the preliminary reports relating to the emissions of CO2
in 2006 results that the Group posseses proper amount of CO2 emission rights for the purpose of
settlement of the actual emission in 2006.

In 2006 teh Group sold CO2 emission rights for 77 500 tons and relized revenue in the amount of
3,947 thousand zlotys.
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In 2007 the Group does not plan emissions of CO2 at the level higher than the allocation of the

emission rights.

95







The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ OPINION

To the Supervisory Board of Polish Energy Partners S.A.

1. We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006 of Polish Energy Partners Capital Group (the “Group™) for which Polish Energy Partners
S.AA. is the holding company, with its registered office located in Warsaw,
at ul. Wiertnicza 169, containing:

¢ the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 with total assets amounting to 426,198
thousand zlotys,

¢ the consolidated profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2006 with a net profit amounting to 519 thousand zlotys,

» the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the period from
1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 with a net decrease in sharcholders’ equity amounting to
4,879 thousand zlotys,

s the consolidated cash flow statement for the period from | January 2006 to 31 December 2006
with a net cash outflow amounting to 17,847 thousand zlotys and

+ the additional notes and explanations. (“the attached consolidated financial statements™)

2. The truth and fairness' of the attached consolidated financial statements and the proper
maintenance of the accounting records are the responsibility of the holding company’s
Management Board. Our responsibility was to audit the attached consolidated financial statements
and to express an opinion whether, based on our audit, these consolidated financial statements, in
all material respects, present truly and fairly” the financial position and financial results of the
Group.

3. We conducted our audit of the attached consolidated financial statements, except for the matter
described in section 4 below, in accordance with the following regulations being in force in
Poland:

e chapter 7 of the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act”),
s the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a
test basis, documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used by the
Group and significant estimates made by the Management of the holding company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe our audit has provided
a reasonable basis to express our opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

Translation of the foilowing expression in Polish: “rzetelnos¢, prawidlowosé i jasnosé”
Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelne, prawidlowe i jasne”
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4, As it is presented in the Note 43 of to the additional notes and explanations to the attached
consolidated financial statements during 2006 the financial situation of one of the Group’s major
customers deteriorated. When assessing the risk of further cooperation with that client, the Parent
Company’s Management Board made impairment write-downs against fixed assets directly
engaged in the production of energy for that client and against receivables from that client, and
created a provision for the potential costs of discontinuation of production for that client. Total
amount of the provision and impairment write-downs against the above assets resulted in the
decrease of the net result in the year 2006 by 13,102 thousand zlotys. As at December 31, 2006
the remaining net book value of tangible fixed assets in the amount of 970 thousand zlotys
reflects in the Parent Company Management’s opinion the expected market value of these assets
expressed in the net selling prices less selling costs, The provision for the potential costs of
discontinuation of production in the amount of 1,062 thousand zlotys is to the best knowledge of
the Parent Company Management’s an estimate of potential losses related to this issue. As at the
date of this report we were not able to verify the appropriateness of these estimates.

5. In our opinion, except for the potential consequence of the matter described in section 4 above,
the aftached consolidated financial statements, in all material respects:

e vpresent truly and fairly all information maierial for the assessment of the results of the
Group’s operations for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006, as well as its
financial positicm3 as at 31 December 2006;

¢ have been prepared appropriately in all material aspects with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by the EU;

o fulfils all the law requirements which impact the form and content of the financial statements.

6. We have read the Directors’ Report for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006
discussing the Group activity and the principies of preparing yearly consolidated financial
statements (“Directors’ Report™) and conclude that the information derived from the attached
consolidated financial statements reconciles with the consolidated financial statements. The
information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with the Regulation of Finance
Minister dated 19 October, 2005 in rclation to current and periodical information submitted by the
issuers of securities (Journal of Laws no. 209 pos. 1744).

Marein Zielinski on behalf of
Certified Auditor Finsi & Young Audit Sp. zo.0,
No 10402/7665 Rondo ONZ 1 00-124 Warszawa

Ident. no. 130
Artur Zwak

Certified Auditor
No 90894/7366

Warsaw, 26 February 2007

* Translation of the following expression in Polish: “sytuacja majqtkowa i finansowa”



Polish Energy Partners S.A.
ul. Wiertnicza 169
02-952 Warszawa

Warsaw, February 26, 2007

CEO letter to the Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2006 was the 8th year of Company’s operation. In this year the Company
and its Capital Group continued the actions started in 2005. These actions formulate
the basis of further development of the Company and its Capital Group both through
increase of the quality of services rendered and increase of its scope as well. In
consequence the market position and the credibility of the Company and its Capital
Group increased.

As a consequence the market position and the credibility of the Company and its
Capital Group have improved.

Significant evenis

The most significant events in 2006 related to the operational activity of the Capital
Group include:

e Creation of revaluation provision for the assels engaged in this project
(receivables and fixed assets) and to create necessary provisions for the costs
of termination of the project which adversely impacted profit and loss account
with the amount of PLN 13.1m. Had the impact of this provision been omitted,
the profit of the Group for 2006 would have been at the level of PLN 13.6m
which significantly exceeds the profit forecast for 2006 of PLN 12m

e Increase in renewable energy (“green energy’) production in 2006 by 13% in
relation to 2005 which in conjunction with price increase for green electricity
significantly contributed to the increase in net profit for the Group

+ Realization of PLN 3.9m of revenues from selling CO2 certificates

o Completion of Puck Wind Farm construction with total capacity of 22MW. The
Wind Farm started electricity generation in December 2006. Early January
2007 the Wind Farm obtained permission/concession from URE for electricity
generation. The effects of the project will be reflected in the profit and loss
account for 2007 and subsequent years.






e Completion of Jupiter project which is steam turbine construction at Saturn
heat and power plant. The construction was on time and budget. The effects of
the project will be reflected in the profit and loss account for 2007 and
subsequent years.

« Completion of construction of Mercury power plant which is fired with coke
gas. Moreover in the first days of January 2007 the new 15 year agreement
with Coke Plant “Watbrzych” S.A. for coke gas deliveries and electricity offtake
was concluded which is the final step of the project completion.

o [n 2006 the modernization program in Jeziorna heat and power plat was
completed. There is an expectation for operational results improvement in
2007 relating to the performance in 2006 which in turn was significantly
improved over 2005.

Prospects and plans

PEP will leverage its position in the energy outsourcing and wind power generation
sectors to become the leading renewable energy company in Poland.

The Group plans also to develop existing pipeline and relationships to capitalize on
opportunities in the wind energy market. PEP plans to capture over 10% of wind
capacity in Poland from 2007 and grow share in the following years. In order to meet
these goals the Group plans to secure rights in projects of total capacity of 300MW
and will invest in these projects. These projects shall be completed by the end of
2009 based on precedent price conditions.

Moreover, two wind farm projects with total capacity of 70 MW are in the advanced
development stage. The commencement of construction is planned for 2007 and
operations for 2008/2009. The development of next 20MW wind farm project will
have been completed by the end of 2007. The commencement of construction is
planned for 2008 and operations for 2009. For the years 2008 and 2009 the
Company predicts to complete development of wind farms with total capacity of
74MW and 118 MW respectively.

The Group plans to confinue to grow industrial Energy Cutsourcing activities within
Poland, targeting sizeable opportunities, where biomass experlise can be leveraged

The Group plans also to develop new business line which is production of biomass
fuels for the energy sector. In 2006 the Group prepared business plan, which will be
implemented in the course of 2007. The first effects of the business plan for the profit
and loss account should be visible in 2008 and subsequent years.

As a consequence of the plans presented above the Net profit delivered in 2007
should be at the level of PLN17.2m.

Truly Yours,

Stephen Klein — President of the Management Board,
CEQ
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Polish Energy Parners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a “Parent Company”) has been
incorporated by the Notarial Deed dated July 17, 1997. The Parent Company is registered with
the National Court Register held by the District Court for the city of Warsaw, XX Economic
Department of the National Court Register, Entry no. KRS 0000026545, The Company has been
allocated a statistical number, REGON 012693488. The seat of the Parent Company is at 169
Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw. The year 2005 was the 5th year of Group's operation and o™ year of
Parent Company's operation. The financial year is the same as fax year. In this year the Company
and its Capital Group continued the actions started in 2005. These actions formulate the basis of
further development of the Company and its Capital Group both through increase of the quality of
services rendered and increase of its scope as well. The market position of the Group improved
and the Group's credibility on the market increased which enables the Group to acquire new
capital and new investors.

1. Group’s structure with indication of entities subject to consolidation and entities
excluded from consolidation

The description of Group’s structure is enclosed in the Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statement.

2. Discussion of main financial figures disclosed in the yearly financial statements, in
particular description of events and factors, including unusua! events that have
material impact on the issuer’s activity and reported profits or losses in the current
financial year and discussion of the development perspectives within at least next one
financial year

The consolidated financial statement for the year 2006 presents the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2006 with fotal assets amounting to 426,198 thousand zlotys. For the year
2006 the Group reported net profit in the amount of 519 thousand zlotys, sales revenue in the
amount of 62,715 thousand zlotys and operating profit in the amount of 284 thousand zlotys.

Factors and events unusual and infrequent in nature are:

e Included in the operating profit there is an amount resulting from option valuation granted
to managing and supervisory persons. The cost was estimated at 1,551 thousand zlotys.

¢ In course of first half of the 2006 the financial condition of one of the Group’s customers,
Wizdw chemical plant S.A. (\Wizdw™) deteriorated significantly. As a result the bad debt of
Wizow significantly increased and the actions which were taken {o improve the situation
did not succeed. Moreover, in the mid of June 2006 Wizdw siopped production. On
August 4, 2006 the Group filed with the Regional Court the claim for bankruptey of Wizow.

Az a result of the above facis the Management of the Group took the decision to create
revaluation provision for the assets engaged in this project (receivables and fixed assets)
and to create necessary provisions for the costs of termination of the project.

The profit and loss account as a result of the revaluation provision for the assets engaged
in the project and created pravisions for other costs related to termination of the project
was charged in the following way:

Type of revaluation or
provision

Amount

Valuation

Recognition in profit
and loss account

Impairment write down (10,959.4} | Valuation of fixed Other operating cost
of fixed assets assets in the net
sales price
Recognition of revenue 980.4 | Accelerated Other operating
due from grant received settlement o the revenues
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to finance the above revenues of grant for

fixed assets the turbogenerator

Provision for doubtiul (4,926.6) | Full provision for the | Other operating cost
debt gross amount of the

receivables due

Other provisions {1,062.0) | Estimate based on Other operating cost

the best knowiedge
of the Company
includes other cost
of termination of the

project
Deferred tax on the 2,865.2 | Deferred tax asset Tax
created revaluations for temporary
and provisions differences relating

to the above figures

TOTAL

(13,102.4)

In third quarter due to the fact that Interpep Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedziainoscig, EC
Wizow Spotka Komandytowa with seat in Warsaw (,IP") concluded with Rolmex Spotka
Akcyjna (,Rolmex™) and Wizéw three parly agreement relating to temporary heat supplies
by IP to Wizow through Rolmex, heat sales to Wizéow have been temporarily
reestablished. Moreover the claim for bankruptey of Wizéw has been withdrawn.

Moreover based on this agreement Wizow repaid part of its liabilities due to the Company
in the amount of 200 thousand zlotys.

The above mentioned agreement has been concluded for specified period till December
31, 2006. Based on this agreement Rolmex has offtaken heat generated by IP. The heat
deliveries were conducted based on prepayments from Rolmex. It should be mentioned
that the value of heat sales did not exceed the value of prepayments received. The
agreement has been prolonged till January 31, 2007 and in this date terminated.

Early February hased on the decision of the Regional Court in Jelenia Gdra Wizdw has
been put inte liguidation bankrupicy proceeding.

As of the date of the financial statements heat is being delivered {o Wizdw in the amounts
sufficient for space heating and machinery maintenance. As of the date of this report there
is no condition precedent which indicates the chance to restore production in the near
future.

Had the impact of Wizow project been excluded from the Group results, which is the
contribution of the project and the above provision, the profit and loss account of the
Group for the 12 months ended December 31, 2006 and the comparable data would have
heen as presented in the table below:
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 31.12.2006 31.12.2005
CONTINUED ACTIVITY
il. Sales income 56 147 54 364
111. Cost of goods soid (27 224) (30 082)
1. Gross profit on sales (1) 28923 24 282
iV. Selng expense - -
V. General and administration costs (14051} (13 152}
including managment option program valuation {1551) {1032)
V1. Profit on sales (li-IV-V) 14 872 11 130]
VII. Other operating income 401 1033
VIIl. Other operating expense (1070 (1082}
|IX. Operating profit (V+VI-VIII) 14 202 11082
X. Financial income 13 555 11 047
lease interest 2 066 2100

Xt Financial expense {11 057§ {11983}
Xil. ProfitfLoss from subardinate units (661) B
X! Gross profitloss {IX+X-XI+/-XII} 16039 1105
XiV. Corporate income tax 3836 2904
XV. Net profit/loss from continued acfivity 12 203 8147
DISCONTINUED ACTIVITY

AV, Profit/l.oss fram discontinued activity - -
AVII. Net profitfioss 12 203 8147
Distribution of profitfioss: 12 203 8147
Parent company shareholders 12 203 8 147
Minority shareholders - -

Unrealized foreign exchange differences from balance sheet valuation of asseis and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency have alsc significant impact on the Group's resuits. As of
December 31, 2006 the Group had a2 long foreign currency position in EURO. Due to depreciation
of Polish zloty as of December 31, 2006 in refation to December 31, 2005 the Group realized
financial income in the year 2006 1,199 thousand Zloty as a result of unrealized foreign exchange
differences.

As of December 31, 2006 the Group has passive {short} currency position in EURO amounting to
approximately 140 thousand EUR. In 2007 due to planned investment debt drawing in EURO in
the amount of 11 million EURGC the currency position will be short and will amount to
approximately 11.1 million EURO.

In 2007 the changes in foreign exchange rate of zloty to EURO may have significant impact on the
unrealized foreign exchange differences. The result on unrealized foreign exchange differences in
2007 will mainly depend on relation of the exchange rate at December 31, 2007 to the rate at
December 31, 2006 and respectively appreciation/depreciation of zloty against EURO wili have
positive/negative impact on net profit in the amount of approximately 89 thousand ziotys for 1
grosz of difference to exchange rate at December 31, 2006 (3.8312 PLN/EURO).

The Subsidiary company Saturn Management Sp. z o.0. i Wspélnicy, Spotka Komandytowa
(,Saturn Management”), which in 2002 purchased from Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie S.A. a set
of tangible and intangible assets designed for generation of electrical energy and heat is
consolidated within the Polish Energy Partners S.A. Group. Saturn Management leased to Mondi
Packaging Paper Swiecie S.A. the abovementioned assets and signed an agreement for

4/25




Polish Energy Partners capital group directors’ report
for 12 months period ended December 31, 2006

rendering service of maintaining and operating those assets. Saturn Management continues the
agreed Investment — Modernization Program on the heat plant site.

Considering the fact, that the lease agreement fulfills the criteria of the financial lease included in
the International Financial Reporting Standards, the leased fixed assets have been presented in
the attached financial statements as receivables from financial lease. Construction in progress
("CIP”) presented in our financial statements is presented in the amount corresponding to the
unpaid investment liabilities as of December 31, 2006 relates to the Investment — Modernization
Program.

The receivables amount resulting from financial lease has been presented in this report in the
following way (in PL.N thousand):

Long term receivables 236.412 thousand zlotys
Other short term receivables 17.989 thousand zlotys

In the next financial year the Company plans to focus its efforts on extension of its wind farm
portfolio. The wind farm portfolio is built based on a joint venture agreement with
Przedsigbiorstwem Projektowo-Serwisowym Elekironiki, Pomiarow w zakresie Automatyki,
EPA Sp. z o.0. in relation to development of wind farm projects. The Company plans to
construct wind farm portfolio of total power of 300MW il 2010.

The Group plans also to supply biomass which is a substitute of fossil fuels to power plants in

Poland. In 2007 the first actions are to be taken in order to meet this goal.

3. Characteristics of assets and liability structure of the consolidated balance sheet
including liquidity perspective

2006 2008
Total assets 426 198 379 525
Shareholders’ funds 106 742 11t et
Net profitioss 519 9 341
Return on assets 0,1% 2,5%
Net profit
Total assets
Return on equity 0,46%% 89.1%
Net profit
Shareholders’ funds
Net sales profitability ,82% 15,3%
Net profii/ (loss)
Sales revenue
Liguidity | 1,79 2,88
Current assets
Short-term liabilities
Ligusidity 0,58 1,41

Trade securities + cash

Short-term abilities
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2006 2005
Stability of financing 89,8% 92,2%
Shareholders’ funds + provisions + long-term
liabilities
Total liabitities and equity
Debt ratio (%) 75,0% 73,5%

{Total fiabitities and equity — shareholders’ funds)
x 100
Totat assets

Return ratios at all levels indicate decrease in efficiency of the Group in 2006 in relation to
2005. The decrease is mainly due to the provisions created for project Wizdw. Had the
provision been excluded the efficiency ratios would have indicate improvement in efficiency of
the Group operations in 2006.

The liquidity ratio | indicates decrease in 2006 in relation to 2005. The ratio is at satisfying
level, taking into account that over 90% of current assets are cash and short term receivables.

The liquidity ratio Hl indicates decrease in 2006 in relation to 2005. Taking into account the
fact the part of the short term liabilities relate to investment liabilities which have secured
financing from long term investment debt one can conclude that the level of the ratio is at
satisfactory level.

The stability of financing was not subject to significant changes in 2006. The Group finances in
significant percentage its activity with leng term liabilities.

Description of maln risks and threats together with assessment of risk level

Risk related to competition

The Issuer is active on the market of industrial energy outsourcing. At present, the PEP Group
enjoys a dominant position in this segment of the power market, with an approximately 77%
share in heat generation, computed as percentage share of total heat supplied under
outsourcing projects functioning on the Polish market and known {o the Issuer. Given the
market's attractiveness for investors, the Company anticipates that competition will intensify,
alse on part of financially-strong foreign operateors, which may affect the PEP Group's ability to
attract new ocutscurcing contracts and to negotiate good terms and conditions of project
execution. PEP SA has gathered unigque experience on the Polish market in the area of both
the development and implementation of optimally-customized technological solutions as well
as construction of the right legal, fiscal and financial structures — which secures PEP SA a
significant competitive edge. Furthermore, the PEP Group believes it crucial that the provided
services are of top quality and that its qualifications are regularly enhanced by know-how
relating to cutiing-edge technologies and more effective management methods.

Given the steady growth in demand for energy generated from renewable sources (required
under regulations currently in force), its small supply, and, as a consequence, the anticipated
rise in #s prices, investments in green energy generation are becoming increasingly more
attractive. Thus, this market segment is likely to also see the tightening of competition. The
Issuer plans to launch wind farm operations. Given the weather and environmental constraints
in Poland, this is the energy source which in addition to biomass combustion, is viewed as one
offering the greatest potential as a source of green energy. This segment of the Polish power
market is likely to attract Western European and American companies with relevant
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experience gathered on other markets. From the project profitability's perspective, the factor of
utmost importance is the location of wind farms. The Issuer has concluded an exclusive
agreement for development of wind farm projects with Przedsigbiorstwo Projektowo-
Serwisowe Elektroniki, Pomiaréw i Automatyki EPA Sp. z 0.0., a leading developer of wind
energy projects in Poland. Under the agreement, PEP SA has access fo information on best
sites for wind farms, results of wind measurements, and hands-on experience in execution of
wind farms in Poland. Thus, the Issuer is provided with an edge over any potential
competition, as the gathering of such data is time-consuming and costly.

Risk related to the general econcmic situation in Poland

implementation of the strategic goals assumed by the issuer and the projected financial
results are influenced, among others, by macroeconomic factors, which are independent of
the Company’s activities. These factors include GDP growth, the inflation rate, general
situation in Polish economy and changes in the legislation. Unfavorable changes of the
macroeconomic indicators may adversely affect the Issuer's projected revenue or increase its
operating costs.

Currency risk

Part of the PEP Group’s agreements with its customers provide for payments in foreign
currency. Therefore, exchange rate fluctuations can affect the Group’s revenue as translated
into the Polish currency. The Issuer's Group mitigates the effect of the currency risk on the
projects’ profitability by using natural hedging — in projects which involve currency conversions
into the zloty, the majority of expenses incurred in connection with the construction, upgrading
and operation of the CHP plants are borne in the same currency. This also refers to locans
incurred to finance the projects.

interest rate risk

The share of debt in the structure of the Group’s financing is high. According to the PEP
Group's strategy, which assumes maximization of return on equity, 80% of the financing of the
projects under development comes in the form of debt. Under loan agreements conciuded by
the Group companies, interest on the contracted loans accrues at variable rates. A
considerable increase in market interest rates above the values projected by the issuer and
assumed in project budgets may adversely affect the PEP Group’s financial performance. The
Issuer is aware of such risks and in order to prevent their possible adverse effects it
continuously menitors the money market situation, efficiently manages its financial resources,
and includes in its agreements with customers clauses which provide for the customers’
participation in the interest rale risk.

Risk of fluctuations of coai and naiural gas prices and risk related to the availabijity of these
resources

The Issuer and its Group companies use natural gas, hard coal and biomass to generate
electricity and heat.

In Poland, the PGNIG Group is the main supplier of gas, which comes mainly from Russia. If
PGNIG encounters any difficulties in importing the gas in quantities required to satisfy the
existing needs, gas supplies to customers may be limited. In a case like this, market prices of
natural gas would probably rise, and it could also happen that the Issuer and its Group would
not be able to purchase required amounts of the fuel gas. This could fimit the business
activities of the Issuer and the members of its Group.

The Issuer and its Group have implemented mechanisms intended to protect them against
adverse effects of fluctuations of the natural resource prices. As a rule, prices of electricity and
heat are linked to prices of hard coal and natural gas. However, there can be no assurance
that the financial results of the Issuer and its Group will not be adversely affected in spite of
implementing mechanisms protecting against price fluctuations.
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Risk related fo Polish energy market

The energy market in Poland is regulated. The President of the Energy Regulatory Authority
(URE} is the body appointed under the Energy Law to perform fasks related o the regulation
of the fuel and energy management and promotion of competition in the power sector. The
President of URE’s powers and responsibilities include: granting, amending and revoking
licenses; approval of draft development plans for power companies; settling disputes between
power companies and between power companies and their customers; approval and control of
tariffs in the energy sector in terms of their compliance with the regulations, especially with the
principle of customer protection against unjustified pricing. The President of URE has the
power to impose penalties on licensed operators.

In its present form, the Energy Law substantially ensures covering justified operating
expenses of power companies. The producers’ right to include their profit in the heat tariffs is
limited, particularly by the overriding principles provided for in the energy law, such as the
principles of protecting customer interests. Thus, profit earning potential depends, to a large
extent, on the company’s ability to reduce operating costs.

As the process of implementing competitive market mechanisms in the power sector is well
advanced, licensed power producers are exempt from the obligation to file electricity tariffs for
approval (subject to certain exceptions). PEP SA's electricity tariffs are not subject to approval
by the URE. However, the tariffs must be prepared according to the principles provided for in
the Energy Law and secondary legistation thereto. On the other hand, PEP SA is required to
draw up heat tariffs and obtain their approval by the URE.

it can not be excluded that the government may also change its policy and strategy for the
power sector in the fuiure.

At present, the Energy Law does not provide for a situation where a power company applies
for the approval of a tariff and uses previous tariff rates in its settlements with customers while
the approval is pending. Currently, the Issuer is awaiting approval of the tariffs for the EC
Jeziomna, while applying the taniff effective in the previous period. There is a small risk that the
prices in the new fariff will be lower than those in the previous one, but in the Issuer’s opinion,
{he possible difference wili be immaterial.

in the tssuer's case, as well as in the case of ail the other companies in the power sector,
there is a risk that the URE will refuse {o recognize particular expenses borne by the Issuer as
iustified ones, which may lead to a lack of possibility to recover the expenses through heat
charges paid by customers. Similarly, there exists a risk that the URE will not permit, in the
future, 1o increase the prices of the heat energy in proportion to the rige in expenses, or that it
witl impose pensiies on licensed operators. Based on its to-date experience, the issuer is
seeking ways o reduce the risk. Thanks fo the use of efficient technological solutions and the
Issuer's ability fo deliver energy outside the transmission network (without incurring
transmission costs); the prices offered by the PEP Group are competitive in comparison to
market prices.

Risk related to customers' financial standing

The PEP Group derives revenues from developed and implemented industrial energy
outsourcing projects under long-term agreements for electricity and heat supplies. Therefore,
customers’ financial standing and their ability to pay liabilities towards PEP SA constitute a
key factor for the success of the projects as well as the PEP Group's financial performance
and standing. A sudden fall in energy consumption by a customer may also affect the
efficiency of energy generation. Prior to concluding outsourcing agreements and commencing
investment projects, the issuer conducts a tharough analysis of the potential customers,
sometimes using the services of external consultants, with a view {o assessing the customers’
creditworthiness and prospects for their respective sectors. The PEP Group is very careful in
selecting its customers from sectors with good market potential. The Issuer analyses in great
detail the customer’s technological process and the project launch is preceded by several-
month cooperation of the two parties.
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Risk of dependence on key customers

Every industrial energy outsourcing project, developed and implemented by the Issuer, is in
reality prepared for one customer — a production company. To-date, the PEP Group has
implemented four projects in this area. The share of each of the Group’s customers in the
revenue structure exceeded 10%, which means dependence on the customers. With the
development of the Group's activity, execution of new outsourcing projects and the Group’s
expansion on the renewable energy market, particular customers’ shares in the revenue
structure will be diminishing.

Risk of loss of key personnel

The activities of the Issuer and the Group are based primarily on the knowledge and
experience of their highly qualified personnel. Due to the limited availability of experts in
industrial energy outsourcing, and the possible attempts by the existing and future competitors
to take over the experts by offering them aftractive terms of employment and remuneration,
there is a risk of losing the employees who are of key importance for the development of the
Issuer and its Group. This could adversely affect the Issuer's financial performance and
strategy.

The risk is mitigated through:

High corporate culture of the Issuer, which helps the employees identify themselves with the
Company,;

Attractive of remuneration schemes focusing on incentives and promoting loyalty;

Knowledge management and extensive training program.

Risk of CHP plant operations

CHP plant operations involve the risk of failure to achieve the projected efficiency and
avallability of the plant, and failure to meet the contractual terms of energy supplies. The
Issuer's experience shows that the risk of unexpected breakdowns leading to the plants’
operational budget overruns is limited. To mitigate this risk, PEP SA enhancas operational
procedures and concludes insurance agreements, or applies contractual clauses whereby any
potential additional costs are transferred onte subconiraciors.
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5.

8.

Information on main products, goods or services together in amount and value and
share of particular products, goods and services {if they are material} or its group in the
total sales of the issuer and changes in this area in the financial year

Net revenues from sales of goods {structure - by type) 31.12.2008

revenues from sales of energy N R 1 589 :
electricity.delé.verédm B SR o W 16407
}événgegfroniéélego'fﬁeat' e :. .22932;
heat delivered - . (G 624 494 |
e c;'o};s'mtgr'lg'p'roje{;ts' e, R e
Trevenues from sales of over standard quality and guarantee of deliveries 467
fevenueé frbm teasing and operating of the leased assets . - 32 835
‘éalé ofgoods B s 135
Revenuesfmmre_mvmcmgand costre‘mbursemem e e s 9
Revenues for CQ2 emission rig'hts séle - 39847
Amount of emission rights sold [t CO2] 77 500 ‘-
Total net revenues from sales of goods : ”61. 096 :

Information on delivery markets, with the breakdown into domestic and foreign markets
and information about sourcing of raw materials, goods and services with a statement
on dependency from one or more suppliers and customers and in case one supplier or
customer achieves at least 10% share in revenues or sourcing costs— the name of the
supplier or customer and its share in revenues or sourcing costs and its formal
relations with the issuer

In 2006 there were no changes in sales markets of the Capital Group. All of the production or
services were soid to domestic customers. Due to the character of the business of the issuer ~
production of heat and electricity for a specified client in the analyzed period there was
dependency on the customers.

Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie Lease and CHP No capital relations 52%

S.A maintenance sarvice

Zaktady Chemiczne Wizow S.A. Deiiveries of heat and No capital relations 10%
electricity

Pelar S.A. Deliveries of heat and MNo capital relations 12%
electricity

Metsa Tissue S.A. Deliveries of heat and No capital relations 8%
electricity

The main raw materials used by the Group to produce heat and electricity are currenily gas
and coatl. In previous years the Group was dependant on Capital Group PGNIG S.A. Capital
Group PGNIG S.A. was the only deliverer of gas in Poland. Starting from 2004 there is a
possibility to purchase gas on free market. However there is still and will be existent the
dependency from transmission network of Capital Group PGNIG S.A.
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PGNIG S.A. Slgski region Gas No capital refations 24%
Translis S.A. Mazowiecki Coal No capital reiations 11%
region
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10.

1.

12,

Information on agreements concluded with significant impact on issuer’s business,
including agreements which were disclosed to the issuer and are conciuded between
the shareholders, insurance agreements or cooperation agreements

Pursuant to the requirements stated in the Regulation of Finance Ministry date October 19,
2005 in relation to the current and periodic information disclosed by the issuers of securities
the issuer discloses information on the significant agreements in form of current reports.

Information on organizational or capital relations of the issuer with other entities and
description of its main domestic and foreign capital investment (securities, financial
instruments, intangible assets and investment property), including capital investments
outside its capital group and the financing methods and description of deposit
structure or main investments done within the capital group within the current financial
year

The capital structure of the Group was presented in the financial statement. Information on
capital relations of the issuer were presented in the Notes 3, 17 and 25 to the financial
statement.

Description of related party transactions, if the one or total transactions value
concluded by the given related party exceeds 500,000 Euro in the period from the
beginning of the financial year

Information on related party fransactions is presented in the financial statement on the Note
53 to the financial statement.

Information on bank loans drawn, credits with special emphasis on maturity dates and
on guaraniees granted

information on bank loans and credits are presented in the financial statement on the Notes
28, 29, 34 and 53 to the financial statement.

Information on loans granted, together with maturity date, and guarantees granted with
special emphasis on loans, guarantees granted to affiliates

Information on leans granted is presented in the financial statement in the Nole 53 to the
financial statement.

in case of share issue in the pericd covered by this report — description of spending of
the issue inflows

in 2006 financial year there were small share issues related to the share option program.
Froceeds from share issue amounted to 810 thousand zictys and were used to cover current
cosis.
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13. Discussion of differences between the reported financiai statements in the yearly report
and the previously pubiished forecasts of resuits for the current year

Adjusted

Forecast Result Commenis

Forecasted category

Difference is due to the following factors: in the second
half of the year 2006 the Group delivered heat to Wizdéw
chemical plant even though no deliveries were assumed
Sales revenue 59.3 min PLN 62.7min PLN | and higher than estimated revenues from CO2 emission
rights sale and higher revenues from sale of "green”
certificates

Difference is due to the following factors: in the second
haif of the year 2006 the Group delivered heat to Wizow
chemical plant even though no deliveries were assumed
61.3 min PLN 64.7 min PLN | and higher than estimated revenues from CO2Z emission
rights sale and higher revenues from sale of "green”
certificates

Sales revenue
(including net interest
on leased assets)

Difference is due to the following factors: in the second

. . half of the year 2006 the Group delivered heat to Wizdw
EBITDA (including net chemical plant even though no deliveries were assumed
1.8 min PLN 3.3 min PLN and higher than estimated revenues from C0O2 emission
rights sale and higher revenues from sale of “green”
certificates

interest on leased
assets)

Difference is due to the following factors: in the second
half of the year 2006 the Group delivered heat to Wizow
chemical plant even though no deliveries were assumed
EBITDA 3.9 min PLN 5.4 min PLN and higher than estimated revenues from CO2 emission
rights sale and higher revenues from sale of “green”
certificates

Difference is due to the following factors: in the second
half of the year 2006 the Group delivered heat to Wizdw
chemical piant even though no deliveries were assumed
Net Profit {1.6) min PLN 0.5 min PLN and higher than esiimated revenues from CO2 emission
rights sale and higher revenues from sale of "green”
certificates

14. Assessment, fogether with judgment relating to financial management with particular
emphasis on ability to meet the liabilities and description of potential threats and
actions that the issusr has taken or plans fo take in order to mitigate these threals

The main part of financial liability of the issuer and its capital group consists of bank ioans,
which are disclosed in detail in the financial statements. All of the financial liabilities of the
issuer and its capital group are being paid without any significant delays. In the financial year
2006 there were no threats of liability repayment on time.

15. Assessment of ability to complete investment plans, inciuding capital investments, in
comparison to the owned cash resources, including to the potential changes in
financing structure:

The Capital Group PEP operates on the industrial energy outsourcing market and the
renewable energy market by running the Saturn CHP which produces energy from biomass
combustion. The issuer plans o increase its share in renewable energy by producing wind
energy.

PEP strives to finance its specific project on 80% basis of bank loan, and 20% to be financed
with own equity. The construction of next wind farm with total capacity of 282MW will require
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16.

on average EUR 338 — 395 m to finance capital expenditure. The Group must arrange
sufficient funds to finance the equity part. The strategy for equity finance has been worked out
based on the analysis of the market situation and investors’ expectations. The strategy
assumes sale of majority stakes in the developed wind farms which allows for increase in
shareholder value by:

- reinvestment of profits on wind farm stake sale,

- canceliation of equity needs through share issuer,

- paricipation in wind farm stake sale.

Assessment of factors and unusual events which impact the reported result for the
current financial year, together with assessment of the level of impact of these factor
and events on the reported results and events which significantly impact reported
results in the current financial year or which could have potential significant impact in
the subsequent years;

The description by projects which are part of PEP Group is presented below.

Projects
EC Saturn

In 2006 revenues resulting from share of benefits between the Group and one of its clients
had significani impact on the reported financial result. The above mentioned benefits result
from sale of electricity at preferred prices (“renewable energy”’, “green energy”). Moreover the

production of green electricity is in 2006 by 13% higher than in the comparable period of 2005.
EC Zakrzow
The project is operating in accordance with the budget.

EC Wizow

in course of first half of the 2006 the financial condition of one of the Group’s customers,
Wizow chemical plant S.A. (,\Wizdw”) deteriorated significantly. As a result the bad debt of
Wizdw significantly increased and the actions which were taken fo improve the situation did
not succeed. Moreover, in the mid of June 2006 Wizow stopped production. On August 4,
2006 the Group filed with the Regional Court the claim for bankrupicy of Wizow.

As a resuit of the above facts the Management of the Group took the decision to create
revaluation provision for the assels engaged in this project (receivables and fixed assets) and
to create necessary provisions for the costs of termination of the project.

In third quarter due to the fact that Interpep Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig, EC
Wizow Spdtka Komandytowa with seat in Warsaw (IP") concluded with Rolmex Spdika
Akcyjna (,Rolmex”} and Wizow three party agreement relating to temporary heat supplies by
IP to Wizdw through Rolmex, heat sales to Wizdw have been femporanly reestablished.
Moreover the claim for bankruptcy of Wizdw has been withdrawn.

The above mentioned agreement has been concluded for specified period till December 31,
2006. Based on this agreement Rolmex has offtaken heat generated by IP. The heat
deliveries were conducted based on prepayments from Rolmex. it should be mentioned that
the value of heat sales did not exceed the value of prepayments received.

14/25




Folish Energy Partners capital group directors’ report
for 12 months period ended December 31, 2006

Moreover, based on this agreement Wizow repaid part of its liabilities due to the Company in
the amount of 200 thousand ziotys. Till December 15, 2006 the repayment schedule and
method of repayment of Wizdw debt to the Company should have been agreed. The
agreement has been prolonged till January 31, 2007 and then terminated.

Early February based on the decision of the Regional Court in Jelenia Gora Wizow has been
put into liquidation bankruptcy proceeding.

As of the date of the financial statements heat is being delivered to Wizoéw in the amounts
sufficient for space heating and machinery maintenance. As of the date of this report there are
no condition precedents which indicate the chance to restore production in the near future.

EC Jeziorna

Jeziorna modernization program has been carried out as a result of the contractual guarantee
of PEP to supply energy at closely defined technological parameters o its customer Metsa
Tissue S.A. The program was designed to:

improve the efficiency of heat and electricity production,

improve reliability of supplies,

improve safety of operations,

improve the economics of production,

In relation to this modernization program the fclfowing targets have been achieved:

achieved boilers’ efficiency, savings in coal consumption, back-up source of heat has been
created,

savings in purchasing electricity for own needs and sourcing of raw water production,
increased level of control over heat and electricity production by balancing the production
process using additional measures,

decreased heat transmission losses,

increased availability and reliability of energy assets (in particular in winter season)

The key investments relating to the improvement of availability and reliability of energy assets
{boilers, turbogenerator, water treatment station, steering, and measurement systems) were
completed it December 31, 2006.

In 2007 there is an expectation for significant operational performance against 20086 resulis.

Mercury

Mercury project has been started in the beginning of 2004. On January 14, 2004 Comax - the
later business pariner of PEP — concluded with Coke Plant “Watbrzych” S.A. the so calied
agreement no. 2/BMO/2003. The agreement assumed that in the proximity of Coke Plant seat
an energy power plant of 8MW installed capacity will be constructed. The power plant was
assumed to produce electricity using the coke gas which is by-product of the technological
pracess of the Coke Plant.

in order to complete the above mentioned agreement the company Mercury Energia Spotka
Komandytowa was set up. Comax was the unlimited partner and PEP was the limited partner.

in order to secure financing for the project completion Mercury Energia concluded loan
agreement with BRE Bank S.A. PEP issued repayment guarantee of the Mercury Energia
foan.

The construction of the power plant was contracted to General Contractor Tawi. Due to the
fact that in June 2005 there was unexpected change in Management Board of Coke Plant the
cooperation between Coke Plant and Mercury Energia deteriorated. This and the deteriorating
financial standing of General Contractor resulted in significant defays of power plant
construction. [t was essential that PEP tock over the construction work which in consequence
resulted in completion of construction works in August 2006. On August 1, 2006 Mercury
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Energia obtained permission for operations of the power plant. Since then the power plant is
working {consumes gas and produces electricity) and Mercury Energia purchases coke gas
from Coke Plant and selis electricity to local electricity distributor based on temporary
conditions.

Moreover the technological changes which were applied by the Coke Plant in its production
process caused the agreement 2/BMO/2003 to be renegotiated assuming that the changes
applied will not lower the profitability of Mercury Energia. From the start of negotiations the
Management Board of Coke Plant was replaced twice which adversely impacts the agreement
conclusion.

On 18th January 2007, Mercury Energia Spétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialinosci | Wspdinicy,
Spotka Komandytowa (hereinafter referred as the "ME") - a subsidiary company of Polish
Energy Partners Spolka Akcyjna, hereby informs that the ME concluded an agreement for the
supply of coke-oven gas and electricity with Zaklady Koksownicze "Waibrzych" Spoéika
Akcyina (hereinafter referred to as "ZKW"). Under the agreement, ME is obliged to collect the
coke-oven gas supplied by ME in quantities as set out in the agreement, pay for the suppiied
coke-oven gas and to supply electricity to ZKW. Under the agreement, ZKW is obliged to
supply the coke-oven gas to ME in quantities as set out in the agreement, purchase electricity
from ME with precedence over cther suppliers and to pay for the supplied coke-oven gas. The
term of the agreement shall be by 31st December 2021, The agreement may be terminated
only upon a gross breach of its provisions.

Projects in construction

Jupiter

The goal of the project which started in 2005 by the subsidiary Saturn Management Sp. z o.0.
i Wspdinicy, Spdtka Komandytowa is to construct new turbine which will allow for optimization
of the CHP operations (lower energy production cost) and will increase the renewable
electricity production (revenue from green electricity). PEP revenue will be due from engaged
capital and additionai green electricity production.

On January 12, 2007 Polish Energy Partners’s subsidiary Saturn Management Spolka z
ograniczong odpowiedzialnosci | Wspdlnicy, Spétka Komandytowa (hereinafter referred as to
"SM™) signed with Alsotm Power Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig a protocol of
conditional acceptance of a steam turbogenerator (the so-called Jupiter project), meaning that
SM began operating the turbogenerator,

The completion of the project is on time and budget.

Wind Farm Puck

in 2006 PEP’s subsidiary Dipot Sp. z o.0. completed the construction works for 11 wind
turbines with total capacity of 22MW. The completion of the proiect is on fime and budget.

Starting from January 10, 2007 PEP's subsidiary Dipol has the necessary concession for
electricity generation in the wind farm, which is the final step of the investment process. The
wind farm started electricity generation in December 2006, As a result of the above mentioned
concession Dipol will be allowed to receive certificates of origin for the electricity produced
from renewable source (“green certificate”). The buyer of the green certificates is Polenergia
S.A. with its seat in Warsaw ("Polenergia”) based on the agreement concluded on October 20,
2005. Main provisions of this agreement disclosed in the current report dated October 20,
2005 are presented below.

1. Subject of the Contract

Pursuant to the Contract, Dipol shall sell Polenergia the property rights to ceriificates of origin
of electricity generated in renewable sources (hereinafter referred to the "Rights"), and
Polenergia shall purchase the Rights from Dipol. The number of Rights sold by Dipol shall be
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determined based on the volume of renewable energy generated by Dipol. The said
production volume in 2006 specified in the Contract amounts to 10,000 MWh, and by 2007
51,000 MWh a year. The Contract shall be effective by 31st December 2021.

2. Material terms of the Contract

The price of Rights disposed of by Dipol company shall be determined pursuant to a formula
specified in the Contract. It will be based on the base amount specified in the Contract, as well
as Dipol's selling price of conventional energy and documented variable cost of balancing 1
MWHh incurred by Dipol. Moreover, the price may be subject, upon Dipol's request, to
indexation as of 1 January 2008. The entire (i.e. effective over the whole period) estimated
value of the Contract amounts to app. PLN 140 million.

3. Agreed penalties specified in the Contract

In the case of termination of the contract for which Polenergia is responsible, Polenergia shall
pay Dipol agreed penalty in amount equivalent to the product of the planned number of Rights
to be disposed of by the end of the Contract period and average price for the Rights paid by
Polenergia over 6 maonths prior to Contract termination.

Should Dipol, starting from 20086, sell (without authorization specified in the Contract) the
Rights to Polenergia in number lower than 65% of the planned sale for a given year specified
in the Contract, Dipol shall pay agreed penatties to Polenergia.

The amount of agreed penalty fo be paid by Dipol shall be based on the number of Rights
below 65% of the planned sale for a given year and not disposed of by Dipol and, depending
on situation, on a substitute fee specified in the Energy Law, or penalty paid by Polenergia.

As the bases for agreed penalty are variable, it is not possible to determine the maximum
amount of agreed penally.

The Contract does not provide for a possibility to claim damages exceeding the amount of
agreed penalty.

New Proiects

On March 13, 2006 the Company concluded with EPA Sp. z 0.0, an annex ("Amex"} 1o an
agreement of 15th March 2004 for economic cooperation with regard to development of wind
farm projects ("Agreement"). Under the Agreement, the Company and EPA jointly develop
projects of wind farms and share the costs of development. The Agreement shall remain in
effect by December 31, 2010 (originally, the Agreement was to be effective for three years
after the date of the conclusion of the Agreement.) Under the Agreement, the Company has
the pre-emptive right of purchase to all projects developed with regard fo the Agreement
Moreover, pursuant to the Annex, the price of the next projects for the total nominal capacity
of 160MW to be purchased by the Company has been set.

Moreover, two wind farm projects with total capacity of 70 MW are in the advanced
development stage. The commencement of construction is planned for 2007 and operations
for 2008. By the end of 2007 completion of development of a 20MW project is expected, in
2008 the construction will be started and in 2009 operations.

For the years 2008 and 2009 the Company predicts to complete development of wind farms
with total capacity of 74MW and 118 MW respectively.

Other events:

fn 20086 the Group sold CO2 emission rights and received revenues in the amount of 3,947
thousand zlotys.
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17. Description of and projections regarding external and internal factors with a material
bearing on the development of the issuer and its group and perspectives of issuers
development for at least one year after the year for which the current financial
statement is prepared, including elements of its market strategy;

External Factors significant for the development of the Capital Group

Poland's Membership in the European Union

Poland's membership in the European Union requires that the Polish legal regulations
governing the power sector should be harmonized with the respective EU standards. The
European community shapes the energy markets in the member states through Directives
issued by the European Parliament. The key directives which affect PEP SA's activities
concern the following issues:

O Production of renewable energy — {Directive 2001/77/EC) — The EU promotes “green” energy
in order {0 reduce the dependence of European markets on imports of energy carriers, as well
as to mitigate the use and contamination of the natural environment.

2 Reduction of pollutant emissions — {Directives 2003/87/EC, 2001/80/EC and 280/2004/EC) —
Under these directives, the EU member states are obliged to implement mechanisms for the
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to the atmosphere, in line with the Kyoto Protocol.

a Promotion of efficient energy production technolegies — (Directive 2004/8/EC) — The EU has
found that an increased share of cogeneration of electricity and heat in energy production
contributes fo the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to the atmosphere. Accordingly, the
EU has implemented mechanisms for the promotion of cogeneration technology.

Q1 Enhancement of the market competitiveness — (Directive 2003/54/EC) — The EU’s strategic
cbjective is to enhance the competitiveness on the energy market through energy customers’
freedom io select any supplier of energy. This creates ample opporiunity for the development
of energy generation plants close to end-users,

Poland has been harmoenizing legal regulations governing the energy market with the
European standards as stipulated in the European Parliament’'s directives. This renders the
upgrading of the majority of industrial CHP plants indispensable, as these plants currently do
not meet the environmental protection standards. Also indispensable is an increase in
electricity generation from renewable energy sources. An increase in electricity consumption
in Poland is also anticipated, as currently this consumption is approximately 40% lower than in
the “old” member states of the European Union. The changes expected on the Polish energy
market will fuel development of the Issuer's business. PEP SA's facilities already meet the
European environmental protection standards. PEP SA has been investing and intends {o
invest in electricity generation from renewable energy sources: at the Saturn CHP Plant in
Swiecie, Poland’s largest state-of-the-art CFB boiler, adapted to biomass co-combustion, was
commigsioned, Moreover, in anficipation of an increase in demand for "green” energy from
renewable sources (provided for in the directives and regulations), PEP SA intends to invest in
wind electricity generating units. The Issuer uses cogeneration as the leading technology in
industrial units designed for end users, which enables them to be supplied with electricity at
competitive prices, free from network transmission charge. Moreover, the majority of power
units designed and managed by the Issuer record significant reductions of gas emissions,
owing to the application of envirenment-friendly technologies and solutions.

Another consequence of Poland’s accession to the European Union is a partial lifting of
barriers for business development by Polish companies’ activities in the member states. On
the one hand, this opens up a possibiiity of expanding onto the markets in other member
states; on the other, though, it may result in a stronger competition from foreign companies,
especially given the expected growth of the demand for renewable electricity.

Macroeconomic Factors

The pace of growth of Poland’s economy to a large degree affects the financial performance,
as well as investment plans, of companies operating on the Polish market. A marked
improvement in the economic conditions paves the way for more investments, including those
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relating to the modernization of production processes, also including the modernization of
industrial CHP plants. This justifies the lssuer expectations that enterprises will become
increasingly more interested in the services provided by PEP SA.

The economic situation and, consequently, investors’ and consumers’ demand is material to
the existing and potential customers of the Issuer and its Group, thus affecting the customers’
ability to perform their obligations towards the PEP Group. According to macroeconomic
forecasts, the economic growth in Poland should continue at a rate projected by the
government that is up to 5% in 2007.

Growth of the Qutsourcing Services Market

In order to improve their competitive positions on the Polish market, companies are deciding
to outsource non-core auxiliary functions from specialist undertakings. This policy enables
companies to reduce costs of performing these functions and focus on their core business.
Moreover, operating risks relating to the outsourced auxiliary activities may be, if only partially,
passed on the services providers. Outsourcing is already relatively common in a number of
areas, including IT solutions and servicing, facility protection and management, as well as
cleaning and catering services. Forecasts speak of an ever-broadening range of services to
be outsourced in the future by an increasing number of organizations. Given the anticipated
demand for upgrading industrial CHP plants, as well as more stringent environmental
protection requirements, a large number of organizations with energy-consuming production
processes are expected to start commissioning design, construction and management of
modern power facilities from specialist providers.

Development of the Debt Instruments Market

PEP SA seeks to finance its individual projects in 80% with debt and in 20% with equity. Thus
the access to long-term debt instruments is material to the Issuer's ability to execute new
projects. The Issuer's to-date experience proves that the availability of project finance, that is
financing appropriately harmonized with a project's schedule and profile, is rather fimited in
Poland. Most of the banks are not prepared to offer project finance instruments, and raising
financing on the Polish debt securities market, dominated by treasury securities, is difficult. On
the developed West-European markets, access to such financing is easier. Increasingly
stronger competition on the banking services market and the growing assets under
management of pension and investment funds should create more opportunities for raising
project debt financing at more attractive prices.

Development of the Renewsable Energy Market

The fact that the Polish power market must be aligned with the requirements imposed on
Poland as an EU member is condusive to the dynamic developments in power generation
from renewable sourcss.

Even prior to its accession to the European Union, Poland had undertaken tc perform
obligations pertaining to renewable slectricity production.

Under the Regulation dated December 19 2005, of the Minister of Economic Affairs, regarding
the particular obligation to obtaining and redemption of certificates of origin, payment of
substitution fee and purchase of heat and electricity produced in renewable sources electricity
distributors are required to purchase renewable electricity in such amounts that the share of
renewable energy in the total volume of purchased electricity is not less than:

1) 3.1% in 2005;
2} 3.6% in 2008;
3) 5.1% in 2007,
4) 7.0% in 2008;
5) 8.7% in 2009,
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6) 10.4% in 2010,
7)10.4% in 2011,
8) 10.4% in 2012,
9) 10.4% in 2012
10) 10.4% in 2013
11) 10.4% in 2014.

The volume of curmrently generated "green” electricity is insufficient — according fo ARE's data,
in 2004, mere 3,148 GWh of renewable energy was produced. The volume of electricity
produced from renewable sources purchased by the utilities should gradually grow, o reach
7,500 GWh in 2010, at a conservative assumption that total consumption of electricity in
Poland will not change in comparison with recent years, that is approximately 105,000 GWh
pa (according {o PSE SA's data). For failure to perform the obligation, the utilities will pay
substitution fee at the rate of 240 PLN in 2006 for each 1 MWh of the deficit of renewable
energy in the utility's total sales volume. Prices of electricity produced from renewable energy
sources are not regulated and, given the limited supply and large demand, they have been
grawing. Currently, the price of wind electricity exceeds PLN 350/MWh and is expecied to
grow further.

Given the weather and geological conditions in Poland, biomass combustion and wind force
are practically the main sources of development of “green” energy production in Poland.
Especially the wind electricity market is expected to grow, as approximately 30% of the
country’s area enjoys conditions supporting the operation of wind farms, and on 5% of the
country's area, recorded wind force creates conditions very favorable fo wind electricity
generation. The best locations are spread along the coast of the Baltic Sea. In 2006, installed
capacity of wind electricity generating units totaled 153 MW, and the production was below
196.3 GWh accerding to the data of Polish Wind Energy Association. According to the Safire
forecast model, used by the European Commission for the purposes of developing growth
strategy and implementation programs for the renewable energy sector, the volume of wind
electricity produced in Poland shouid reach 4,800 GWh in 2010 and 6,000 GWh in 2020. The
generation of 4,800 GWh requires 2,000 MW of insialied capacity, meaning that the market
can still absorh wind power plants with a tofal capacity of over 1,800 MW,

Development of the Power Outsourcing Market

The industrial power outsourcing market is expected io grow. Currently i is a young market,
as the first outsourcing contract of this type in Poland was concluded in 1998 by PEP SA. As
the operator of four CHP piants, the Issuer is currently the market leader. Furthermcre, the
industrial power cutsourcing market is characterized by large potential. Currently, in Poland
there are 877 CHP plants which operate at production plants. The majority of them requira
modernization and adaptation to the operating requirements applicable in the European
Union. These plants are potential customers for industrial power outsourcing. The issuer's
Executive Board identified a group of 88 organizations ~ potential customers of PEP SA ~ by
performing an analysis of data on annual heat consumption, cost of energy, competitive
position and financial standing of CHP plant cwners.

Market Position of Competitors

The industrial power oufsourcing market features very little competition. Currently, apart from
the PEP Group, there are four entities offering this type of services on the Polish market. The
PEP Group, with the fargest number of completed outsourcing projects, is the leader; its
market share measured by the amount of supplied heat (GJ) is 76%. The development
prospects, both in terms of the market of industrial power outsourcing and the market of
renewable energy, may be conducive to heightened competition in those segments of the
power market. The Issuer's unique expertise and competence in the field of establishing,
financing and managing complex power solutions should contribute to making PEP SA a
strong market player.

20/25




Polish Energy Partners capital group directors’ report
for 12 months period ended December 31, 2006

18.

Internal Factors Material to the Development of PEP and the PEP Group

Operational Efficiency of PEP Facilities

PEP SA is continually monitoring the operation of facilities under its management. Therefore,
it can quickly react to any possible threats to its projected capacity and availability and avoid
any instances of failing to meet its contractual energy supply obligations. Additionally the PEP
Group improves operational procedures and concludes insurance agreements, or uses
contractual clauses which enable PEP SA to transfer possible additional costs onto
subcontractors.

Expansion of Operations to Develop New Projects

The ability to launch and manage new projects is of critical importance for the ability to
compete on the industrial power outsourcing market and the renewable energy market, and
consequently for the future financial results. PEP SA employs a highly qualified management
and engineering personnel committed to implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives. During the seven years of operations PEP SA has established an experienced
Business Development Department to guarantee continuity of work on new projects and their
successful completion; furthermore, the Company has unique experience on the Paolish
market, permitting it to flexibly customize its sclutions to meet individual customers’ needs and
capabilities by relying on cuiting-edge energy technologies and advanced legal structures.
Moreover, the Issuer gradually improves the efficiency of the Group’s operations by applying
advanced IT solutions in budgeting and cost control processes.

Description of the Development Prospects of the PEP Group

The Capital Group PEP operates on the industrial energy outsourcing market and the
renewable energy market by running the Saturn CHP which produces energy from biomass
combustion. The issuer plans to increase its share in renewable energy by producing wind
energy.

Growth factors:
- Specialization in execution of industrial power cuisourcing projects tailored to the needs of
specific customers;

- Focus on customers with good financial standing and operating on strategically sound
markets;

- Development of highly qualified management and engineering personnel having the skills
required for the management of existing and development of new projects;

- Strengthening of the position on the renewable energy market — construction of wind
farms,

Development strategy and investment plans of the Capital Group of the Issuer and key
directions in the development of the capital group of the issuer

The Capital Group PEP will leverage its position in the indusfrial energy outsourcing sector
and generation of wind energy in order to become leading company on the Polish renewable
energy market. The management of the Issuer believes that due to exploitation of increase
and profitability of these markets will be able to generate very attractive returns from
investments to its shareholders.

The development strategy of the lIssuer and its Capital Group for the next years is
concenirated in increase of shareholders' wealth, among others through the following actions:

- Maintenance of development of industrial energy outsourcing in Poland by completion
of large encugh projects in which the issuer can exploit its biomass experience
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a Strengthening its position in the suppliers of renewable energy market, completion of
developed wind farm projects. The Group plans to secure 300MW in wind farm
projects in cooperation with EPA Sp. z 0.0. hy the end of 2010.

" The Group plans to supply biomass which is a substitute for fossil fuels to Polish
power plants. In 2007 these actions will be continued in order to meet this goal. The
effects of these actions will be reflected in the profit and loss account in the
subsequent years.

M Systematical cost reduction through tight expenditure control in particular projects and
through control of headquarters costs (,continuous improvement’).

Changes in the key principles of management of the issuer’s enterprise and its capital
group:

in financial year 2006 there were no changes in the key principles of management of the
Issuer's enterprise and the Capital Group.

Changes in the management and supervisory board of the issuer within last financial
year, rules governing appointment and dismissal of managing persons and
competences of managing persens, in particular the right to issue or buy back shares

Changes in the composition of managing and supervisory bodies in 2006 were presented in
the Note 1.3 to the financial statement.

The Supervisory Board is appointed in the following way.

"a} a sharehoider holding shares representing 33% of the Company’s share capital shall be
entitted to appoint and remove 2 Supervisory Board members including the Chairman, shall
there be more than one shareholder representing at least 33% of Company’s share capital the
Chairman is appointed the shareholder with majority share in Company's capital

b) the remaining Supervisory Board members shall be appointed and removed by the General
Meeting.”

As of February 20, 2007 there are no shareholders exceeding 33% share in Company's share
capitai. In Consequence all the Supervisory Board members are appointed and dismissed by
the General Shareholders Meeting.

Right of the managing persons to vote a resolution about issue or buy back of Company's
sharas

After the increase of the share capital by the Management of the Company within the limit of
target capital by 294,052 PLN through issue of 147,026 ordinary shares of ciass S, which has
not been registered yet, the Management is entitled to increase the share capital of the
Company within the [imit of the target capital by 537,000 PLN.

All agreements concluded between the Issuer and the managing persons which
assume compensation in case of resignation or dismissal from occupied position
without any significant reason or if their dismissal is due to merger or takeover of the
issuer;

The president of the Management Board Stephen Klein is not party of any agreement with the
Company. The conditions of fulfilment of the President of the Management Board by Mr.
Stephen Klein, including the salary, are specified in the resolution of the Supervisory Board.
The above mentioned resclution states that among other, in case of dismissal o Mr. Stephen
Klein from the position of Management Board Member he is entitled and obliged fo render his
services for the Company for the period of 9 months withholding the right o salary, excluding
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the case of dismissal due to Mr. Stephen Klein fault. In case of resignation of Mr. Stephen
Klein he is entitled and obliged {o render his services for the Company for the period of 6
months withholding the right to the salary.

Ms Anna Kwarciniska is party of the work agreement with the Company. The above mentioned
agreement is concluded for unspecified period. The termination period amounts to 6 months in
case Ms Anna Kwarcinska terminates the agreement, and 9 months in case the agreement is
terminated by the Company.

Mr. Michat Kozlowski is party of the work agreement with the Company. The agreement was
concluded for the period of mandate for Mr. Michat Koziowski for Management Board
Member. In case of dismissal of Mr. Michat Koztowski from the Management Board he is
entitled to the compensation in the amount of 252 thousand ziotys gross, excluding the case
of dismissal due to Mr. Michat Kozlowski fault. In case of resignation of Mr, Michat Kozlowski
he is entitled to the compensation of 168 thousand zlotys gross.

The amount of salaries, bonuses and other rewards, including these resulting from
motivation programs or bonus programs based on issuer’s equity, including programs
based on bonds convertible, subscribe warrants (in cash, nature or whatever other
form) paid, due or potentially due, separately for each managing or supervisory
persons of the issuer, no matter if they were incurred in the costs or resulted from
profit distribution, in case the issuer is parent company or significant investor —
separately, information on value of the salaries and bonuses received as a result of
being in management bodies of the affiliates, if the specific information was disclosed
in the financial statements — the duty is treated as fulfilied if the specific reference to
the financial statements was made

The salaries of managing and supervisory persons were presenied in the Note 56 to the
financial statements.

The Company has intfroduced option program for managing and supervisory persons. Based
on this program which was described in detail in Note 58 to the financial statement, the
options were granted to the managing and supervisory persons as it is presented in the table
below:

Management Hoard Member or Amount of options Options Exercise
Supervisory Board Member exercised price
£ill
34.12.20686
Zbigniew Prokopowicz 137 482 137 482 2PLN
Stephen Klein 358 000 49 500 7.8 PLN
Stephen Kiein 70 000 70 000 2PLN
Anna Kwarcinska 47 569 47 969 ZPLN
Michai Koztowski 34 511 34 511 2PLN
Grzegorz Skarzysiski 35 4b4 36 454 2PLN

In case of capital companies — indication of total number and nominal value of all
shares of the issuer and shares in related parties of the issuer which are in possession
of managing and supervisory persons (for each person separately)

Anna Kwarcinska 78 362 shares of Polish Energy Parners S.A. with total
nominal value of 156 724 PLN
Zbigniew Prokopowicz 37 580 shares of Polish Energy Pariners S.A. with total

nominal value 75 120 PLN

In relation to the option program the Company issued 147,026 ordinary shares of class S. The
shares were bough tin the following way:

1. Zbigniew Prokopowicz bought 30,000 shares;

2. Stephen Klein bought 70,000 shares;
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24.

25.

286.

27.

28.

29.

3. Michat Koziowski bought 34,511 shares;
4. Anna Kwarcinska bought 12,515 shares.

Till the date of this report the share issue of class S has not been registered yet.

Indication of shareholders owed directly or indirectly through affiliates, at least 5% of
total votes on the general shareholders meeting of the issuer, together with indication
of number of shares owed, their percentage share in the share capital, number of votes
these entities have and their percentage share in total amount of votes on the
shareholders meeting

information on the shareholders of the Issuer is presented in the Note 25 to the financial
statement.

Information on disclosed to the issuer agreements (inciuding these signed after the
balance sheet date) as a resuilt of which changes in the proportien of shares owned by
the current shareholders and bondhelders may occur;

The lIssuer is not disclosed any agreements which may result in future changes in the
proportion of shares owned by current shareholders.

Indication of all owners of shares which have special control rights to the issuer
together with the description of such rights;

There are no owners of shares which have special control rights of the Issuer.
Information on control over employee shares programs;

Due to the fact that the option program in the Company refers to the specified persons and the
criteria of option exercise are objective i.e. being the management board member of the
company on a specified day there is no need to implement control over employee share
program. The Company informs about the increase of the share capital relating to the
realization of the option program. Moreover the net profit for 2006 includes the vaiuation of
cost relating to the option program: for managing and supervising pefrsons.,

Indication of all limitations relating to changes in ownership of the issuer’s shares and
all imitations in relation to effect voie right from issuer's shares

Shares of class O are registered shares. In consequence the mentioned shares are not listed
on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. The statute of the Company does not contain any limitations
on trading of the registered shares. All the shares "to the bearer” are listed on the Warsaw
Stock Exchange and are not subject to any frade limitaticns excluding those resulting from the
governing faw.

The Company submitted request for listing of ordinary to the bearer shares of class R to the
Warsaw Stock Exchange.

Information on:

I. date of conclusion of agreement between the issuer and the company entitled to perform

audit of financial statements for the audit or review of financial statements or censolidated
financial staternents and on period for which such an agreement was concluded,
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a) Agreement dated June 15, 2008 between Polish Energy Partners S A. and Ernst & Young

Audtt Sp. z 0.0. with seat in, Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124 Warsaw for
review of financial statements for the perlod of 6 months ended June 30, 2008

= review of consolidated financial statements for the peried of 8 months ended June 30,
2006

» audit of Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006

» audit of consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006

» audit of subsidiary Saturn Management Sp. z o.0. | Wspdlnicy Sp. k. for the year ended
December 31, 2006

= audit of subsidiary Energopep Sp. z 0.0, EC Jeziorna, Sp. k. for the year ended
December 31, 2006

= gudit of subsidiary Dipol Sp. z o.0. for the year ended December 31, 2006

b) total fee resulting from the agreement with the entity entitled to perform audit of financial
statements, due and paid fees resulting from audit and review of financial statements and if the
company prepares consciidated financial statements resulting from audit and review of
consolidated financial statements,

The total fee resulting from the above mentioned agreements amounts to 75 000 EURO.
The audit of all standalone financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for

the year 2005 was performed by Emst&Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. Total fee amounted to 75 000
EURO.

c) total other fees resulting from other agreements with entity entitied to perform audit of financial
statements or consolidated financial statements, for other services than these mentioned
under b) relating to current financial year,

For services other than mentioned above the company Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z c.0. in 2006
coliected fees totaling 92 thousand zlotys.

For services other than mentioned above the company Emst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0, in 2005
collected fees totaling 15 000 EURQ.

30. Description of significant off balance sheet Hems including breakdown by entity, item
and value

The description of significant off balance sheet itemns including breakdown by entity, item and
value is presented in the Notes 29, 34 and 48 o the financial statements.

Stephen Klein —-President of the Management Board Anna Kwarcitiska — Vice-president of the Management
Board

Michal Kozlowski — Member of the Management Board
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GENERAL NOTES
Background

Polish Energy Partners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a “Parent Company” or a “Company”) is
a Parent Company in the Polish Energy Partners Capital Group (hereinafter referred to as a
“Capital Group” or a “Group”). The Parent Company has been incorporated by the Notarial
Deed dated July 17, 1997. The seat of the Parent Company is at 169 Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw,

The parent company is issuer of securities enumerated in the art. 4 of the Regulation of
European Parliament and the European Union Council dated July 19, 2002 no. 1606/2002/WE
regulating the application of International Accounting Standards (Journal of Laws WE L. dated
September 11, 2002 p.1; Journal of Laws UE Polish special issue, chapter 13, vol. 29 p.609)
and based on the provisions of art 55.6a of Accounting Act dated September 22, 1994 prepares
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards which were accepted by EU. This obligation refers to the financial
statements prepared for the financial year beginning in 2005.

On July 19, 2001, the Parent Company was registered with the National Court Register under
entry no. KRS 0000026545.

The Company was granted NIP: 526-18-88-932 on September 16, 1997 and statistical number,
REGON 012693488 on August I, 1997,

The primary scope of the Parent Company’s business activities is generation and distribution of
electrical energy and heat. In addition, the scope of the Parent Company’s business activities
includes:

— General building and land engineering, performing specialized construction works,
—  Construction of building installations,

— Other forms of granting Joans except those activities to the performance of which the
concession or permission is needed or which are restricted for the scope of activities of
banks,

—  Research and development works in the arca of natural and technical sciences,
— Management and sale of properties at its own expense,

— Contracted property management,

— Financial and accounting activities;

— Constructional, urban and technological design and architecture,

— DBusiness and management consulting;

— Other commercial activities not classilied anywhere clse,

—  Other educational activities not classified anywhere else,

—  Wholesale of solid, liquid, gas fuels and related products.

The scope of business activities of subsidiaries is connected to the activities of the Parent
Company.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors® report originally issued in Polish.
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Jfor the year ended December 31, 2006

As at December 31, 2006, the Company’s issued share capital amounted to PLN 36,979
thousand. Equity of the Group at this day amounted to PLN 106,742 thousand.

Based on the information submitted in accordance with art 69 Act on the public offer and
conditions for introduction of financial instruments to the organized trading system and public
companies dated July 25, 2005 (Journal of Laws nr 184 from 2005 pos. 1539, with
amendments) the capital structure of the parent company as of December 31, 2006 was as

follows:

Pioneer Pekao Investment
Management

PZU Asset Management
SICAV IXIS AM EMERGING
EUROPE

Generali OFE

Millennium Funds*

Other sharcholders (frec {loat)

**  Funds  managed

by

Number
of shares

1030034
1 200 000
1 434 920

2 062 464
933 186
12 082 037

Millennium

Number
of votes

030034
1206 000
1034920

2062 464
933 186
12 982 037

TFI,

Par value
of shares

2.00
2.00

2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00

% of equity

ie.  Millennium  FIO
Millennium FIO Zréwnowazony oraz Millenniwm F1O Stabilnego Wzrostu

5,62%
6,54%
5,64%

11,24%
5,09%
65,87%

Based on the minutes from the Management Board meetings dated December 12, 2006 and
based on the provisions of the National Court Register dated January 11, 2007 and after the
balance sheet date up to the date of this report there were following changes to the

shareholders’ nominal equity

Opening Balance

Number
of shares

18,184,673

increase ~ resolution dated February 3, 2006- issue class O

increase - resolution dated Auvgust 18, 2006~ issue class P

Increase ~ resolution dated October 13, 2006- issue class R

Increase — resolution dated December 12, 2006~ issue class S

Closing Balance

70,908
49,500
37.560
147,026

Par vatue
of shares

35,865
142

99

75

36,979

Till the date of this report the Jast capital increase was not registered with the National Court

Register.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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Members of the Company’s Management Board as at February 26, 2007 were as follows:

Stephen Klein - President
Anna Kwarcinska - Vicepresident
Michat Koztowski - Member

During the financial year and after the balance sheet date there were no changes in the
Management Board of the parent company.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish,
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Entities included in the Capital Group

As at December 31, 2006, apart from the Parent Company, the following subsidiaries (direct
and indirect) were included in the Polish Energy Partners Capital Group:

Entity name Consolidation Type of opinion  Name of authorized Balance sheet
method entity that audited date
financial statements
Saturn Management full ungualified Ernst & Young December 31,
Sp. z 0.0. i Wspdlnicy Audit Sp. z 0.0. 2006
Sp. Komandytowa
Energopep Sp. z 0.0, unqualified, Ernst & Young December 31,
EC Jeziorna, Sp. full with an Audit Sp. z 0.0. 2006
komandytowa emphasis of
matter
) full unqualified Ernst & Young December 31,
Dipol Sp. Z 0.0. ! Audit Sp. 7 0.0, 2006
Interpep Sp. z 0.0, December 31,
EC Wizow, Sp. full Not applicable Not applicable 2006
komandytowa
interpep Sp. z 0.0. December 31,
EC Zakrzdw, Sp. full Not applicable Not applicable 2606
Komandytowa
Mercury Energia 5p. December 31,
Z 0.0. 1 Wspdlnicy full Not applicable Mot applicable 2006
sp. Kom.
Saturn Management Excluded December 31,
' 8 from Not applicable Not applicable 2006
Sp. z 0.0, i
consolidation
Excluded December 31,
Energopep Sp. z 0.0. from Not applicable Not applicable 2006

consolidation

Excluded
Interpep Sp. z 0.0. from

consolidation

Excluded
from

[nterpep EC Zakrzow
Sp. Z o.0.

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

December 31,
2006

December 31,
2006

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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consolidation
Mercurv Enersia S Excluded December 31,
r)é 0 812 5p- from Not applicable Not applicable 2006
e consolidation
Excluded December 31,
Notos Sp.z 0.0. from Not applicable Not applicable 2006
consolidation
Excluded December 31,
Beta Sp. Z o.0. from Not applicable Not applicable 2006
consolidation
Excluded December 31,
E.W.G. Sp. Z 0.0. from Not applicable Not applicable 2006

consolidation

The type and impact resulting from changes in relation to prior year in the scope of the entities
included in is presented in Note 3 of the additional notes and explanations to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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3.1.

Consolidated financial statements

Auditor’s opinion and audit of consolidated financial statements

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0. with its registered office in Warsaw, at Rondo ONZ 1 is an
authorized audit firm registered on the list of certified auditors (No. 130).

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z c.0. was appointed to audit the Group’s consolidated financial
staternents by the Supervisory Board on April 26, 2006,

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0. and the chartered accountant in charge of the audit meet the
conditions required to express an impartial and independent opinion on the financial
statements, as stipulated by Art. 66.2 and 3 of the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994
(uniform text: Journal of Laws of 2002 No 76, with subsequent amendments) (hereinafter “the
Act™).

Based on the agreement concluded with the Management Board of the Parent Company, dated
June 15, 2006 we audited the consolidated financial statements for the 12 months period ended
December 31, 2006,

Our responsibility was to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements on the
basis of our audit. The auditing procedures were designed in such a way as to enable us to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Our procedures did not extend to supplementary information which does not have an impact on
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Based on our audit, we issued an auditors’ opinion dated February 26, 2007 which was as
follows:

“To the Supervisory Board of Polish Energy Partners 5.A.

We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2005 of Polish Energy Partners Capital Group (the “Group™) for which Polish Energy Partners
S.A. is the holding company, with its registered office located in Warsaw,
at ul. Wiertnicza 169, containing:

¢ ihe consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 with total assets amounting to 426,198
thousand zlotys,

¢ the consolidated profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2006 with a net profit amounting to 519 thousand zlotys,

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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e the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders” equity for the period from
1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 with a net decrease in sharcholders’ equity amounting to
4,879 thousand zlotys,

» the consolidated cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006
with a net cash outflow amounting to 17,847 thousand zlotys and

¢ the additional notes and explanations. (“the attached consolidated financial statements™)

The truth and fairness' of the attached consolidated financial statements and the proper
maintenance of the accounting records are the responsibility of the holding company’s
Management Board. Our responsibility was to audit the attached consolidated financial
statements and to express an opinion whether, based on our audit, these consolidated financial
statements, in all material respects, present truly and fairly” the financial position and financial
results of the Group.

We conducted our audit of the attached consolidated financial statements, except for the matter
described in section 4 below, in accordance with the following regulations being in force in
Poland:

o chapter 7 of the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act”),
e the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a
test basis, documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used by the
Group and significant estimates made by the Management of the holding company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe our audit has provided
a reasonable basis fo express our opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

As it is presented in the Note 43 of to the additional notes and explanations to the attached
consolidated financial statements during 2006 the financial situation of one of the Group’s major
customers deteriorated. When assessing the risk of further cooperation with that client, the Parent
Company’s Management Board made impairment write-downs against fixed assets directly
engaged in the production of energy for that client and against receivables from that client, and
created a provision for the potential costs of discontinuation of production for that client. Total
amount of the provision and impairment write-downs against the above assets resulted in the
decrease of the net result in the year 2006 by 13,102 thousand zlotys. As at December 31, 2006
the remaining net book value of tangible fixed assets in the amount of 970 thousand zlotys
reflects in the Parent Company Management’s opinion the expected market value of these assets
expressed in the net selling prices less selling costs. The provision for the potential costs of
discontinuation of production in the amount of 1,062 thousand zlotys is to the best knowledge of
the Parent Company Management’s an estimate of potential losses related to this issue. As at the
date of this report we were not able to verify the appropriateness of these estimates.

Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelnodd, prawidlowoié i jasnosé”
Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelne, prawidlowe i jasne”

This is a translation of the Long form auditors” report originally issued in Polish.
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5. In our opinion, except for the potential consequence of the matter described in section 4 above,
the attached consolidated financial statements, in all material respects:

s present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the results of the
Group’s operations for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006, as well as its
financial position’ as at 31 December 2006;

e have been prepared appropriately in all material aspects with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by the EU;

e fulfils all the law requirements which impact the form and content of the financial statements.

6. We have read the Directors® Report for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006
discussing the Group activity and the principles of preparing yearly consolidated financial
statements (“Directors’ Report”) and conclude that the information derived from the attached
consolidated financial statements reconciles with the consolidated financial statements. The
information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with the Regulation of Finance
Minister dated 19 October, 2005 in relation to current and periodical information submitted by
the issuers of securities {Journal of Laws no. 209 pos. 1744).

The audit of the consolidated financial statements was performed in the period from January
19, 2007 to February 26, 2007 and in the parent Company from January 19, 2007 to February
26,2007,

? Translation of the following expression in Polish: “sytuacja majatkowa i finansowa”

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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3.2

3.3.

Representations provided and availability of data

The Management Board of the Company confirmed its responsibility for the truth and fairness
of the consolidated financial statements and consolidation documentation. The Company’s
Management Board provided us with all financial statements of the Group companies included
in the consolidated financial statements consolidation documentation and other required
documents as well as all necessary explanations, We also obtained a written representation
from the Management Board of the Company, dated February 26, 2007 confirming;

¢ the complete disclosure of information in the consolidation documentation,

e the inclusion of all contingent liabilities in the consolidated financial statements,

¢ the disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of all material events from
the balance sheet date to the date of the representation,

The representation also confirmed that the information provided to us was true and fair to
the best of the Parent Company Management Board’s knowledge and belief, and that it
included all events that could have an effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Information on the Group’s prior vear consolidated finanecial statements

The Group’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 were audited by Mr.
Marcin Zielinski certified auditor (no 10402/7665) acting on behalf of Ernst &Y oung audit Sp.
z o.0. with seat i Warsaw, Emilii Plater 53, listed in audit firm register under no. 130. The
certified auditor acting on behalf of the audit firm issued to these financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2005 the unqualified opinion.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, were
approved by the Shareholders at the General Shareholders Meeting on April 27, 2006,

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 with the
auditors” opinion, the excerpt from the resolution approving the consolidated financial
statements and the Group’s report on activities were filed in the National Court Register on
May 19, 2006,

The introduction to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated balance sheet for the
year ended December 31, 2005, consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated changes in
the equity, and consolidated cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2005 with the auditors’
opinion, the excerpt from the resolution approving the consolidated financial statements, the
excerpt from the resolution about profit distribution were published in Monitor Polski B no.
1485 on December 21, 2006,

This 1s a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

Basic data and financial ratios

Selected financial ratios which characterize financial situation of Polish Energy Partners
Capital Group in years 2004-2006 are presented below; the ratios were calculated on the basis
of the financial information included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006.

The ratios for 2006 were calculated based on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 without including the effect of the qualification expressed in the
auditor’s opinion.

The ratios for 2005 were calculated based on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 including the fact the data for 2005 include the adjustment for
fundamental error described in Note 6.3 of the additional notes and explanations to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

2006 2605 2004
Total assels 426,198 378,739 340,277
Shareholders® funds 106,742 111,621 101,124
Net profit/loss 519 9341 6,633
Return on assels 0.1% 2.6% 1.9%
Net profit
Tatal assets
Return on equity £$.5% 8.8% 6.8%
Net profit
Sharchoiders’ funds at the beginning of the period
Net sales profitability 0.8% 13.3% 13.3%
Net profit/ (loss)
Sales revenue {rom sales of finished goods and
goods for resale
Liguidity | 1.79 2.88 2.37

Current assels

Short-term fiabilities+ Shori-term accruals +
Short-term provisions

This is a transiation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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2006 2005 2004
Liquidity 111 0.58 1.41 1.50
Trade securities + cash
Short-term liabilities
Receivable days 104 days 66 days 51 days
Trade receivables x 365
Sales revenue
Creditor days 71 days 35 days 42 days
Trade creditors x 365
Costs of goods for resale and raw materials sold +
cost of production of finished products sold
Inventory days 22 days 20 days 27 days
Inventory x 363
Cost of goods for resale and raw materials sold +
cost of preduction of finished products sold
Stability of financing 89.8% 92.9% £9.9%
Sharcholders’ [unds + provisions + long-term
linhilities
Total liabilities and equity
Deht ratio (%)
75.0% 70.5% 70.3%
Total liabilities and equity — shareholders’ funds)
x 100
‘Fotal assets
Rate of inflation:
yearly average 0% 2.1% 3.5%
Diecember o December t.4% 0. 7% 4.4%,

4.2 Comments on changes in financial ratios

The analysis of the presented figures and ratios indicates the following trends in 2006:

In 2006 the efficiency ratios were lower in comparison to the previous years which were caused
by the lower reported net profit for the current financial year in comparison to the net profit

reported by the Group in 2004 and 2005.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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4.3

The return on asset in 2006 was lower in comparison to 2005 by 2.5% from 2.6% to 0.1%, and
the return on equity decreased by more than 8% from 8.8% to 0.5%. The net sales profitability
decreased in 2006 in relation to 2005 by 14.5% from 15.3% 10 0.8%.

The liquidity ratio [ (current liquidity) decreased from the level of 2.88 as of December 31,
2005 to the level of 1.79 as of December 31, 2006 due to the increase of short term liabilities
by 14 million zlotys and decrease of current assets by more than 7 million zlotys. In 2004 the
liquidity ratio [ amounted to 2.37. The liquidity ratio IIT (cash liquidity) also decreased from the
level of 1.41 as of December 31, 2005 to the level of 0.58 as of December 31, 2006. In 2004 the
liquidity ratio IH amounted to 1.50.

The receivables turnover decreased in comparison to previous years and amounts to 104 days,
while in 2005 it amounted to 66 days. In 2004 the ratio amounted to 51 days. The creditor days
which amounted to 71 days in 2006 were higher by 36 days in comparison to the year 2005,
while in 2004 it amounted to 27 days.

The inventory turnover was longer than in the previous year by 2 days and was at the level of
22 days due to decrease in cost of goods sold in 2006 in comparison to the year 2005 while the
level of inventory was the same. In 2004 the ratio was at the level of 27 days.

The stability of financing ratio was lower by 2% from 02.2% in 2005 to 89.8% as of December
31, 2006 and the debt ratio increased by 4% and amounted to 75% as of December 31, 2006
while at the end of 2005 it amounted to 70.6%. As of December 31, 2004 the ratios amounted
t0 92.8% and 70.3% respectively, The Group applies relatively high level of leverage however
the main part of liabilities is long term which positively impacts the debt ratio.

Going concern

Nothing came to our attention during the audit that would cause us to believe that the Company
is unable to continue as a going concern for the period of at least twelve months subsequent to
December 31, 2006 as a result of any intentional or compulsory discontinuing or significant
limitation in its activities,

In Note 2 in the explanatory notes to the audited Group financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 the Company’s Management Board stated that the financial
statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consoclidated financial
statemnents were prepared on the basis that these companies will be going concerns for the
period of at least twelve months subsequent to December 31, 2006.

During the current financial year one of the subsidiaries Energopep Sp. z o.0., Warszawa ul.
Wiertnicza 169 reported loss which increased the negative net assets value. As of December 31,
2006 the total capital of that company was negative and amounted to PLN 6,257 thousands.
Had the profitability of that company remained negative there would be a significant risk for
this company to operate as a going concern. We have received written representation from the
parent company being the limited partner supporting the company in the period of at least the
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next 12 months. According to the Commercial Code limited partner is responsible for the
liabilities of the company up to the limitation sum which is PLN 50 thousand.
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IL

I.

3.1,

3.2

SPECIFIC COMMENTS

COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF CONSOLIDATION DOCUMENTATION

During the audit we have not noted any material irregularities in the consolidation
documentation which were not subsequently corrected that could have a material effect on the
audited consolidated financial statements. These would include matters related to the
requirements applicable to the consolidation documentation (and in particular eliminations
relating to consolidation adjustments).

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group’s accounting policies and principles are detailed in Note 6 in the additional
explanatory notes to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006. In the audited financial year there were no changes to the applied
accounting policies.

FEATURES OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The structure of the Group’s assets and equity and liabilities is presented in the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The data disclosed in the consolidated financial statements reconcile with the consolidation
documentation.

It is included in the auditor’s opinion the qualification related to the lack of possibility to
verify of the appropriateness of the management estimates which were presented in the Note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Parent Company’s Management Board made
impairment write-downs against fixed assets directly engaged in the production of energy for
that client and against receivables from that client, and created a provision for the potential
costs of discontinuation of production for that client. Total amount of the provision and
impairment write-downs against the above assets resulted in the decrease of the net result in
the vear 2006 by 13,102 thousand zlotys. As at December 31, 2006 the remaining net book
value of tangible fixed assets in the amount of 970 thousand zlotys reflects in the Parent
Company Management’s opinion the expected market value of these assets expressed in the
net selling prices less selling costs. The provision for the potential costs of discontinuation of
production in the amount of 1,062 thousand zlotys is to the best knowledge of the Parent
Company Management’s an estimate of potential losses related to this issue.

Goodwill on consolidation and amortization

The principles applied to calculate goodwill the principles to assess impairment and the
impairment write downs for the financial year and till the balance sheet date are presented in
the Note 6 and 12 of the explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Shareholders’ funds including minority interest
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3.3.

4.2,

The amount of shareholders® funds including minority interest is consistent with the amount
stated in the consolidation documentation and appropriate legal documentation. Minority
interest amounted to 936 thousand zlotys. The minority interest is properly calculated and
consistent with the consolidation documentation,

Information on shareholders’ funds has been presented in Note 25 of the additional explanatory
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial year

Financial statements of the Capital Group forming the basis for the consolidated financial
statements of entities included in the capital Group were prepared as of December 31, 2006 and
comprised the financial data for the period from January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006.

CONSOLIDATION ADJUSTMENTS

Elimination of inter-company balances (debtors and creditors) and inter-company
transactions (revenues and expenses) of consolidated companies

All eliminations of inter-company balances (debfors and creditors) and inter-company
transactions (revenues and expenses) of the consolidated companies reconcile with the
consolidation documentation.

Elimination of unrealized gains/losses of the consolidated companies, included under
assets, as well as relating to dividends

All eliminations of unrealized gains/losses of the consolidated companies, included under
assets, as well as relating to dividends reconcile with the consolidation documentation

DISPOSAL OF ALL OR PART OF SHARES TN A SUBORDINATED ENTITY
During the financial year the Group did not sell any shares in subordinated entities.
FTEMS WHICH HAVE AN IMPACT ON THE GROUP’S RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Details of the items which have an impact on the Group’s result for the year have been
included in the audited consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31,
2006.
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7. REASONS FOR EXCLUSION FROM CONSOLIDATION AND APPLICATION OF
EQUITY ACCOUNTING METOHOD IN THE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS APPROVED BY EURPEAN UNION

During the process of preparation of the consolidated financial statements there were no
exclusions from the consolidation methods or application of the equity accounting that would
have resulted in the modifications in the auditors® opinion.

8. WORK OF THE EXPERT

During our audit we have taken into account the results of the work of the independent actuary
responsible for the calculation of present value of liabilities towards employees other than
remuneration and of the asset value expert responsible for valuation of fixed assets of Mercury
Energia Sp. Z o.0. i Wspolnicy Spotka komandytowa in accordance with the provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Certified Auditor on behalf of

No 10402/7665 Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0.,
Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124 Warszawa
ident. no. 130

Marcin Zielinski Artur Zwak
Certified Auditor
No 9354/7366

Warsaw, 26 February 2007
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